
Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes Book 
 

Tuesday 11 July 2017 
  

Council Chamber - County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN 
  



Page 2 

 

  
Minutes of Cabinet and Committees 

 

May - July 2017 
 

Meeting Date Page Nos. Chairman (Cllr) 

Cabinet and Cabinet Committees 

Cabinet 23 May 2017 3 - 8 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Cabinet 20 June 2017 9 - 22 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Cabinet 3 July 2017 To follow Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 3 July 2017 To follow Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Overview and Scrutiny Select Committees 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 6 June 2017 23 - 28 Graham Wright 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 21 June 2017 29 - 38 Graham Wright 

Children's Select Committee 13 June 2017 39 - 44 Jon Hubbard 

Environment Select Committee 13 June 2017 45 - 50 Matthew Dean 

Regulatory Committees 

Strategic Planning Committee 24 May 2017 51 - 62 Fleur de Rhé-
Phillipe 

Strategic Planning Committee 21 June 2017 63 - 82 Fleur de Rhé-
Phillipe 

Northern Area Planning Committee 23 May 2017 83 - 96 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 14 June 2017 97 - 104 Tony Trotman 

Eastern Area Planning Committee 15 June 2017 105 - 110 Paul Oatway 
QPM 

Southern Area Planning Committee 30 May 2017 111 - 136 Fred 
Westmoreland 

Western Area Planning Committee 31 May 2017 137 - 146 Christopher 
Newbury 

Joint Committees 

Local Pension Board 6 April 2017 147 - 156 Mr Howard 
Pearce 

Other Committees 

Standards Committee 7 June 2017 157 - 160 Paul Oatway 
QPM 



 
 
 

 
 
 

CABINET 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 23 MAY 2017 AT 
KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Laura Mayes, 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr John Thomson, 
Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Pauline Church, Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Cllr 
David Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Tom Rounds, Cllr 
Jonathon Seed, Cllr Hayley Spencer and Cllr Ian Thorn 
  

 
57 Apologies and membership 

 
There were no apologies for absence received and all members of the Cabinet 
were in attendance.  
 

58 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 April 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 4 April 2017. 
 

59 Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 
 
The meeting considered the following matters: 
 
59(a) Membership - Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 
 
The Leader confirmed that the membership of the Cabinet Capital Assets 
Committee would be the same as the Cabinet as follows: 
 
Councillor Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Chuck 
Berry, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Bridget 
Wayman, Cllr Philip Whitehead, Cllr Jerry Wickham. 
 
59(b) Minutes - Capital Assets Committee 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 
 
 

The meeting considered the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Capital 
Assets Committee held on the 14th March 2017 for information. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the minutes the meeting of the Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 
held on the 14th March 2017 
 

60 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

61 Leader's announcements 
 
Prior to the start of the meeting, the Leader invited those in attendance to 
observe a minutes silence in respect of the incident in Manchester on the 22 

May 2017. 
 
The Leader welcomed new members of the Cabinet and other Councillors to 
the meeting. 
 

62 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
The Leader outlined her practice in conducting public participation at the 
meeting. 
 
Brian Warwick, Older People’s Champion, attended the meeting raised 
concerns about the impact on older and disable people of recent works to the 
Market Place in Melksham. 
 
Councillor Jon Hubbard, on behalf of Melksham Town Council, similarly raised 
concerns about the financial estimates provided for the related works. 
 
In response to queries, the Leader asked if officers would arrange a meeting 
with interested parties to address the concerns, and stated that the Wiltshire 
Council project to improve the Market Place as part of the wider campus project 
was on time and on budget. 
 

63 Adoption West Implementation Decision Report 
 
Councillor Laura Mayes presented the report which sought approval for 
proposals for the establishment of the Adoption West Regional Adoption 
Agency (RAA) as outlined in the report; and recommended that Cabinet 
delegate authority for approving the detailed implementation plans, including 
financial, contractual and legal agreements to the Carolyn Godfrey subject to 
council policies and procedures. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
legislative driver behind the move to a regional model; that there would be three 
geographic hubs, with one in Wiltshire; how the good standards of the Wiltshire 

Page 4



 
 
 

 
 
 

agency would be maintained in the regional model, and the opportunities for 
learning from best practice across the region; how performance would be 
managed, and the importance of scrutiny; the financial implications of the move, 
and how s151 officers had been involved in the development of the model. 
 
In response to a question raised by the Leader, officers responded that the 
ambition of Wiltshire Council to find families for even the harder to place 
children would be maintained. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To approve proposals for the establishment of the Adoption West 

Regional Adoption Agency (RAA) as outlined in this report. 
 
2. To delegate authority for approving the detailed implementation plans, 

including financial, contractual and legal agreements, to the Corporate 
Director, subject to council policies and procedures and in 
consultation with the Monitoring Officer, the s151 Officer and the 
relevant Cabinet Member responsible for Children’s Services. 

 
3. That the Corporate Director be asked to work with partners to address 

the request that Overview & Scrutiny should form part of the 
governance arrangements of the Regional Adoption Agency.  

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The development of Regional Adoption Agency proposals is part of the national 
regionalising adoption agenda as set out in ‘Regionalising Adoption’ (July 
2015), and further developed in ‘Adoption; A Vision for Change’ (March 2016). 
 
Proposals are also informed by the Education and Adoption Act 2016, as 
outlined in the ‘legal implications’ section of this report. Wiltshire Council is a 
partner in developing Adoption West RAA along with five other Councils and 
four voluntary adoption agencies. The intention is to transfer a range of 
Wiltshire Council’s current adoption service functions to Adoption West by April 
2018 
 

64 Wiltshire Pension Fund - Ill-Health Insurance for Scheme Employers 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which requested that Cabinet 
approve the direct award of a contract to Legal & General for the purchase of an 
ill-health retirement insurance policy on behalf of the Wiltshire Pension Fund 
scheme employers to mitigate the risks in respect of ill-health early retirement 
claims. 
 
Following a question from Councillor Ian Thorn, Councillor Whitehead clarified 
that the scheme would only be utilised by small members of the pension fund 
scheme, and that members could out of the policy. 
 
Resolved 

Page 5



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
To agree the direct award for the attached insurance policy quotation and 
delegate authority to approve the entering into contract until April 2019 to 
the Associate Director Finance in consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Finance. 
 

65 Procurement of an Integrated Highways Asset Management System 
 
Councillor Bridget Wayman presented the report which sought approval to 
proceed with a procurement exercise for replacing three current Highway 
Management Systems with a single Integrated Highway Asset Management 
System. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
That a procurement exercise should be undertaken for Highway Asset 
Management Software that best meets the Council's requirements, and 
offers the best value and functionality. It is recommended that the system 
should be in place for 1 April 2018. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
Wiltshire Council is responsible for 4,500km of roads, 1500 bridges and over 
40,000 street lights with an estimated replacement value of £5 billion. The local 
highway network is vital to providing connectivity for businesses and 
communities. Effective maintenance to ensure its availability is essential to the 
economic development of an area. 
 
Procurement of a modern Integrated Asset Management System will provide 
Wiltshire Council with the tools to improve the efficiency of key and statutory 
services such as major maintenance, highway safety inspections, street lighting 
repairs, traffic management and road space booking. It will enable the Council 
to achieve long term improvements in asset condition through improved 
investment decisions and to deliver an efficient and modern highways service. 
 
There is the opportunity for joint procurement with Oxfordshire County Council 
which will speed up the process and potentially provide cost savings. The local 
authorities involved in the procurement process will operate separate contracts 
after contract award. 
 
The experience of other Authorities who have procured new systems recently 
has delivered an improved understanding of their assets, improved 
maintenance decisions and increased efficiency through mobile working and 
streamlined, user friendly system interfaces. 
 

66 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
67 Exclusion of the Press & Public 

 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items of 
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking the item in private: 
 
Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
 
Paragraph 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
No representations have been received as to why this item should not be held 
in private. 
 

68 Update on Future Waste Management and Collection Services 
 
Councillor Bridget Wayman presented the report, exempt from publication, 
which notified Cabinet of the decision made by the Corporate Director under 
emergency powers to sign a number of agreements and contracts for the 
delivery of waste collection and waste management services and to inform 
Cabinet of the revised service commencement dates for the new contracts. 
 
The report summarised the history of the procurement process and set out the 
advice and key issues considered by the Corporate Director in making the 
decision to enter into agreements and contracts as set out in the proposal 
contained in the report. 
 
In response to a question, it was agreed that, as with previous matters of a 
similar nature, a report assessing the process would be provided. 
 
Following an opportunity for those in attendance to ask questions, and following 
a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved  
 
To approve the recommendations as set out in the report. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To ensure that Cabinet is informed of the actions taken to enable the council to 
maintain service delivery for residents, to comply with its statutory duties to 

Page 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

collect and dispose of waste and to continue to progress towards achieving 
statutory targets once current contracts expire. 
 
Councillor Bridget Wayman presented a supplementary paper, exempt from 
publication, which detailed a proposal regarding the purchase of vehicles in 
respect of Lot 5.  
 
Following an opportunity for those in attendance to ask questions, and following 
a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved  
 
To approve the recommendations as set out in the report. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To enable the council to maintain service delivery for residents, and secure 
value for money. 

 
 

(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 10.52 am) 
 

These decisions were published on 2 June 2017 and will come into force on 12 June 
2017 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Yamina Rhouati of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718024, e-mail Yamina.Rhouati@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct lines (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

CABINET 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 20 JUNE 2017 AT THE 
KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice 
Chairman), Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Laura Mayes, 
Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Gavin 
Grant, Cllr Darren Henry, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Atiqul Hoque, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Chris 
Hurst, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Edward Kirk, 
Cllr Brian Mathew, Cllr Steve Oldrieve, Cllr Stewart Palmen, Cllr Horace Prickett, Cllr 
Jonathon Seed, Cllr John Smale, Cllr Hayley Spencer, Cllr Roy While, Cllr Graham 
Wright and Cllr Ian Thorn 
  

 
69 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies received as all members of Cabinet were present. 
 

70 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 23 May 2017. 
 

71 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

72 Leader's Announcements 
 
The Leader drew attention to the sad news of the death of two soldiers based in 
Wiltshire: Corporals Matthew Hatfield and Darren Neilson. The Leader stated 
that she would be writing to their families to offer condolence. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Leader also mentioned the recent tragic events in the Finsbury and 
Kensington & Chelsea areas of London. She mentioned that the Council would 
be offering support as appropriate. At the invitation of the Leader the Cabinet 
Members for Public Protection and Housing, respectively, outlined the steps 
already taken and those to be taken in response to the events in London. 
 
The Leader announced that, due to the significant public interest shown, the 
item on the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocation Plan would be brought forward on 
the agenda. 
 

73 Public Participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
Public participation in relation to the Housing Sites item is recorded under than 
minute. 
 

74 Performance Management and Risk Outturn Report: Q4 2016/17 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which provided an update on 
the progress against the stated aims in the council’s Business Plan. It included 
measures and activities reported on the Citizens’ Dashboard and other key 
measures, as well as the latest version of the council’s strategic risk register. 
The report covered the period January to March 2017. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
how the links between the risk register and the nascent business plan could be 
made clearer; the positive employment rate for the council; how identifying risks 
should be seen as positive thing; how to account for risks, such as pandemic 
flu, that are hard to mitigate against; how best to monitor the use of libraries as 
their pattern of use changes and diversifies; that further investigation would be 
needed to establish the course of increased reporting of streetscene issues; 
how the use of area board grants is monitored; that question on the appropriate 
use of crime statistics should be directed through the Police and Crime Panel; 
how the risk register is reviewed and updated. 
 
In response to issues raised, Councillor Wickham stated that he would respond 
in writing as to how may parishes had produced emergency plans and would 
consider how best to address the issues of data protection in sharing 
information about vulnerable people. 
 
In response to a issues raised, Councillor Toby Sturgis stated that he would 
respond in writing with regard to how carbon reduction is taken into account in 
the risk register; and to provide further figures regarding the cost of planning 
appeals. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note updates and outturns: 
 
1. Against the measures and activities ascribed against the council’s key 

Outcomes; and  

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
2. To the strategic risk register. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The performance framework compiles and monitors outturns in relation to the 
outcomes laid out in Wiltshire Council’s Business Plan. The framework is 
distilled from individual services’ delivery plans. In doing so, it captures the main 
focus of activities of the council against each outcome. 
 
The strategic risk register captures and monitors significant risks facing the 
council: in relation to significant in-service risks facing individual areas, in 
managing its business across the authority generally and in assuring our 
preparedness should a national risk event occur. 
 

75 Draft Statement of Accounts and Revenue Outturn 2016/17 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which advised Cabinet of the 
(unaudited) General Revenue Fund and Housing Revenue Account outturn 
positions for financial year 2016/2017, as well as the position for the Collection 
Fund and Reserves. In addition, the report provided Cabinet with oversight of 
the unaudited Statement of Accounts, including the narrative report. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that a small underspend had been achieved; that the format of the accounts had 
changed to make them more readable; the actions that had been undertaken 
throughout the year to address any overspends. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Ian Thorn, Councillor Philip 
Whitehead stated that given the size and complexity of the finances and 
business of a large authority, an overspend of 1% of the total was within 
expectations. 
 
In response to question on the Housing Revenue Account, it was stated that the 
changes were largely due to better than predicted income collection, and that 
there were plans to invest in and expand social housing for residents. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Gavin Grant regarding the reduction 
in Waste and Recycling, Councillor Bridget Wayman stated that she would 
investigate and provide a written response. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note: 
 
a) The report showing an outturn for the General Revenue Fund and 

HRA, subject to external audit, of an underspend of £0.328 million and 
an underspend of £1.716 million, GRF and HRA respectively. Cabinet 
should note appropriate transfers to the General Revenue Fund and 

Page 11



 
 
 

 
 
 

Earmarked reserves as set out in Sections 22-25 of this report, and 
return to HRA reserves; and 
 

b) The unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2016/2017. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 
As part of its role in ensuring sound financial management and financial 
soundness, Cabinet are required to assess and approve the final revenue 
outturns for 2016/2017 and assess any impact on the longer term financial 
standing of the Authority. 
 

76 Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which asked Cabinet to 
consider a draft Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 for comment before 
final approval is sought from the Audit Committee on 26 July 2016. 
 
Resolved 
 
a. to consider the draft AGS as set out in Appendix 1 and make any 

comments or changes as they see fit; 
 

b. To note that the draft AGS will be revised in the light of any comments 
by Cabinet before final approval by the Audit Committee and 
publication with the Statement of Accounts at the end of July 2016. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To prepare the AGS 2016/17 for publication in accordance with the 
requirements of the Audit and Accounts Regulations. 
 

77 Capital Monitoring Outturn 2016/2017 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which informed Cabinet on the 
final position of the 2016/2017 capital programme, including highlighting budget 
changes.  
 
In response to a question from Councillor Ian Thorn, the s151 officer stated that 
he would give a written response as to the reasons behind the reprogramming 
of the capital budget, and would address, through the Financial Planning Task 
Group the issue of carbon reduction. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Tony Jackson, the s151 officer state 
that, with the exception of the CCTV scheme, all Community Asset Transfers 
had a cost neutral impact on the capital accounts. 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

1. To note the budget movements undertaken to the capital programme 
shown in appendices A and B and the final outturn position of the 
capital programme 2016/2017 shown in appendix A. 
 

2. To also note the reprogramming of £5.018 million between 2016/2017 
and 2017/2018. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To inform Cabinet of the position of the 2016/2017 capital programme as at 
Outturn (31 March 2017), including highlighting any budget changes. 
 

78 Annual Reports on Treasury Management 2016/2017 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which summarised the annual 
performance against the agreed Treasury Management Strategy. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note: 
 
a) The Prudential Indicators, Treasury Indicators and other treasury 

management strategies set for 2016/2017 against actual positions 
resulting from actions within the year as detailed in Appendix A; and 

 
b) The investments during the year in the context of the Annual 

Investment Strategy as detailed in Appendix B. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 
To give members of the Cabinet an opportunity to consider the performance of 
the Council against the parameters set out in the approved Treasury 
Management Strategy for 2016/2017. 
 
This report is required by the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities and the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the 
Public Services. 
 

79 Business Plan 
 
The Leader presented the report which present the council’s draft Business 
Plan for 2017-27 which, itself, sets the council’s overarching strategy for the 
next ten years.  
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
consultation to be undertaken with Overview and Scrutiny and the Public 
Services Board; the continuity with previous plans, including the priorities; that 
the plan sets out the aspirations for the plan; how links to action orientated 
service plans may be made explicit; the role of partnership working, devolution, 
volunteering and digitalisation will play; the opportunities for the council to 

Page 13



 
 
 

 
 
 

charge for certain services on a commercial basis; and the opportunities to build 
capacity with partners and the community to enable them to deliver more. 
 
Councillor Ian Thorn stated that whilst he applauded the aspirations of the plan, 
he would have liked to have seen financial information underpinning the plans 
sustainability. In response, the Leader stated there would be a financial plan 
produced in conjunction with the Business Plan. In response to an issues raised 
by Councillor Thorn, the Leader stated that the issue of Carbon Reduction was 
integral to the business and decisions of the council and did not require a 
separate reference in the plan. 
 
In response to issues raised by Councillor Gavin Grant, the Leader stated that 
the Local Enterprise Board had identified three new stations, Corsham, Royal 
Wootton Bassett, and Wilton, as being of strategic importance to bid for capital 
money from central government; and that the issue of a purpose built University 
for Wiltshire was a clear aspiration for the County but one that could only be 
achieved through significant funding from a business partner and existing 
university. 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree to seek feedback on the draft Business Plan from Overview and 
Scrutiny and other key partners; and 
 
To agree to review feedback at its next meeting on 3 July, in preparation 
for a final draft to be considered at Full Council on 11 July 2017. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To enable views to be submitted as part of the consultation process. 
 

80 Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which sought: approval for the 
Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan; and delegated authority to make 
arrangements for its consultation and the next steps. 
 
The Leader noted that the following people had submitted questions and 
statements that would be responded to in due course: Al Wright, Richard 
Greenwood, Nick Parker and Cllr Tony Jackson. 
 
The following members of the public made representations to the public at the 
meeting: George Bunting, Cllr Roger Evans, Mr Hill, Bill Johnson, Cllr Bob 
Price, Janice Cadby, and Lance Allen. 
 
Issues raised by members of the public included: concern that proposals would 
negatively impact on the rural character of communities outside towns; the 
desire to see brown field sites prioritised; frustration with the slow pace that 
developers progress existing sites with permission; the impact of new 
development on elderly residents; how developing neighbourhood planning 

Page 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

documents would be taken into account; the impact of proposals on wildlife; the 
need for sufficient infrastructure that would be required to meet the needs of 
new residents; and whether a planned new town would meet the needs for new 
development. 
 
A question was put by Cllr Francis Morland, regarding concerns about spatial 
planning process, the completions of dwellings and the shortfall in the housing 
market area, to which the Leader stated that a written answer would be given. 
 
In response to the issues raised, Councillor Sturgis urged the public to 
participate fully in the consultation process and asked that any alternatives to 
the proposals be presented with evidence. The Leader, outlining the steps to be 
taken as part of the consultation period, also stated that the Council would 
consider additional consultation if it was required in specific areas. 
 
Councillor Steve Oldrieve spoke to raise his concerns about the proposals 
particularly as he felt that it appeared that greenfield sites appeared to be 
prioritised. 
 
Councillor Horace Prickett spoke and outlined how he felt proposals that 
affected his communities were in conflict with the existing Local Planning 
policies. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Jon Hubbard, Councillor Sturgis 
clarified that the plans could be subject to changes at the Cabinet and the 
Council meetings, but that any major changes would require further consultation 
and evidence before the were sent to the Inspector appointed by the Secretary 
of State. 
 
Councillor Chuck Berry, as Cabinet Member for Housing, outlined the benefits 
derived from further development. He also stated that if people wanted to lobby 
government to express their frustration with regard to delayed developments, 
then they should contact their MP. 
The Leader closed the debate by thanking those for attending the meeting, and 
urging people to contribute further to the consultation. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To approve the Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan, as set 

out in Appendix 1, for consultation, subject to amendment in (ii); and 
 

2. To authorise the Associate Director for Economic Development and 
Planning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Strategic Asset Management to: make any necessary minor changes 
to the Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan in the interests of 
clarity and accuracy before it is published; make arrangements for, 
and undertake statutory consultation for a 10 week period starting 
during the week commencing 10 July 2017. 

 
Reason for Decision: 

Page 15



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
To ensure that progress continues to be made on maintaining an up-to-date 
development plan for Wiltshire, in line with the Council’s Local Development 
Scheme and statutory requirements. In accordance with legislative 
requirements, following the consultation, Council will need to approve the 
submission of the Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan to the Secretary 
of State for examination. 
 

81 Recommissioning of the Wiltshire Substance Misuse Service 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which sought approval from 
Cabinet to go to market to commission a single adult Substance Misuse Service 
for Wiltshire and Swindon. In presenting his report, Councillor Wickham 
confirmed that Swindon has given their commitment to undertake the joint 
procurement. 
 
The Cabinet agreed to consider the decision in part ii of the meeting to allow 
them to take into account the financial information contained in the report made 
exempt from publication. 
 

82 Wiltshire Domestic Abuse Support Services Procurement 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which sought agreement from 
Cabinet to the procurement of an integrated Wiltshire Domestic Abuse Support 
service, including refuge support services. The current contracts expire 31 
March 2018. 
 
Councillor Wickham confirmed, in response to a question from Councillor Ian 
Thorn, that all genders would be covered by the service. 
 
The Cabinet agreed to consider the decision in part ii of the meeting to allow 
them to take into account the financial information contained in the report made 
exempt from publication. 

83 Proposed Alignment of Council Structure to the New Business Plan 
 
The Leader presented the report which sought Cabinet’s approval to take steps 
to make changes to the senior management structure of the council at tier 1 
following discussion with the current corporate directors to ensure the 
necessary strategic capacity is in place to deliver a proposed new business plan 
for 2017-2027. 
 
The Leader stated that as there were no questions on the paper considered in 
part ii of the meeting, she would move directly to consider the exclusion of the 
press and public. 
 
 
Resolved 
 
To considers the proposed alignment of council structure at tier 1, to the 
new business plan for 2017 - 2021. 

Page 16



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The continued reduction in funding from central government, and the increasing 
demands that we face for our key frontline services, means that a new business 
plan for 2017 – 2027 will continue to focus on the vision and improvements in 
the delivery of services to the communities and businesses across Wiltshire. 
 
A key aspect in the delivery of the priorities is continuing our collaborative 
working with communities, partners and businesses. A number of programmes 
including the integration of adult social care and health, early intervention and 
prevention to protect those who are most vulnerable, and continue to grow the 
economy of Wiltshire. 
 
We need to ensure that the council has a structure that is aligned to the delivery 
of the business plan priorities, and provides the strategic capacity and resilience 
to continue to meet the challenges ahead. 
 
A proposed change in the senior management structure at tier 1 will provide the 
strategic capacity and resilience to deliver the priorities in the new business 
plan and the challenges ahead. 
 

84 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

85 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items of 
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking the item in private: 
 
Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
 
Paragraph 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
No representations have been received as to why this item should not be held 
in private 
 

86 Wiltshire Domestic Abuse Support Services Procurement (Part II) 

Page 17



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which sought authority to 
undertake a procurement process of the Wiltshire Domestic Abuse Support 
Services, currently commissioned jointly by the Local Authority and Office for 
the Police and Crime Commissioner. 
 
Following a short debate, and an opportunity for questions, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree to undertake a procurement process to provide domestic abuse 
support services for a 5 year agreement (3+2). 

 

To delegate authority for award of contract resulting from this tendering 
process the Corporate Director, in consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Public Health & Public Protection, the Associate Director Legal & 
Governance and the Associate Director Finance. 
 
To delegate authority to enter into the new domestic abuse support 
services contract resulting from the tendering activity to the Corporate 
Director 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, Local Authorities have the duty to 
reduce health inequalities and improve the health of their local population. 
 
Domestic abuse is a complex issue, recognised as a key public health priority. 
Rarely an isolated incident, domestic abuse is a pattern of sustained behaviours 
that violate human rights, significantly impacting on population’s health and 
wellbeing. 
 
This procurement proposal looks to reduce the significant burden of harm and 
address the economic and emotional costs caused by domestic abuse. 
 

87 Recommissioning of the Wiltshire Substance Misuse Service (Part II) 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which provided the financial 
context to support the Wiltshire Substance Misuse Service recommissioning 
paper considered in part i. 
 
Following a short debate, and an opportunity for questions, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To approve the commencement of a tendering process; subject to 

Swindon also securing necessary approvals, to commission a new 
pan Wiltshire adult substance misuse treatment service for a 3 year 
agreement (2018- 21), with the ability to extend for 2 further years. 

Page 18



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
2. To approve the inclusion of a supported housing lot in addition to the 

main contract specification. 
 

3. To delegate authority for award of contract resulting from this 
tendering process the Corporate Director, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Public Health & Public Protection, the Associate 
Director Legal & Governance and the Associate Director Finance 
where the resulting contracts are within the financial envelope set out 
within the Financial Implications section. 

 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, Local Authorities have the duty to 
reduce health inequalities and improve the health of their local population by 
ensuring that there are public health services aimed at reducing drug and 
alcohol misuse. In order to meet the April 1st 2018 deadline there is now the 
necessity to begin the commissioning process. This will enable the council to 
continue to support thousands of Wiltshire residents wishing to improve their 
health, whilst ensuring Wiltshire is one of the safest counties in the country. 
 
The proposal to collaborate with partners from Swindon Borough Council, will 
lead to significant savings; whilst improved joint working will offer economies of 
scale and in turn enable a high quality substance misuse service to continue to 
be available for Wiltshire residents. 
 

88 Proposed Alignment of Council Structure to the New Business Plan (Part 
II) 
 
The Leader presented the report which sought Cabinet’s approval to take steps 
to make changes to the senior management structure of the council at tier 1 
following discussion with the current corporate directors to ensure the 
necessary strategic capacity is in place to deliver a proposed new business plan 
for 2017-2027. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To approve the proposed changes to the structure of the council at 

the top tier (corporate director) and as outlined in appendix 1 and 
paragraphs 10 & 11, on the understanding that the alignment of 
services below that level will be determined by corporate directors 
following discussion and agreement with the head of paid service, and 
after consultation with the Leader and Cabinet. 
 

2. To recommend that Full Council approves the proposed changes to 
the designation of the statutory roles outlined in paragraphs 14 – 22. 
48.  

Page 19



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
3. To note that: 

 
I. Initial consultation on proposals to implement a new structure will 

start week immediately. 
 

II. Once a new structure is confirmed following consultation, that 
steps to redeploy the current corporate directors into posts in 
the new structure will take place. 

 
III. Mrs Carolyn Godfrey, corporate director, has outlined her intention 

to retire from the council in October 2017. As a result she be 
redeployed into an interim corporate director role as part of the 
redeployment process while steps to recruit to the corporate 
director roles for adult care & public health (DASS) and 
corporate director children & education (DCS) take place. Mrs 
Godfrey will remain in this interim role until October 2017 while 
recruitment to these roles takes place. 

 
IV. Steps to advertise the vacant posts will be taken following 

completion of the redeployment process and, with the exception 
of the joint post with the CCG, the vacancies will be advertised 
internally only in the first instance, in line with the council’s 
recruitment & selection policy and procedure, following which 
an external recruitment exercise will take place if there are no 
suitable internal candidates. 

 
V. In the case of the joint corporate director for adult care & health this 

post will be advertised externally in line with NHS requirements. 
The appointment will be done jointly with the CCG governing 
body in line with the relevant policies, procedures and 
constitutional requirements, and an agreement will need to be 
developed to provide a governance framework for such a 
working arrangement. 

 
VI. It will be the responsibility of the Head of Paid Service to work with 

the Leader, Cabinet and Corporate Directors on all aspects of 
the statutory responsibilities of the role. 

 
VII. A further report to Cabinet in the autumn will provide an update on 

the progress of a re-structure at tier 2 to align services with the 
new tier 1 senior management structure and proposed new 
business plan for 2017 – 2027. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The continued reduction in funding from central government, and the increasing 
demands that we face for our key frontline services, means that a new business 
plan for 2017 – 2027 will continue to focus on the vision and improvements in 
the delivery of services to the communities and businesses across Wiltshire. 

Page 20



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
A key aspect in the delivery of the priorities is continuing our collaborative 
working with communities, partners and businesses. A number of programmes 
including the integration of adult social care and health, early intervention and 
prevention to protect those who are most vulnerable, and continue to grow the 
economy of Wiltshire. 
 
We need to ensure that the council has a structure that is aligned to the delivery 
of the business plan priorities, and provides the strategic capacity and resilience 
to continue to meet the challenges ahead. 
 
A proposed change in the senior management structure at tier 1 will provide the 
strategic capacity and resilience to deliver the priorities in the new business 
plan and the challenges ahead. 
 
Admin Notes: 
 
The report, considered in part ii of the meeting, had been made exempt from 
publication, but following the decision this has now been published. 
 
During consideration of exempt information, the only officers present were: the 
Monitoring Officer; the Head of Human Resources, and the Democratic 
Governance Manager. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30 am - 1.55 pm) 

 
These decisions were published, earlier, on the 23 June 2017 and will come into 

force on 3 July 2017 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Yamina Rhouati of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718024, e-mail Yamina.Rhouati@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct lines (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 6 JUNE 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr David Halik, 
Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Simon Jacobs, 
Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr John Walsh, 
Cllr Graham Wright, Cllr Anna Cuthbert (Substitute) and Cllr Roy While (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr John Thomson, Cllr 
Stuart Wheeler and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
  

 
40 Election of Chairman 

 
Nominations were sought for a Chairman and following a proposal from 
Councillor Alan Hill, seconded by Councillor Christine Crisp, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Councillor Graham Wright as Chairman for the forthcoming 
year. 
 

41 Election of Vice-Chairman 
 
Nominations were sought for a Vice-Chairman and following a proposal from 
Councillor Graham Wright, seconded by Councillor Christine Crisp, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Councillor Alan Hill as Vice-Chairman for the forthcoming year. 
 

42 Apologies 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Howard Greenman and Pip Ridout. 
 
Councillor Greenman was substituted by Councillor Anna Cuthbert, and 
Councillor Ridout was substituted by Councillor Roy While. 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 
 
 

 
 
 

43 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2017 were received and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

44 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

45 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Through the Chair it was announced there would be a 1 minute’s silence held at 
11:00 as a mark of respect to those affected by the recent terrorist attack in 
London. 
 
It was also announced the Communities and Local Government Select 
Committee Enquiry into Overview and Scrutiny in Local Government, to which 
the council and had submitted a response, had concluded its work for the 
Parliament as a result of the early General Election. A new Committee would 
need to decide if it wished to continue the Enquiry following the election. 
 

46 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

47 The Work of Overview and Scrutiny Under The Previous Council 
 
A report was received outlining the work of Overview and Scrutiny in the 
previous council prior to the May 2017 Local Elections, including ongoing work 
recommended for inclusion in a new work programme, task group 
recommendations, the development of Overview and Scrutiny and referral of a 
motion from Full Council. 
 
The Committee discussed the report and was content to approve the legacy 
topics recommended by the previous committee, as well as continuing the 
practice of holding early discussions between select committee chairmen/vice-
chairmen with members of the Executive and directors in order to improve 
forward planning and beneficial levels of scrutiny engagement at appropriate 
times. 
 
The Committee discussed the number of task groups which had been reporting 
directly to the management committee, and were supportive retaining the task 
groups in relation to Financial Planning, the Military-Civilian Integration 
Partnership, and the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership. It was 
also agreed that the scope of the MyWiltshire System Task Group be expanded 
to include wider aspects of digital strategy and implementation. Following 

Page 24



 
 
 

 
 
 

discussion, it was also agreed to establish a task group under the Management 
Committee to consider the structure and procedures of planning committees. 
 
Membership of these task groups, as well as appointment to the Constitution 
Focus Group and Wiltshire Online Project Board, would be determined by the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman following expressions of interest from councillors. 
 
It was noted that Full Council had received a motion on 21 February 2017 in 
relation to single use plastics, which had been referred to the Committee for 
consideration. Following discussion, it was agreed the matters raised in the 
motion should be scrutinised and the motion was referred to the Environment 
Select Committee for consideration on how best to scrutinise the issues. 
 
In discussing engagement with Overview and Scrutiny, the Committee 
suggested that all members be reminded of the various methods for items to be 
brought to the attention of Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
Finally, in consideration of the agenda supplement, it was agreed to consider 
topics raised by members during the councillor induction, following the next 
meeting of the Committee. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. To approve the legacy topics listed in Appendix A for inclusion in the new 

OS work programme and to advise the select committees accordingly. 

 

2. To support early discussions between select committee chairmen / vice-

chairmen with the Executive and directors to gain a more informed 

understanding about key priorities and projects following council 

agreement of the new Business Plan. 

 

3. To agree to re-establish the task group structure at the conclusion of the 

previous Management Committee as follows (Appendix B): 

 Financial Planning Task Group 

 Military-Civilian Integration (MCIP) Task Group 

 Swindon & Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Task Group 

      …appointing existing memberships where appropriate. 

 

4. To amend the My Wiltshire System Task Group’s name to the “Digital 

Strategy and Implementation Task Group” and its terms of reference to: 

“To scrutinise and support the development of the council’s Digital 

Strategy and its implementation” 

 

Page 25



 
 
 

 
 
 

5. To authorise the Chairman and Vice-chairman to name councillors to fill 

vacancies on Management Committee task groups following expressions 

of interest. 

 

6. To establish a task group to review the council’s planning committee 

system, with the chairman and vice-chairman authorised to take the work 

forward on behalf of the committee. 

 

7. To authorise the Chairman and Vice-Chairman to appoint representatives 
to the following bodies following expressions of interest: 

 Wiltshire Online Project Board 

 Constitution Focus Group 
 

8. Following consideration of a Notice of Motion referred by Full Council, to 

support further scrutiny of the topic of waste plastic management in 

Wiltshire to be undertaken by the Environment Select Committee. 

 

9. To note the areas for OS’s development highlighted under the previous 

council and to include these in any review of OS’s approach and 

effectiveness in the new council, to take place within six months of this 

meeting. 

 

10. To authorise the Chairman and Vice-chairman to re-visit the 4-year OS 

L&D programme to ensure it remains fit for purpose, reflects identified 

needs and is deliverable with the available resources, with proposals 

brought back to Committee as appropriate. 

 

11. To welcome the issues raised at the OS induction event (included in 

Appendix D in the Agenda Supplement) and to review these following 

consideration of the new council Business Plan and the agreed meetings 

between Executive members and directors. 

 

12. To ensure all non-executive members are aware of the formal routes 

available to raise issues for scrutiny attention. 

 
48 Legacy Report of the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

(SWLEP) Joint Task Group 
 
A legacy report from the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise (SWLEP) Joint 
Task Group was received. It was highlighted this was a joint task group with 
Swindon Borough Council, and that the SWLEP was responsible for spending 
more than £170m of public money, and that the Departments of Communities 
and Local Government, and Business, Industry and Skills, considered it good 
practice that the councils were seeking to scrutinise the SWLEP in that way, the 

Page 26



 
 
 

 
 
 

first councils to do so. The SWLEP Board meetings, now held in public, also 
made reference to the task group and its work. 
 
It was acknowledged it was not an easy topic to scrutinise, but that it was a 
worthwhile topic to move forward. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. To note the work to date of the SWLEP Joint Task Group as detailed in 

this report. 

 

2. To agree Option 1 of the report as the route to continue scrutiny of the 

Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) in the 

form of the SWLEP Joint Task Group. 

 

3. To recommend that the new membership of the SWLEP Joint Task 

Group agree their future work programme, taking into consideration 

the suggested key topic areas noted in paragraph 21 of this report. 

 
49 Review of the Overview and Scrutiny Councillor Induction 2017 

 
A report was received on the induction sessions for new and returning 
councillors following the May 2017 Local Elections, in particular seeking any 
feedback on the sessions dedicated to Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
The Committee discussed their experiences of the induction, including content, 
location of training and timing of sessions and the suitability for as many 
members as possible. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note all comments received. 
 

50 Overview and Scrutiny Member Remuneration 2016/17 
 
A report was received on the application of the Overview and Scrutiny 
remunerations scheme for 2016/17, as agreed with the Committee’s former 
Chairman.  
 
Resolved: 
 

1. To note the allocation of the OS Remuneration fund for 2016/17 as 

detailed in the appendix to the report. 

 
2. To note that the Scheme will be included in the wider review of 

councillors’ allowances scheduled for September. 

 
 

Page 27



 
 
 

 
 
 

51 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as the extraordinary meeting on 21 
June 2017 to consider the draft Business Plan for 2017-2027. 
 
The date of the next ordinary meeting was confirmed as 26 September 2017. 
 

52 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.40 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott (Senior Democratic 
Services Officer) of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 718504, e-mail 

kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 28



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 21 JUNE 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Howard Greenman, 
Cllr David Halik, Cllr Alan Hill (Vice Chairman), Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, 
Cllr Simon Jacobs, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr John Walsh, 
Cllr Graham Wright (Chairman), Cllr Peter Fuller (Substitute) and Cllr David Jenkins 
(Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr Philip 
Whitehead, Cllr Jerry Wickham, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Nick Murry, Cllr Ashley 
O'Neill and Cllr Steve Oldrieve 
  

 
53 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Jon Hubbard, Jacqui Lay and Pip 
Ridout. 
 
Councillor Hubbard was substituted by Councillor David Jenkins. Councillor 
Ridout was substituted by Councillor Peter Fuller. 
 

54 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

55 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman announced that following the first meetings of three of the four 

scrutiny committees,  an email had been sent to all non-executive members 

advertising vacancies on task groups and other ad hoc OS activities. These 

included new activities with no memberships in place as well as historic 

activities where one or two vacancies have arisen following the local elections. 

The Chairman encouraged all members to idnicate their interest in participarting 

as soon as possible. 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

With the agreement of the Commtitee it was also announced that the aegnda 

order would be amended, to take the draft Business Plan and proposed 

alignment of the council staff structure ahead of consideration of the draft Digital 

Strategy. 

 
56 Public Participation 

 
There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

57 Wiltshire Council Draft Business Plan 2017-2027 
 
The Business Plan is a policy framework document which sets the council’s 
strategic direction, priorities and key actions. The last Business Plan was 
approved at the start of the previous council’s term and ran from 2013-2017. A 
new draft Business Plan had been prepared by the administration following the 
May 2017 local elections, with a plan period of 2017-2027. 
 
The Leader of the Council, Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, presented the draft 
plan along with a report received by Cabinet on 20 June 2017. She explained 
that the draft plan built on and extended the vision and goals of the previous 
plans, focusing on the key priorities of building stronger communities, a growing 
economy and protecting the vulnerable. The draft plan also provided a 
framework to ensure the council delivers on its priorities, with regularly reviewed 
multi-year service plans and quarterly updated financial models. 
 
It was explained that Cabinet would be reconsidering the draft plan in light of 
any comments from Overview and Scrutiny as well as other partners on 3 July 
2017, ahead of consideration by Council on 11 July 2017. 
 
The Committee then discussed the draft Business Plan and sought additional 
details from the Leader and senior officers on how the draft plan would deliver 
the key priorities, as contained the report appended to these minutes. In 
particular it was noted that the Business Plan had been produced following the 
election and therefore not much time was allotted for scrutiny, and that the 
context of the plan in conjunction with the medium term financial strategy was of 
continued reductions in government grants. 
 
Other issues included questions on future plans to integrate health and social 
care services and transformation of adult care, details on apprenticeship 
growth, and arrangements for asset transfers to town and parish councils, 
including any potential for detailed guidance on best practice and level of assets 
recommended to be taken on at that level. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1) That the Committee is satisfied with the time and opportunity it has had 
to scrutinise the draft Business Plan 2017-21 and notes that the Plan 
will now go forward to Cabinet and Council for approval. 

 

Page 30



 
 
 

 
 
 

2) That Cabinet be asked to take note of the comments of the Committee 
as detailed in a report to be approved by the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman. 

 
58 Proposed Alignment of Council Structure to the New Business Plan 

 
The Leader of the Council, Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, presented a report 
previously considered confidentially at Cabinet on 20 June 2017, on aligning the 
council’s management structure to ensure it could effectively deliver the 
proposed Business Plan. 
 
It was noted that Wiltshire Council had made significant savings in relation to 
senior management when it eliminated the post of Chief Executive and reduced 
the number of Corporate and Associate Directors. The current model was for 
three Corporate Directors and thirteen Associate Directors, though interim 
arrangements had been in place since one of the Corporate Directors left the 
council in September 2016. The Leader requested her and the council’s thanks 
be noted to the current Corporate Directors, Carolyn Godfrey and Dr Carlton 
Brand, and the Committee shared and endorsed this. 
 
It was explained that discussions and analysis had shown that two Corporate 
Directors was not sufficient as a long term arrangement to deliver the strategic 
aims of the council and its Business Plan, and that in particular combined with 
the growing need to integrate health and social care services, it was felt that 
increasing the number to four Corporate Directors would deliver the most 
effective and efficient structure. It was also proposed that a single officer at 
Associate Director level hold the statutory post of Head of Paid Service, rather 
than rotate the role between Corporate Directors as with the current 
arrangements. 
 
The Committee discussed the report from the Leader, noting that one Corporate 
Director role would be a joint appointment with the Clinical Commissioning 
Group to reflect the growing integration and partnership, and details were 
sought on the nature of the role, confirming it would have equal standing and 
salary as the other senior roles. 
 
During discussion it was confirmed it was legal for the Head of Paid Service 
position to not be held by an officer in the top tier position of a structure, and 
Wiltshire had previously operated under such an arrangement. Details were 
also sought on any implications for the numbers of Associate Directors, and it 
was explained there would be a review of the roles following appointment of the 
Corporate Director posts, which included two new posts and an additional 
vacancy when Carolyn Godfrey left the organisation in the autumn of 2017. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note and support the proposed alignment of the council structure to 
the new Business Plan. 
 
 

Page 31



 
 
 

 
 
 

59 Draft Wiltshire Council Digital Strategy 2017-21 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee received a presentation in 
January 2016 on the development of the MyWiltshire system, a system to 
enable the public and officers to remotely report a range of issues to be 
resolved. Following this, the Committee established the MyWiltshire System 
Task Group with terms of reference to consider and contribute to the 
development of the system, focusing on customer experience; system scope; 
development and resourcing; and councillor interface. On 6 June 2017 
Management Committee re-established the MyWiltshire System Task Group as 
the Digital Strategy and Implementation Task Group with amended terms of 
reference to focus on the wider issue of the council’s Digital Strategy. 
 
Councillor Howard Greenman, a member of the Task Group, presented its 
report following an initial meeting to consider the draft Digital Strategy. The 
Task Group was recommending a number of points be considered by the 
relevant Cabinet Member for the draft, and that the Task Group continue its 
work to monitor implementation of the Strategy. 
 
The Cabinet Member with responsibility for IT, Councillor Philip Whitehead, was 
in attendance with the Portfolio Holder for IT, Councillor Ashley O’Neill, and 
responded to the report of the Task Group, welcoming its recommendations. He 
noted that the Digital Strategy was about transforming the way the council 
performed many of its functions to better meet customer needs, giving an 
example of 75% of those who had renewed their Green Waste bin online, did so 
after 7pm, when under historic methods could not have occurred. He 
emphasised that those unable or unwilling to use digital methods or new 
technology would still be able to contact the council in the same ways as 
presently, but that the more work that could be undertaken digitally would free 
up resources to help those people, as well as making significant financial 
savings. 
 
The Committee discussed the report, with reassurance sought that the digital 
infrastructure, data definitions and IT system foundations of the council were 
sufficient to cope with any planned expansion of public facing systems. 
Questions were also raised on commercialisation, and it was stated some local 
authorities carried ads on their websites, although such a step would need to be 
considered very carefully. It was also stated through partnership working, for 
example with Wiltshire Police, partner organisations could be charged for 
utilising Wiltshire Council systems, and there may be more opportunities, within 
reason. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To continue the work of the Digital Strategy and Implementation Task 
Group as a standing task group and for it to receive the draft tender 
document and regular updates on the progress of the Digital Strategy and 
its implementation. 

Page 32



 
 
 

 
 
 

And to endorse the recommendations of the Task Group as follows: 
 

1) To ensure that feedback from users is collected and reflected in the 
development of the new system to ensure that the system is 
designed to be accessible to all customers. 
 

2) To amend the governance structure diagram to demonstrate where 
users are engaged and where user feedback is considered and 
applied. 
 

3) To include, if endorsed, the Digital Strategy and Implementation 
Task Group in the governance structure. 

  
4) To ensure that the Digital Strategy project clearly outlines the key 

project milestones and their anticipated timescale. 
 

5) To make clear in the Digital Strategy that the digital assessments 
process will be performed with support from the project team, and 
to encourage a proactive approach which works with service 
leaders to implement the Digital Strategy. 

 
60 Date of Next Meeting 

 
The date of the next scheduled meeting was confirmed as 26 September 2017. 
 

61 Urgent Items 
 
In light of recent events in Kensington, the Chairman permitted a question on 
the status of emergency planning for disasters in Wiltshire. The Cabinet 
Member for Adult Social Care, Public Health and Public Protection, Councillor 
Jerry Wickham, provided details of the regular meetings between the council 
and partners such as the police, as well as rehearsals for specific tragic 
scenarios and agreements with bodies such as the Red Cross. 
 
It was agreed a report would be provided at the next meeting on the processes 
for emergency preparation in Wiltshire, and the status of current plans. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

(Duration of meeting:  9.30 am - 12.10 pm) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott (Senior Democratic 
Services Officer) of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 718504, e-mail 

kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



APPENDIX to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Minutes of 21 June 2017 

Wiltshire Council          
  
Cabinet 3 July 2017 
 
Council 11 July 2017 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee  

Report on the Draft Business Plan 2017-2027 
 
Purpose of report 
 

1. To report to Cabinet and Full Council a summary of the main issues discussed at the 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee held on 21 June 2017. 

 
Background 
 

2. The Business Plan is a policy framework document which sets the council’s strategic 
direction, priorities and key actions. 
 

3. The meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee provided an 
opportunity for non-executive councillors to question the Leader of the Council and 
senior officers on the draft Business Plan 2017-2027 ahead of final consideration by 
Cabinet on 3 July 2017 and Full Council on 11 July 2017. 

 
4. The Leader of the Council, Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, supported by Dr Carlton 

Brand, Corporate Director, and other members of the Executive, was in attendance to 
present the draft Business Plan and to provide clarification and answers to issues and 
queries raised by the Committee. 

 
5. Details included in the introduction from the Leader and the Corporate Director had 

included but were not limited to: 
 

• That the draft Business Plan built upon and extended previous versions, reflecting 
on priority areas following the recent election 

• That significant external challenges, particularly in relation to reduced funding and 
increased pressures in key areas, required changes to the way the council 
operated and the draft plan reflected this. 

• The key priorities of creating stronger communities, a growing economy and 
protecting the vulnerable remained, with corporate planning cycles for service 
plans and reviews to ensure these were delivered. 
 

Main issues raised during questioning and debate 
 

6. The Chairman invited the Chairmen of the Select Committees to lead off discussion, 
before opening to general queries. Points raised together with any responses are 
provided in the following paragraphs. 
 

7. Details were sought on the intention to integrate health and social care, in particular 
the emphasis on personalisation of care and safeguarding services. It was stated 
some people would always have difficulty accessing services they needed, and an 
adult care transformation programme had begun to identify how resources could be 

Page 7

Minute Item 57

Page 35



APPENDIX to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Minutes of 21 June 2017 

focused best on those who need them while still being affordable. It was also noted 
that it was intended for there to be a joint Corporate Director between Wiltshire 
Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group, and that at lower levels there needed 
to be further partnerships to deliver integrated services.  
 

8. Questions were raised relating to the transfer of assets to town and parish councils, 
and it was stated that in the financial climate it was the case that if towns and 
parishes chose or were unable to take on management of some assets, some 
services would need to cease. It was argued that towns and parishes were better 
able to identify local needs for particular services and assets, and better able to 
justify precept rises to pay for those local services and assets, and manage them 
efficiently. 
 

9. It was noted that the process of transferring assets, as for example with the 
Salisbury City Council CCTV, had been very expensive and time-consuming, and 
work was taking place to attempt to simplify the process considerably, with a revised 
asset transfer policy to be presented to Cabinet later in the year. Additionally, some 
members considered it would be beneficial if a template financial model or best 
practice guide between Wiltshire Council and towns and parishes were produced, 
giving all parties a clearer view of what was considered to be an appropriate level of 
assets or services to be managed or paid for at town and parish level. This was also 
raised in relation to area board grants, and the expectations that towns and parish 
contribute to projects within their area rather than rely on the area board and focus 
purely on keeping precepts low, rather than on delivering services for their areas, 
and that application forms for grants should further emphasise towns and parishes. 
 

10. The lack of any specific comment on carbon emission reduction and other 
environmental issues was raised during debate. In response it was stated that it was 
already council policy to make its buildings environmentally friendly, there was a 
carbon management plan in place, all Cabinet reports had sections for 
environmental sustainability and the Core Strategy had policies in relation to 
environmental issues. 
 

11. The ongoing financial situation was discussed and how well the Business Plan could 
deliver on its aims and priorities as a result, with some members feeling that 
Wiltshire had not historically received a good deal from central government. In 
response it was stated lobbying on Wiltshire’s behalf always took place, and the 
principal issue was the assessment of needs, and that Wiltshire believed a greater 
emphasis should be placed on rurality and associated costs, and the increase in 
elderly population and attendant increase on specific services. 
 

12. The need to work in partnership with other bodies in order to deliver the aims and 
priorities was raised, and potential difficulties for example with increasing numbers of 
individual academies. 
 

13. Other issues included whether youth services had a high enough priority, rail 
strategies as part of stronger communities, whether the council’s prioritisation of key 
services had been appropriately communicated, housing strategies for Looked After 
Children as part of protecting the vulnerable, and whether the council could lead the 
way with even more apprenticeships especially for former children in care. 
 

Page 8Page 36



APPENDIX to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Minutes of 21 June 2017 

14. In summary, it was felt that the Business Plan was an aspirational document with 
appropriate priorities and themes, and that it would be necessary to monitor progress 
in its delivery by all Select Committees. 

 
Conclusion 
 

15. That the Committee is satisfied with the time and opportunity it has had to scrutinise 
the draft Business Plan 2017-21 and notes that the Plan will now go forward to 
Cabinet and Council for approval. 
 

16. That Cabinet be asked to take note of the comments of the Committee as detailed in 
this report. 
 

Councillor Graham Wright 
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 

Report Author: Kieran Elliott, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 01225 718504 or 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
 27 June 2017  

Page 9Page 37

mailto:kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 13 
JUNE 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Mary Douglas, 
Cllr Sue Evans, Cllr David Halik, Cllr Jon Hubbard (Chairman), Cllr Chris Hurst, 
Cllr Jacqui Lay (Vice-Chair), Cllr Hayley Spencer, Cllr Roy While, Ms J Hughes, 
Miss Tracy Cornelius, Mr J Hawkins, Miss Cathy Shahrokni and Cllr Stewart Dobson 
(Substitute) 
  

 
32 Election of Chairman 

 
Nominations were sought for the position of Chairman for the municipal year 
2017/18. Cllr Jacqui Lay, seconded by Cllr Hayley Spencer, moved that Cllr Jon 
Hubbard be elected as Chairman. 
 
On there being no other nominations, it was 
 
Resolved: 
 
To elect Cllr Jon Hubbard as chairman of the Children’s Select Committee 
for the municipal year 2017/18 
 

33 Election of Vice-Chairman 
 
Nominations were sought for the position of Vice-Chairman for the municipal 
year 2017/18. Cllr Stewart Dobson, seconded by Cllr Jon Hubbard, moved that 
Cllr Jacqui Lay be elected as Vice-Chairman. 
 
On there being no other nominations, it was 
 
Resolved:  
 
To elect Cllr Jacqui Lay as Vice-Chairman of the Children’s Select 
Committee for the municipal year 2017/18. 
 

34 Apologies 
 
Apologies had been received from Cllr Leo Randall, who was substituted at the 
meeting by Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Christopher Devine, Sarah Busby, Dr Mike 
Thompson, and James Wilkins. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
35 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Children’s Select Committee held on 14 
March 2017 were presented and the following amendments were proposed: 
 
To paragraph 22, the addition of the following wording prior to the resolution:  
Members expressed their support for the proposals’ mention of preventing 
family breakdown, which was felt to be a priority area. 
 
To paragraph 28, to change “Children’s Community Centres” to “Children’s 
Centres” wherever the phrase occurred. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2017 as 
a correct record with the amendments as detailed above. 
 

36 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

37 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman welcomed new committee members to their first meeting and 
extended a particular welcome to Jill Hughes, who had been elected as the 
committee’s new Primary Parent Governor Representative. 
 
The Chairman brought to the meeting’s attention that the following items would 
be considered by the meeting of Cabinet on 3 July 2017: Children’s Services 
Integration Project; Adoption Agency Annual Update 2017; Wiltshire Council 
Child Sexual Exploitation Annual Update. 
 

38 Public Participation 
 
No questions or comments had been received. There were no members of the 
public in attendance. 
 

39 The Work of Overview and Scrutiny in the Previous Council 
 
A report was presented detailing the on-going work for overview and scrutiny 
recommended by the previous children’s management committee, and the 
Chairman proposed that the items in the report were adopted as items in the 
forward plan. 
 
It was agreed to recommend the addition of the provision of special schools to 
the work programme, including how they should operate, as this had a become 
a timely issue for consideration. Traded services for schools, and housing 
provision for care-leavers, were raised as other items to be re-visited at a future 

Page 40



 
 
 

 
 
 

meeting for consideration. Members were advised that their interest in 
membership of the committee’s task groups would be sought shortly. 
 
The Chairman proposed that the information briefings on specific services held 
in advance of each committee meeting, be continued. Members of the 
committee welcomed the learning opportunities and informal discussion that 
these briefings afforded, and asked that they continued. The next briefing would 
be on young carers and the Chairman encouraged members to offer 
suggestions for future topics. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To endorse the scheduled committee activity agreed by the OS 
Management Committee, formally re-establishing the relevant task 
groups. 
 
To seek appointment for memberships on the relevant task groups and 
rapid scrutiny exercises and authorise the Chairman and Vice-chairman to 
name members to fill any vacancies following expressions of interest. 
 
To note that a new council Business Plan will be brought to Full Council 
on 11 July, which will be influential in shaping the new OS forward work 
programme. 
 
To support early discussion between the Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
with Cabinet members, portfolio-holders and directors (following adoption 
of the new council Business Plan) to gain a more informed understanding 
about Executive priorities, with outcomes reported back to Committee. 
 

40 Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report 
 
Martin Davis, head of care and placement, presented the report which included 
details of the seven new priorities for Corporate Parenting, as agreed in 2016. 
He provided information on each of the priority areas and concluded that the 
report was a demonstration of progress and that while there was still work to do, 
it presented a promising picture. An induction session had been completed with 
the Corporate Parenting Panel and new strategic leads had been identified who 
would review the report and take the work forward. A new headteacher for the 
virtual school had also been appointed. 
 
In response to questions, the following points were raised and clarified: 
 
That the form of words for priority seven had been chosen by young people in 
care, but that the priority area encompassed community services as well as 
those delivered by Wiltshire Council. Work was on-going to find new ways to 
deliver mental health support in a more accessible and user-friendly way. Work 
had been done to reduce waiting times for council mental health services, partly 
through increased early intervention work, and it was hoped that this would 
have an impact on looked after children. 
 

Page 41



 
 
 

 
 
 

That social isolation had come out as a key priority for young people leaving 
care and that a focus had been put on integrating young people with their 
communities and services. 
 
That retention of foster carers was affected by a range of factors, but that in 
comparison to other local authorities, Wiltshire Council had a good rate of 
retention. 
 
That the relationship between the virtual school and mainstream education 
providers would be reviewed and refreshed to ensure the it was effective in 
delivering positive academic outcomes for young people in care. There was a 
need for further work to improve the way progress was measured on a cohort 
level as well as on an individual basis, and to consider examples of good 
practice in spending pupil premium funding. 
 
That young people were involved in the work of the Corporate Parenting Panel 
and that their views would be continue to be incorporated into the reports taken 
to the children’s select committee. 
 
The Chairman thanked the officer for his report 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note and endorse the draft Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report. 
 

41 DfE Changes - Update from Department for Education 
 
Carolyn Godfrey, Corporate Director, presented the report of developments 
from the Department of Education relating to children’s services, and explained 
that new policy changes could be following the recent general election. There 
were no questions 
 
The Chairman thanked the corporate director for her report 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update provided. 
 

42 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Chairman presented the work programme which included one scheduled 
item for the next meeting of the committee. He explained that the work 
programme would be updated to include the topics discussed and agreed 
earlier in the meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the forward work programme and populate using the endorsed 
topics from the Children’s Select Committee Legacy Report taken in item 
8. 

Page 42



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
43 Date of Next Meeting 

 
The Chairman thanked everyone for their attendance and reminded members 
that the next meeting would be on Tuesday 5th September 2017 at County Hall, 
Trowbridge, starting at 10.30am. Members were reminded that an information 
briefing on young carers would commence prior to this at 9.30am. 
 

44 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.30 - 3.54 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718063, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 13 
JUNE 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Sarah Gibson, 
Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Ian McLennan, 
Cllr Nick Murry, Cllr Steve Oldrieve, Cllr Sue Evans (Substitute), Cllr Jose Green 
(Substitute) and Cllr Mollie Groom (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Alan Hill and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
  

 
16 Election of Chairman 

 
The meeting was introduced by Edmund Blick- Democratic Services Officer, 
who called for nominations for the position of Chairman.  
 
Cllr Matthew Dean was proposed by Cllr Peter Evans, which was seconded by 
Cllr Sue Evans. There were no further nominations.  
 
Resolved: 
Cllr Matthew Dean elected as Chairman by unanimous vote.  
 

17 Election of a Vice-Chairman 
 
The Chairman thanked the Committee for their support in his election and he 
called for nominations for the position of Vice Chairman.  
 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE was proposed by Cllr Stephen Oldrieve, which was 
seconded by Cllr Nick Murray. There were no other nominations.  
 
Resolved: 
Cllr Bob Jones elected as Vice- Chairman by unanimous vote.  
 

18 Apologies 
 
Apologies were received from; Cllr Peter Fuller who was substituted by Cllr Sue 
Evans, Cllr Tony Jackson who was substituted by Cllr Jose Green and Cllr 
Derek Brown who was substituted by Cllr Mollie Groom.  
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

19 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
The minutes of the meeting held on 22 February 2017 were agreed and 
signed as a true and accurate record.  
 

20 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations.  
 

21 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman announced that Agenda Item 9 - Procurement of Housing 
Repairs & Maintenance Service, had been deferred, as it was no longer being 
discussed by Cabinet on Tuesday 20 June 2017. The Chairman signalled that 
this item would return to the Committee, prior to its consideration at Cabinet.   
 
It was also announced that Agenda Item 11 - Forward Work Plan and the 
Agenda Supplement - Notice of Motion: Single-use Plastics, would be moved 
forward in the agenda, so that the appropriate Senior Officers could be present.  
 

22 Public Participation 
 
There were no public questions or speakers.  
 

23 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Chairman introduced the Forward Work Programme, explaining that it 
contained the recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee under the last Council. These recommendations were formed 
following a “legacy process”, which included a councillor workshop event in 
January, ‘end of term’ style reports to the select committees in the Spring, and, 
finally discussion and agreement by Management Committee at its final meeting 
on 28th March.   
 
Attention was also drawn to the Municipal Waste Management Strategy listed 
on page 28 of the agenda pack.  The Chairman raised the proposition of the 
Waste Management Team, that they would like to arrange a seminar, to which 
all Members would be invited, to help inform a wider consultation with the 
public.  
 
A verbal update was given by Tracy Carter- Associate Director for Waste and 
Environment, who explained that the purpose of the seminar would to notify 
members of the current service and ask a series of questions; the responses to 
which would help to inform a wider consultation through area boards and direct 
with residents. 
 
Several Members expressed the view that it was important that the Scrutiny 
Committee was involved throughout the process, and that scrutiny should look 
at the implementation of existing contracts, along with future arrangements. 

Page 46



 
 
 

 
 
 

Tracy Carter, assured Members that the process would be open and 
transparent and that there would be an opportunity for the proposed strategy to 
be scrutinised at all levels. 
 
The Chairman also drew attention to an amendment made by the Management 
Committee in regards to the ‘planning’ item, where it was felt this was a 
governance issue within their remit, rather than that of the Environment Select 
Committee.  
 
The Chairman explained that the proposal was to support the establishment of 
a task group, headed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee, to 
review the council’s planning committee system, of which Environment Select 
Committee Members would be invited, with the Chairman and Vice-chairman 
authorised to bring detailed proposals back to a future meeting. 
 
The point was raised that there could be an opportunity for scrutiny involvement 
in regard to outcomes and delivery around the planning process In the debate 
that followed, it was confirmed that there was a distinction between the issues 
relating to ‘planning process’; such as the administrative procedures (which 
would be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
task group),and the issues of outcomes and delivery; such as poor planning and 
provision of infrastructure, to accommodate large numbers of new homes.  
Members expressed a willingness to approve the proposals in regards to the 
Management Committee’s ‘planning process’ task group, but they voiced an 
interest in addressing the other substantive issue in ‘planning outcomes and 
delivery’. 
 
Resolved: 

1. To support the arrangement of a seminar, to inform all Members of 
the work of the Waste Management Service and allow them to ask 
questions and make proposals for a new strategy, prior to a wider 
public consultation. 

 
2. To: 

a. Support Management Committee’s establishment of the 
Planning Committee System Task Group on 6 June 2017, 
with its Chairman and Vice-chairman authorised to take this 
work forward. 

b. Note that the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Environment 
Select Committee, plus other interested Members, will be 
invited to contribute to discussions of the Task Group’s 
scope. 

 
3. That authority be delegated to the Chair and Vice-Chair, as well as 

Cllrs Lay and Murray, to liaise with relevant officers in regards to 
issues with ‘Planning Outcomes and Delivery’, to consider options 
and then to bring these recommendations back to Committee for 
approval. 

 
 

Page 47



 
 
 

 
 
 

24 Notice of Motion: Single-use Plastics 
 
The Chairman introduced this Supplementary Item, which asked Members to 
review the Notice of Motion and decide whether input from scrutiny could be 
beneficial.  
 
Tracy Carter - Associate Director for Waste and Environment gave a brief 
overview as to the Council’s current approach to recycling plastics and some of 
the options that were being considered.  
 
Members spoke about the issue of single use plastics being a global issue, as 
opposed to a local one. Councillors were clear in offering their approval to an 
improved strategy in this area, but were keen to have the opportunity of 
considering all the relevant information, prior to passing judgement.  
 
The Chairman explained that the options available to the Committee regarding 
scrutinising this item were as follows: 
 

 A report at the next meeting of the Committee 

 A rapid scrutiny exercise 

 Await the outcome of the Waste Management Team’s seminar before 
considering the best approach for scrutiny 

 
Resolved: 
The Committee resolved to await the Councillors’ seminar on the Waste 
Management Strategy before considering scrutiny of waste plastics 
management and to ask the service to include a question on single use 
plastic at the seminar to inform the development of proposals. 
 

25 Wiltshire Council's Resident Engagement Strategy 
 
The Chairman introduced the Item, explaining that it was an update report on 
the progress of Wiltshire Council’s Resident Engagement Strategy and its 
outcome, it having been agreed during 6 June 2016 meeting to provide a further 
update to Committee after 12 months. 
 
James Cawley - Associate Director Adult Care Commissioning & Housing 
provided an update, stating that no decisions had yet been made and that all 
options were still on the table. He referred Members to the details of the report. 
He explained that the strategy would be brought to the Committee for approval, 
once it had been formulated.  
 
Cllr Chuck Berry - Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Housing 
was present and gave his support to the representations made by James 
Cawley.  
 
Members were asked to note the update report. 
 
Resolved: 
To note the update on the Wiltshire Resident Engagement Strategy. 

Page 48



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
26 Procurement of Housing Repairs & Maintenance Service 

 
As mentioned in the Chairman’s Announcements, this item was deferred.  
 
Resolved: 
For the Committee to note that this item will come to a future meeting of 
the Environment Select Committee, prior to consideration at a future 
Cabinet meeting. 
 

27 Re-commissioning of Housing Service Support Contracts Rapid Scrutiny 
Final Report 
 
The Chairman introduced the report and invited James Cawley - Associate 
Director of Adult Care Commissioning & Housing to provide additional 
comments.   
 
Cllr Bridget Wayman - Lead Member for the rapid scrutiny exercise and Cabinet 
Member for Highways, Transport and Waste also spoke in regards to the Final 
Report.  
 
A question was asked as to the potential role of Environment Select Committee 
in monitoring the on-going work of the Housing Service Support Contracts, in 
addition to the work already done under the rapid scrutiny project. It was 
discussed that whilst the role of the Committee was primarily in scrutiny, there 
could be some scope for future monitoring.  
 
Members also asked questions regarding the likely implementation of the 7 
recommendations listed in the report proposals. James Cawley - Associate 
Director of Adult Care Commissioning and Housing, confirmed that there was 
no objection to any of the proposals and the Housing Team would look at 
implementing them all.  
 
The Chairman proposed that the Committee approved the recommendations of 
the Rapid Scrutiny Report. 
 
Resolved: 
That Wiltshire Council’s Cabinet Member for Economic Development and 
Housing note the following recommendations when considering the 
development of the re-commissioning of Housing Service Support 
contracts: 

1. To implement a system of monitoring and management of housing 
related support contracts. 

2. To investigate offering contractors suitable incentives to move 
people on from the Housing Service Support process once they are 
ready. 

3. To regularly review resource demands on the service to ensure that 
the service is meeting up-to-date needs and reacting to any 
changes in demand. 

4. To retain the current high-level offender locations in Wiltshire. 

Page 49



 
 
 

 
 
 

5. To recommission high-risk offender services separately to other 
support services. 

6. To reduce the amount of temporary accommodation with support 
attached from 44 units to 38. 

7. To recommission the domestic abuse services together with public 
health outreach services. 

 
Also, that the Environment Select Committee: 

1. Continues scrutiny engagement in some form with the 
recommission of the Housing Service Support contracts process up 
to 1st April 2018. 

 
28 Urgent Items 

 
There were no urgent items.  
 

29 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was set as Tuesday 19 September 2017.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.40 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Edmund Blick of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718059, e-mail edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 50



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 24 
MAY 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe (Chairman), Cllr Derek Brown OBE (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Tony Trotman and 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis and Cllr Philip Whalley 
  

 
22 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Clare Cape. 

23 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 26 April 2017. 

24 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhe-Philipe declared a non-pecuniary interest in Application Nos 
16/11304/DP4 and 16/11410/LBC – Corsham Mansion House, Pickwick Road, 
Corsham, SN13 9BL as she was responsible in the previous Council’s 
Administration for Economic Development of which Corsham Mansion House 
was a project.   
 
However, she no longer had any responsibility for this function. 

25 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 

26 Public Participation 
 
The rules on public participation were noted. 

27 16/11304/DP4 & 16/11410/LBC - Corsham Mansion House, Pickwick Road, 
Corsham, SN13 9BL - Demolition of the former single-storey Corsham 
Library. New two-storey extension and internal refurbishment to existing 
Grade 2 listed Mansion House, including selective demolition of single-

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

storey elements of the Mansion House, new building single-storey 
entrance lobby, external parking areas, access road, landscaping and 
waste & recycling compound. 
 
Public Participation 
 
The following people spoke against the proposal:- 
 
Mr Neville Farmer, a local resident 
Mr Paul Kefford, a local resident 
Mr Thomas Brakspear, a local resident 
 
The following person spoke in support of the proposal:- 
 
Mr Tim Martienssen, client/applicant, spoke in favour of the proposal. 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the applications, with a recommendation that planning 
permission should be granted and that Listed Building Consent application be 
referred to the Secretary of State with a recommendation that it be granted.   
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as listed above expressing their 
views regarding the applications. 
 
Cllr Phil Whaley, the local Member, spoke in favour of the proposal.   
 
After some discussion, during which Members considered the objections raised 
and also the condition of the Mansion House and its urgent need of attention, 
 
Resolved: 
 
(A) Application 16/11304/DP4  

 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:- 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 

samples of the materials to be used for all new external walls (for 

both the new building as well as any new free-standing walls) and 

roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. Such a submission shall include a sample 

panel to be erected on site for inspection, demonstrating coursing 

Page 52



 
 
 

 
 
 

and mortar mix.   Development shall be carried out in accordance 

with the approved details. 

REASON: The choice of final external materials to be used in this 
development is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of this sensitive location. 
 
3. Prior to the commencement of development, full and complete 

details of all hard and soft landscaping to be created on the site 

shall have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority.  Such details shall include, but not be limited 

to, an identification of the position of any trees proposed to be 

retained and the measures to be employed to secure their 

protection during construction.  The details shall also include an 

identification of all trees to be removed on the site as well as 

timing for those removal works.  Development and landscaping 

shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved 

details. 

REASON: To ensure a suitable hard and soft landscaping scheme for this 
sensitive site and so as to ensure the retention of appropriate trees on the 
site in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
4. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved as part of the 

detailed component of the planning application shall be carried 

out in the first planting and seeding season following the 

completion of the development whichever is the sooner. All 

shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from 

weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. 

Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are 

removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 

replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size 

and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 

planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out 

in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of 

any part of the development or in accordance with a programme to 

be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
5. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first brought 

into use until the access, turning area and parking spaces 

(including car, motorcycle and cycle spaces) have been completed 

Page 53



 
 
 

 
 
 

in accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The 

areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times 

thereafter. 

REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
6. Before the development hereby permitted is first brought into use, 

all first floor windows in the East elevation of the new building 

shall be glazed with obscure glass only.  Those windows shall be 

maintained with obscure glazing in perpetuity. 

REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy of 
neighbouring residential occupiers. 
 
7. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 

the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 

illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the 

appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 

of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 

Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 

approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 

accordance with the approved details and no additional external 

lighting shall be installed.  

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of this sensitive area and to 
minimise unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development 
site. 
 
8. The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into 

use until final details of the arrangements to be made for the 

storage of refuse and recycling from the development, have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority, and; the approved refuse and recycling storage has 

been completed and made available for use in accordance with the 

approved details. The approved refuse and recycling storage shall 

thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved details. 

REASON: In the interests of public health, safety and visual amenity in 
this sensitive location. 
 
9. The development hereby approved shall achieve the BREEAM's 

'Very Good' Standard, and within 3 months of being first occupied 

or brought into use, a post construction stage certificate certifying 

that the 'Very Good' standard has been achieved shall be issued 

Page 54



 
 
 

 
 
 

and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for its written 

approval. 

REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development set 
out policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy are achieved. 
 
10. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 

discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water 

from the access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage 

details, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be first 

brought into use until surface water drainage has been 

constructed in accordance with the approved scheme.  

REASON: The arrangements for the disposal of surface water from the 
development is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that it is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 
11. No development shall commence on site until details of the works 

for the disposal of sewerage including the point of connection to 

the existing public sewer have been submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not 

be first brought into use until the approved sewerage details have 

been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 

REASON: The arrangements for disposal of sewerage from the 
development is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that it is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to ensure that the proposal is provided with a 
satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the risk of flooding 
or pose a risk to public health or the environment. 
 
12. Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed 

management plan for the use of the new offices, car park, external 

patio area and all environs of the site (which would cover 

authorised uses as well as measures to be employed to prevent 

unauthorised use after regular opening hours) shall have been 

submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  At all times the operation of the development shall be 

carried out in complete accordance with that approved 

management plan to be submitted and agreed prior to its first use. 

REASON:  In the interests of ensuring the operation of the development 
does not unduly impact upon the amenities of nearby residential 
properties. 

Page 55



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
13. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans: 

 D-01 P03 Mansion Secondary Entrance Lobby Extension Details 

 D-02 P03 Detail section through link 

 D-03 P02 Detail section through link and extension 

 D-04 P02 Proposed Section C 

 D-05 P01 Link connection plan details 

 D-10 P01 Site Wall Details 

 D-20 P01 Ceiling Details 1 

 D-21 P01 Ceiling Details 2 

 D-22 P01 Ceiling Details 3 

 D-23 P01 Ceiling Details 4 

 D-24 P01 Ceiling Details 5 

 D-25 P01 Ceiling Details 6 

 D-26 P01 Ceiling Details 7 

 E-01 P02 Existing Elevations - The Mansion 

 E-02 P02 Existing Elevations - Library 

 E-10 P02 Proposed Elevations - Extension - North & West 

 E-11 P02 Proposed Elevations - Extension - South & East 

 E-12 P02 Demolition Scope Elevations - The Mansion - North, South 
and East 

 P-0-01 P02 Existing Ground & Basement Plans 

 P-0-04 P02 Existing Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plans – West 
Mansion 

 P-0-05 Existing Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plans – East 
Mansion 

 P-0-06 P02 Existing Zone 4 and Zone 6 Reflected Ceiling Plans – All 
Levels 

 P-0-10 P03 Demolition Scope Ground and Basement Floor Plans 

 P-0-11 P05 Proposed Ground Floor and Basement GA Plans 

 P-0-13 P02 Proposed Ground Floor and Basement Fire Strategy 
Plans 

 P-0-14 P02 Proposed Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plans – West 
Mansion 

 P-0-15 P02 Proposed Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plans – East 
Mansion and Extension 

 P-0-16 P02 Proposed Zone 4 and Zone 6 Reflected Ceiling Plans - 
All Levels 

 P-1-01 P02 Existing First Floor Plan 

 P-1-04 P02 Existing First Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan – West 
Mansion 

 P-1-05 P02 Existing First Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan - East 
Mansion 

 P-1-10 P03 Demolition Scope First Floor Plan 

 P-1-11 P04 Proposed First Floor Plan 

 P-1-13 P02 Proposed First Floor Fire Strategy Plan 

Page 56



 
 
 

 
 
 

 P-1-14 P02 Proposed First Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan – West 
Mansion 

 P-1-15 P02 Proposed First Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan – East 
Mansion and Extension 

 Fire strategy drawings (P-0-13 P03, P-1-13 P03, P-2-13 P03) 

 P-2-01 P02 Existing Second Floor and Attic Plans 

 P-2-04 P02 Existing Second Floor & Attic Reflected Ceiling Plans 

 P-2-10 P02 Demolition Scope Second Floor & Attic Plans 

 P-2-11 P02 Proposed Second Floor & Attic Plan 

 P-2-13 P02 Proposed Second Floor Fire Strategy Plan 

 P-2-14 P02 Proposed Second Floor & Attic Reflected Ceiling Plans 

 P-3-01 P02 Existing Roof Plan 

 P-3-11 P03 Proposed Roof Plan 

 P-Site-01 P02 Site Location Plan 

 P-Site-02 P03 Existing Block Plan 

 P-Site-03 P04 Proposed Site Plan 

 P-Site-04 P02 Existing Street Elevations 

 P-Site-05 P02 Proposed Street Elevations 

 REP01 P01 Design and Access Statement, Heritage Statement 

 REP02 P01 Design Statement Addendum Feb 2017 

 REP05 P01 Services Design Strategy 

 REP06 P01 Enabling Work Schedule 

 S-01 P02 Existing Sections A, B, C & D 

 S-02 P02 Existing Sections E & F 

 S-11 P02 Proposed Sections 

 SK20 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 1 

 SK21 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 2 

 SK22 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 3 

 SK23 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 4 

 SK24 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 5 

 SK25 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 6 

 SK35 P01 Link illustrations 

 SK37 P02 Enabling Works Opening Up Sheet 1 

 SK38 P02 Enabling Works Opening Up Sheet 2 

 SK39 P02 Enabling Works Opening Up Sheet 2 

 SK40 P01 Services Distribution Key Plans 

 SK41 P01 Existing Massing View from Pickwick Road 

 SK42 P01 Proposed Massing View from Pickwick Road 

  

 All received 14/02/17 unless otherwise indicated. 
 
REASON:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
(B) Application 16/11410/LBC 
 

Page 57



 
 
 

 
 
 

To refer the application for Listed Building Consent to the Secretary 
of State for determination with the recommendation that LBC 
should be granted, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The works for which Listed Building Consent is hereby granted 

shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of 

this consent. 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. Prior to the works taking place, a full schedule of repair of the 

Mansion House shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out 

in accordance with the agreed schedule. 

REASON:  To ensure that the repairs to the Mansion House are of a 
suitably quality appropriate to the heritage asset. 
 
3. Prior to the works taking place, final details of ceiling layouts 

affected and service runs created by the necessary mechanical 

and engineering and data cabling installations shall have been 

submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  Development shall be carried out in complete 

accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in 

writing with the Local Planning Authority beforehand. 

REASON:  To ensure that the proposals will minimise impact on the 
historic fabric of the building and, where possible, to allow architectural 
features to continue to be appreciated. 
 
4. Prior to the works taking place, full and complete details of 

proposals for necessary fire protection measures shall have been 

submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  The works shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details.  

REASON:  To ensure that the proposals will minimise impact on the 
historic fabric of the building and, where possible, to allow architectural 
features to continue to be appreciated. 
 
5. Prior to the works being undertaken, details of the type of all new 

partitions to be installed within the building shall have been 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Such details 

shall include confirmation of the method of installation and 

confirmation that they be of a lightweight construction, reversibly 

Page 58



 
 
 

 
 
 

installed and scribed around historic mouldings and architectural 

features.  The installation of all new partition shall be in 

accordance with the details so agreed. 

REASON:  To ensure new partitions are of a suitably lightweight and 
reversible construction so as minimise impact upon the historic fabric of 
the building. 
 
6. Prior to the works being undertaken, full and complete details of 

new urn to replace stolen/removed original on the listed boundary 

wall shall have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.  The replacement urn shall be installed 

prior to the first use of the development hereby granted Listed 

Building Consent. 

REASON:  To ensure the replacement urn is of an appropriate design and 
quality and to ensure its installation in a timely manner. 
 
7. The works hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans: 

D-01 P03 Mansion Secondary Entrance Lobby Extension Details 
D-02 P03 Detail section through link 
D-03 P02 Detail section through link and extension 
D-04 P02 Proposed Section C 
D-05 P01 Link connection plan details 
D-10 P01 Site Wall Details 
D-20 P01 Ceiling Details 1 
D-21 P01 Ceiling Details 2 
D-22 P01 Ceiling Details 3 
D-23 P01 Ceiling Details 4 
D-24 P01 Ceiling Details 5 
D-25 P01 Ceiling Details 6 
D-26 P01 Ceiling Details 7 
E-01 P02 Existing Elevations - The Mansion 
E-02 P02 Existing Elevations - Library 
E-10 P02 Proposed Elevations - Extension - North & West 
E-11 P02 Proposed Elevations - Extension - South & East 
E-12 P02 Demolition Scope Elevations - The Mansion - North, South 
and East 
P-0-01 P02 Existing Ground & Basement Plans 
P-0-04 P02 Existing Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plans – West 
Mansion 
P-0-05 Existing Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plans – East 
Mansion 
P-0-06 P02 Existing Zone 4 and Zone 6 Reflected Ceiling Plans – All 
Levels 
P-0-10 P03 Demolition Scope Ground and Basement Floor Plans 
P-0-11 P05 Proposed Ground Floor and Basement GA Plans 

Page 59



 
 
 

 
 
 

P-0-13 P02 Proposed Ground Floor and Basement Fire Strategy 
Plans 
P-0-14 P02 Proposed Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plans – West 
Mansion 
P-0-15 P02 Proposed Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plans – East 
Mansion and Extension 
P-0-16 P02 Proposed Zone 4 and Zone 6 Reflected Ceiling Plans - 
All Levels 
P-1-01 P02 Existing First Floor Plan 
P-1-04 P02 Existing First Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan – West 
Mansion 
P-1-05 P02 Existing First Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan - East 
Mansion 
P-1-10 P03 Demolition Scope First Floor Plan 
P-1-11 P04 Proposed First Floor Plan 
P-1-13 P02 Proposed First Floor Fire Strategy Plan 
P-1-14 P02 Proposed First Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan – West 
Mansion 
P-1-15 P02 Proposed First Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan – East 
Mansion and Extension 
Fire strategy drawings (P-0-13 P03, P-1-13 P03, P-2-13 P03) 
P-2-01 P02 Existing Second Floor and Attic Plans 
P-2-04 P02 Existing Second Floor & Attic Reflected Ceiling Plans 
P-2-10 P02 Demolition Scope Second Floor & Attic Plans 
P-2-11 P02 Proposed Second Floor & Attic Plan 
P-2-13 P02 Proposed Second Floor Fire Strategy Plan 
P-2-14 P02 Proposed Second Floor & Attic Reflected Ceiling Plans 
P-3-01 P02 Existing Roof Plan 
P-3-11 P03 Proposed Roof Plan 
P-Site-01 P02 Site Location Plan 
P-Site-02 P03 Existing Block Plan 
P-Site-03 P04 Proposed Site Plan 
P-Site-04 P02 Existing Street Elevations 
P-Site-05 P02 Proposed Street Elevations 
REP01 P01 Design and Access Statement, Heritage Statement 
REP02 P01 Design Statement Addendum Feb 2017 
REP05 P01 Services Design Strategy 
REP06 P01 Enabling Work Schedule 
S-01 P02 Existing Sections A, B, C & D 
S-02 P02 Existing Sections E & F 
S-11 P02 Proposed Sections 
SK20 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 1 
SK21 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 2 
SK22 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 3 
SK23 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 4 
SK24 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 5 
SK25 P02 Enabling Contract: External Strip Out sheet 6 
SK35 P01 Link illustrations 
SK37 P02 Enabling Works Opening Up Sheet 1 
SK38 P02 Enabling Works Opening Up Sheet 2 

Page 60



 
 
 

 
 
 

SK39 P02 Enabling Works Opening Up Sheet 2 
SK40 P01 Services Distribution Key Plans 
SK41 P01 Existing Massing View from Pickwick Road 
SK42 P01 Proposed Massing View from Pickwick Road 
All received 14/02/17 unless otherwise indicated. 

 
 
REASON:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

28 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business.  

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.30 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 21 
JUNE 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe (Chairman), Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Andrew Davis, 
Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Christopher Newbury, 
Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Tony Trotman, Cllr Fred Westmoreland and Cllr Nick Murry 
(Substitute) 
 
 
 
  

 
29 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Ernie Clark who was substituted 
by Cllr Nick Murry.  

30 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 24 May 2017. 

31 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 

32 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 

33 Public Participation 
 
The rules of public participation were noted. 

34 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
An update on planning appeals and decisions was received. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 

35 16/12493/FUL - Land at Hunters Moon, Chippenham, Wiltshire - A hybrid 
planning application: An Outline Planning Application for the demolition 
of existing buildings & structures & mixed-use development comprising 

Page 63

Agenda Item 10



 
 
 

 
 
 

up to 450 dwellings, up to 2.41 ha of employment (B1, B2 & B8) 
development, public open space, landscaping, & all associated 
infrastructure works (with all matters reserved other than access); with a 
Full Planning Application for the first phase of the development 
comprising 140 dwellings, open space,  10 no. B1 employment units, 
drainage works including attenuation pond; & associated infrastructure. 
(All Matters Reserved Except Access) 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission should be granted, subject to conditions and the prior completion of 
a Section 106 agreement to secure the following:- 
 

 27.3% affordable housing provision 

 Highways improvement works 

 Provision and management of Public Open Space, including 5 year 
periodical review and management of trees with protection orders 

 Financial contribution towards bus service and travel plans 

 Financial contribution towards air quality management project. 
 
The Case Officer also referred to additional information which had been 
received since the committee report was written as follows:- 
 

(a) The applicant had recently advised that the latest revision to the Site 
Layout for Phase 1 had resulted in the removal of two units from the first 
phase of development, resulting in 140 units in this phase for which full 
planning permission was being sought. 

 
(b) The letter of objection from the neighbouring occupier of Taffswell Farm 

had been withdrawn. 
 

(c) An additional Dormouse survey had been received and reviewed by the 
Council’s Ecologist and had confirmed that further Dormouse surveys 
were not required. 
 

Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard a statement from Mr Mike Kerton, Planning Director of Bloor Homes (the 
applicant) in support of the proposals. 
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To delegate to the Head of Development Management to grant planning 
permission, subject to the following conditions and the completion of a 
Section 106 Agreement within six months of the date of the resolution of 
this Committee. 
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required Section 106 
Agreement within the defined timeframe, to then delegate to the Head of 

Page 64



 
 
 

 
 
 

Development Management to refuse planning permission for the following 
reason:- 
 
The application proposal fails to provide and secure the necessary and 
required Services and infrastructure supporting the proposed residential 
development including Affordable Housing, Public Open Space, Highways 
Improvements and Air Quality Management Projects and is therefore 
contrary to Policies CP3 & CP43 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy Adopted 
January 2015 and Paras 7, 14 & 17 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework March 2012. 
 
Conditions 
 
1. The detailed element (ie. the part of the site befitting from full planning 
permission) of the development hereby permitted shall be begun before 
the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 
2. The outline element of the development hereby permitted shall be 
begun either before the expiration of three years from the date of this 
permission, or before the expiration of two years from the date of 
approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is 
the later. 
 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 
3. No development of the outline element shall commence on site until 
details of the following matters (in respect of which approval is expressly 
reserved) have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority: 
 
i)  The scale of the development; 
ii) The layout of the development; 
iii) The external appearance of the development; 
iv) The landscaping of the site; 
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
REASON:  Part of the application was made for outline planning 
permission and is granted to comply with the provisions of Section 92 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Article 3(1) of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 1995. 

Page 65



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
4. An application for the approval of all of the reserved matters shall be 
made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of five years 
from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.  
 
 
5. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance 
with the submitted plans and documents listed below. No variation from 
the approved plans should be made without the prior approval of the local 
planning authority. Amendments may require the submission of a further 
application. 
 
Site Location Plan – 9050 Rev C; 
Site Layout Plan SL-001 Rev M  
Materials and Boundary Treatments Plan SL-020D  
SW031-PD-060 Rev E – Streetscenes;  
SW031-SL-050B – Affordable Housing Plan;  
SW031-SL-051B – Employment Unit Plan;  
SW031-PD-160 Rev A (B1 unit, Block 1, Plans and Elevations;  
SW031-PD-169 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 14);  
SW031-PD-100 Rev B – Plans and Elevations (Plots 97, 107, 112, 
113);  
SW031-PD-134 Rev B – Plans and Elevations (Plots 42, 76);  
SW031-PD-142 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plots 17, 40, 41, 50, 
135);  
SW031-PD-506 Rev A – Elevations (Plots 115 - 118);  
SW031-PD-507 Rev A – Plans (Plots 115 - 118);  
SW031-PD-504 Rev A – Elevations (Plots 127-129);  
SW031-PD-505 Rev A – Plans (Plots 127-129);  
SW031-PD-512 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plots 122 – 123);  
SW031-PD-510 Rev A – Elevations (Plots 124 – 126);  
SW031-PD-511 Rev A – Plans (Plots 124 – 126);  
SW031-PD-515 Rev A – Elevations (Plots 119 - 121);  
SW031-PD-516 Rev A – Plans (Plots 119 – 121);  
SW031-PD-101 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plots 110 – 111);  
SW031-PD-113 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plot 133);  
SW031-PD-114 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plot 114);  
SW031-PD-119 Rev B – Plans and Elevations (Plot 134);  
SW031-PD-120 Rev B – Plans and Elevations (Plots 12, 51, 138 – 
140);  
SW031-PD-123 Rev B – Plans and Elevations (Plots 11, 109);  
SW031-PD-126 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plots 36-37);  
SW031-PD-158 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plots 130, 132);  

Page 66



 
 
 

 
 
 

SW031-PD-135 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plots 71, 88);  
SW031-PD-168 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plot 131);  
SW031-PD-140 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plots 91, 92, 108);  
SW031-PD-145 Rev A – Plans and Elevations (Plot 102);  
SW031-PD-155 Rev B – Plans and Elevations (Plots 89, 95, 137); 
SW031-PD-157 Rev B – Elevations (Plot 136);  
SW031-PD-166 Rev B – Plans (Plot 136).  
SW031-PD-102 Rev A –Floor Plans and Elevations (Plots 56 and 57);  
SW031-PD-167 Rev A –Floor Plans and Elevations (Plots 1 and 69);  
SW031-PD-503 Rev A – Floor Plans and Elevations Plots 59 and 60;  
SW031-PD-107 Rev A – Elevations Plots 3,4 and 5;  
SW031-PD-108 Rev A – Floor Plans Plots 3,4 and 5;  
SW031-PD-125 –Floor Plans and Elevations (Plot 20);  
SW031-PD-156 Rev A – Floor Plans and Elevations (Plot 96);  
SW031-PD-755 – Sub-station Floor Plans and Elevations.  
SW031-PD-500 – Plans and Elevations (Plots 23-28); 
SW031-PD-501 – Plans and Elevations (Plots 23-28); 
SW031-PD-517 – Elevations (Plots 29-31); 
SW031-PD-518 – Plans (Plots 29-31); 
SW031-PD-519 – Elevations (Plots 66-68); 
SW031-PD-520 – Plans (Plots 66-68); 
SW031-PD-502 – Plans and Elevations (Plots 21, 22, 61, 62); 
SW031-PD-513 – Elevations (Plots 32-34); 
SW031-PD-514 – Plans (Plots 32-34); 
SW031-PD-508 – Elevations (Plots 63-65); 
SW031-PD-509 – Plans (Plots 63-65); 
SW031-PD-105 – Elevations (Plots 77-80); 
SW031-PD-106 – Plans (Plots 77-80); 
SW031-PD-103 – Elevations (Plots 6-9); 
SW031-PD-104 – Plans (Plots 6-9); 
SW031-PD-111 – Elevations (Plots 98-99); 
SW031-PD-112 – Plans (Plots 98-99); 
SW031-PD-109 – Plans and Elevations (Plots 72-73); 
SW031-PD-110 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 48); 
SW031-PD-115 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 108); 
SW031-PD-116 – Plans and Elevations (Plots 35, 58); 
SW031-PD-117 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 105); 
SW031-PD-118 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 13); 
SW031-PD-121 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 104); 
SW031-PD-122 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 38); 
SW031-PD-124 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 70); 
SW031-PD-127 – Plans and Elevations (Plots 52-55, 83-86); 
SW031-PD-165 – Plans and Elevations (Plots 81-82); 
SW031-PD-128 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 69); 
SW031-PD-129 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 51); 
SW031-PD-131 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 87); 
SW031-PD-132 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 15); 
SW031-PD-133 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 47); 
SW031-PD-164 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 41); 
SW031-PD-136 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 18); 

Page 67



 
 
 

 
 
 

SW031-PD-137 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 90); 
SW031-PD-162 – Plans and Elevations (Plots 10, 93); 
SW031-PD-163 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 94); 
SW031-PD-138 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 44); 
SW031-PD-139 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 39); 
SW031-PD-141 – Plans and Elevations (Plots 16, 45, 100); 
SW031-PD-143 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 106); 
SW031-PD-144 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 107); 
SW031-PD-146 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 101); 
SW031-PD-159 – Plans and Elevations (Plot 103); 
SW031-PD-147 – Elevations (Plots 74-75); 
SW031-PD-148 – Plans (Plots 74-75); 
SW031-PD-149 – Elevations (Plot 2); 
SW031-PD-150 – Plans (Plot 2); 
SW031-PD-151 – Elevations (Plot 43); 
SW031-PD-152 – Plans (Plot 43); 
SW031-PD-153 – Elevations (Plot 19); 
SW031-PD-154 – Plans (Plot 19); 
SW031-PD-750 – Plans and Elevations (Garage); 
SW031-PD-751 – Plans and Elevations (Garage); 
SW031-PD-752 – Plans and Elevations (Bat Roosting Garage); 
SW031-PD-753 – Plans and Elevations (Car Port); 
SW031-PD-754 – Plans and Elevations (Garage). 
Site Sections EN-390 Rev B; 
Phase 1 Plot Levels Sheet 1 EN-380 Rev B;  
Phase 1 Plot Levels Sheet 2 EN-381 Rev B; 
Phase 1 Plot Levels Sheet 3 EN-382 Rev B;  
Phase 1 Plot Levels Sheet 4 EN-383 Rev B;  
EN-010 – Vehicle Tracking Refuse Vehicle Sheet 1;  
EN-011 – Vehicle Tracking Refuse Vehicle Sheet 2;  
EN-012 – Vehicle Tracking Refuse Vehicle Sheet 3;  
EN-200 Rev B – Section 38 Adoption Plan Sheet 1;  
EN-201 Rev B – Section 38 Adoption Plan Sheet 2;  
EN-202 Rev B – Section 38 Adoption Plan Sheet 3;  
Engineering Layout Sheet 1 SW031-EN-330F  
Engineering Layout Sheet 2 SW031-EN-331E  
Engineering Layout Sheet 3 SW031-EN-332F  
Engineering Layout Sheet 4 SW031-EN-333F  
EN-500 Rev C – Drainage Layout Sheet 1;  
EN-501 Rev D – Drainage Layout Sheet 2;  
EN-502 Rev C – Drainage Layout Sheet 3;  
EN-503 Rev B – Drainage Layout Sheet 4;  
Proposed Improvements Access Cover Sheet A098811 - GA01 
Extension form Methuen Business Park A098811 - GA02 
Easton Lane Employment Access A098811 GA03   
Easton Lane Site Access A098811 - GA04 
Easton Lane-Saltersford Proposed Footway_Cycleway A098811 - 
GA05  
Saltersford Lane Proposed Footway_Cycleway A098811 - GA06A  
Pheasant Roundabout Proposed Toucan Crossing A098811 - GA07A  

Page 68



 
 
 

 
 
 

Proposed Footway_Cycle Link To Saltersford Lane A098811 - GA08  
EDP2197/12 – Ecological Dark Zones Plan 
Tree Protection Plan 170412-1.6-HMP1-TPP-NC  
 
REASON: To ensure that the development is implemented as approved. 
 
6. No development (excluding any demolition or associated works) shall 
commence on site until a Phasing Plan showing the extent and number of 
dwellings / employment building within each phase of the development 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The Plan shall include a timetable for the delivery of the 
employment land units within each phase of development. 
 
REASON: To ensure the timely implementation of the employment land 
development at the site and in the interests of sustainable development. 
 
 
7. No above ground works hereby permitted shall commence on site until 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and 
roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
 
8. Prior to the commencement of development of Plots 35-42, details of 
the proposed access to Saltersford Lane adjacent Plots 36-38 shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority, and 
the link shall be completed prior to the completion of Plots 35-42. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of sustainable transport and to secure the link 
at an appropriate time in the development. 
 
 
9. No development shall commence on site until plans showing the 
widening of Easton Lane to a minimum width of 6.5 metres between 
Saltersford Lane and the vehicular access to the residential element in 
Phase 1 has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter, these works shall be completed in strict 
accordance with the approved details and made available for use by 
highway traffic, prior to the occupation of any residential dwelling hereby 
approved. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety, to secure an acceptable 
access to serve phase 1 of the development. 
 
 

Page 69



 
 
 

 
 
 

10. No development shall commence on site until plans to show the 
provision of a 3 metre footway / cycleway which connects from the 
vehicular access to the residential element of Phase 1 to the southern 
extent of the Pheasant Roundabout, including a bridge over Pudding 
Brook, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the footway / cycleway shall be completed 
in accordance with the approved plans and made available for use by 
pedestrians and cyclists, prior to first occupation of any residential 
dwelling hereby approved. 
REASON: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety and to ensure 
sustainable transport links are provided to the site in a timely manner. 
 
 
11. Prior to the commencement of each phase of the development 
(excluding any demolition or associated works) a detailed drawing 
showing the network of cycle / footpaths to serve that phase, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  
Development shall be carried out in complete accordance with  the 
approved details and the cycle / footpaths shall be made available for use 
prior to occupation of more than 50% of the residential units in the phase 
of development containing the cycle /footpath. 
 
REASON: In the interests of sustainable transport and to ensure that a 
comprehensive approach to movement within to and from the site has 
been secured. 
 
 
12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no gates, fences or other means of enclosure, other than 
those shown on the approved plans, shall be erected or placed on any 
private accesses served from the prospectively maintainable highways, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 
13. Notwithstanding the details submitted on plan reference SW031-SL-
001M, no development within any individually approved phase of the 
development shall commence on site until details of the estate roads, 
footways, footpaths, unsegregated pedestrian / cycle routes, verges, 
junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, 
surface water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility 
splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients, car parking and 
street furniture, including the timetable for provision of such works within 
any particular phase, have been submitted to and approved by the local 
planning authority.  The development of each phase of development shall 
not be first occupied until the estate roads, footways, footpaths, 
unsegregated pedestrian / cycle routes, verges, junctions, street lighting, 

Page 70



 
 
 

 
 
 

sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, 
vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, 
carriageway gradients, drive gradients, car parking and street furniture 
have all been constructed and laid out in accordance with the approved 
details, unless an alternative timetable is agreed in the approved details. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the roads are laid out and constructed in a 
satisfactory manner, and are of adequate amenity for users. 
 
 
14. The roads, including footpaths and turning spaces, shall be 
constructed so as to ensure that, before it is occupied, each dwelling has 
been provided with a properly consolidated and surfaced footpath and 
carriageway to at least base course level between the dwelling and 
existing highway. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development is served by an adequate 
means of access. 
 
 
15. No dwelling shall be occupied until the parking spaces for that 
dwelling, together with the access thereto, have been provided in 
accordance with the approved plans. The areas shall be maintained for 
those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of future 
occupants. 
 
 
16. No dwelling or employment building shall be occupied until details of 
their respective secure covered cycle parking and, in the case of 
employment land, changing and shower facilities have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  These facilities 
shall be provided in accordance with the approved details and made 
available for use prior to the first occupation of the buildings to which 
they relate and shall be retained for use at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: To ensure that satisfactory facilities for the parking of cycles 
are provided and to encourage travel by means other than the private car. 
 
 
17. No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Environmental Method Statement, which 
shall include the following:   

 the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  

 detailing of routing arrangements for lorry traffic associated with 

the development; 

 loading and unloading of plant and materials;  

Page 71



 
 
 

 
 
 

 storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development;  

 the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where 

appropriate;  

 wheel washing facilities;  

 measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction;  

 a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 

demolition and construction works; and 

 measures for the protection of the natural environment. 

 hours of construction, including deliveries; 

 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the 
construction period. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the approved construction method statement 
without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.  
 
REASON: To minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, 
the amenities of the area in general, detriment to the natural environment 
through the risks of pollution and dangers to highway safety, during the 
construction phase. 
 
 
18. No development (excluding demolition or any associated works) shall 
commence on site  until: 
 
A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should 
include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing 
and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority; and 
 
The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological 
interest. 
 
 
19. No development shall commence on site (other than that required to 
be carried out as part of a scheme of remediation approved by the Local 
Planning Authority under this condition), until steps (i) to (iii) below have 
been fully complied with. If unexpected contamination is found after 
development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the 
site affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by 
the Local Planning Authority in writing until step (iv) has been complied 
with in full in relation to that contamination. 

Page 72



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Step (i)         Site Characterisation: 
 
An investigation and risk assessment must be completed to assess the 
nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it 
originates on the site. The investigation and risk assessment must be 
undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
report of the findings must include: 
 
A survey of the extent, nature and scale of contamination on site; 
The collection and interpretation of relevant information to form 
a conceptual model of the site, and a preliminary risk assessment of all 
the likely pollutant linkages; 
If the preliminary risk assessment identifies any potentially significant 
pollutant linkages a ground investigation shall be carried out, to provide 
further information on the location, type and concentration of 
contaminants in the soil and groundwater and other characteristics that 
can influence the behaviour of the contaminants; 
An assessment of the potential risks to 

 human health; 

 property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops; 

 livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes; 

 adjoining land; 

 groundwater and surface waters; 

 ecological systems; 

 archaeological sites. 

 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, 
CLR 11” and other authoritative guidance.  
 
Step (ii)         Submission of Remediation Scheme: 
 
If any unacceptable risks are identified as a result of the investigation and 
assessment referred to in step (i) above, a detailed remediation scheme to 
bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use must be 
prepared. This should detail the works required to remove any 
unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the 
natural and historical environment, should be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme must include all 
works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and 
remediation criteria, a timetable of works and site management 
procedures.  
 
Step (iii)        Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme:  
 

Page 73



 
 
 

 
 
 

The approved remediation scheme under step (ii) must be carried out in 
accordance with its requirements. The Local Planning Authority must be 
given at least two weeks written notification of commencement of the 
remediation scheme works. 
 
Step (iv)         Reporting of Unexpected Contamination:  
 
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it should be 
reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An 
investigation and risk assessment should be undertaken in accordance 
with the requirements of step (i) above and where remediation is 
necessary, a remediation scheme should be prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of step (ii) and submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Step (v)          Verification of remedial works:  
 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme a verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) 
must be produced. The report should demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
remedial works. 
 
A statement should also be provided by the developer which is signed by 
a person who is competent to confirm that the works detailed in the 
approved scheme have been carried out (The Local Planning Authority 
can provide a draft Remediation Certificate when the details of the 
remediation scheme have been approved at stage (ii) above).  
 
The verification report and signed statement should be submitted to and 
approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Step (vi)         Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance:  
 
If a monitoring and maintenance scheme is required as part of the 
approved remediation scheme, reports must be prepared and submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval at the relevant stages in the 
development process as approved by the Local Planning Authority in the 
scheme approved pursuant to step (ii) above, until all the remediation 
objectives in that scheme have been achieved. 
 
All works must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the 
Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination, CLR 11” and other authoritative guidance. 
 
REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users 
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.  

Page 74



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
20. All building services plant shall be so sited and designed in order to 
achieve a Rating Level of -5dB below the lowest measured background 
noise level, determined at the nearest noise sensitive receptor. 
 
REASON: To protect the amenity of nearby residents. 
 
 
 
21. A lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority prior to the commencement of development of 
any phase and shall be so designed as to mitigate any significant glare, 
sky glow, spillage and intrusion. The scheme should aim to achieve 
Environmental Zone E2 as specified in the guidance issued by the 
Institution of Lighting Engineers. All development shall be carried out in 
full accordance with the approved lighting scheme and retained as such 
thereafter. 
 
REASON: To protect the amenities of nearby residents. 
 
 
22. (a) No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted, or destroyed, nor 
shall any retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in accordance 
with the approved plans and particulars without prior written approval of 
the Local Planning Authority.  Any topping or lopping approval shall be 
carried out in accordance with BS 3998 2010 British Standard for Tree 
Work or arboricultural techniques where it can be demonstrated to be in 
the interest of good arboricultural practice. 
 
(b) If any tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree shall 
be planted at the same place at a size and species planted at such time 
that must be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
(c) No equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought onto the site 
for the purpose of development until tree protection measures, as 
illustrated on Drawing Number: 170412-1.6-HMP1-TPP-NC  have been fully 
installed on site. The fencing criteria and protective measures shall be in 
accordance with   British Standard 5837: 2012: Trees in Relation to 
Design, Demolition and Construction Recommendations and the setting 
out will be overseen by a suitably qualified Arboricultural Consultant.  The 
protective fencing shall remain in place for the entire development phase 
and until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been 
removed from the site.  Such fencing shall not be removed or breached 
during construction operations without prior written approval by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
In this condition “retained trees” means an existing tree which is to be 
retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; and 
paragraphs above shall have effect until the expiration of five years from 

Page 75



 
 
 

 
 
 

the first occupation or the completion of the development whichever is 
later. 
 
REASON: To prevent trees being retained on or adjacent to the site from 
being damaged during the construction works and in the interest of visual 
amenity. 
 
 
23. No development shall commence in any phase of development until a 
surface water drainage strategy, including details of future responsibility 
and maintenance, to serve that phase of development is submitted and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority.  No building contained 
within the phase of development to which the approved details relate shall 
be first occupied until the drainage scheme has been completed in strict 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To ensure that proper provision is made for sewerage of the 
site and that the development does not increase the risk of sewer flooding 
to downstream property. 
 
 
24. No development shall commence in any phase of development until a 
foul water drainage strategy, including details of future responsibility and 
maintenance, to serve that phase of development is submitted and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority.  No building contained 
within the phase of development to which the approved details relate shall 
be first occupied until the drainage scheme has been completed in strict 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To ensure that proper provision is made for sewerage of the 
site and that the development does not increase the risk of sewer flooding 
to downstream property. 
 
 
25. No dwelling shall be occupied until details of the storage of refuse, 
including details of location, size, means of enclosure and materials, 
serving that dwelling have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be 
completed in strict accordance with the approved details.  
 
REASON: In the interests of public health and safety. 
 
 
26. No development shall commence on phase 1 until a scheme of hard 
and soft landscaping for phase 1 has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include: 
 
all species, planting sizes and planting densities, spread of all trees and 
hedgerows within or overhanging the site, in relation to the proposed 
buildings, roads, and other works; 

Page 76



 
 
 

 
 
 

 finished levels and contours;  

 means of enclosure;  

 hard surfacing materials;  

 minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); and 

 proposed and existing functional services above and below ground 

(e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, pipelines etc 

indicating lines, manholes, supports etc).  

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
 
27. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
 
28. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the garages hereby permitted shall not be converted to 
habitable accommodation. 
 
REASON:  To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
 
29. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-
enacting or amending that Order with or without modification), there shall 
be no additions / extensions / external alterations to any building forming 
part of the development hereby permitted and no plant or machinery shall 
be installed outside any such building on the site on the approved plans. 
 

Page 77



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON:   In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions/extensions or external 
alterations, or the installation of any outdoor plant/machinery. 
 
 
30. No materials, goods, plant, machinery, equipment, finished or 
unfinished products/parts of any description, skips, crates, containers, 
waste or any other item whatsoever shall be placed, stacked, deposited or 
stored outside any building on the site.  
 
REASON:  In the interests of the appearance of the site and the amenities 
of the area. 
 
 
31. Units 39-47 as shown on plan reference Drg SW031-SL-001M shall not 
be occupied until the landscape buffer shown to Taffswell Farm has been 
completed in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity 
 
 
32. Units 108 – 118 as shown on plan reference Drg SW031-SL-001M shall 
not be occupied until the landscape buffer shown to Hunters Moon has 
been completed in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity 
 
 
33. Prior to submission of any application for reserved matters, the 
development site shall be subject to up to date surveys for protected 
species including: 
 

 Invertebrates 

 Bats 

 Habitats / botany 

 
The survey results shall be included in a mitigation statement clearly 
setting out necessary measures to avoid and mitigate impacts upon 
protected species, including parameters for detailed designs.  The 
mitigation statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to submission of any application for 
reserved matters.  Reserved matters applications will only be permitted 
where the design is in accordance with the parameters set out in the 
approved mitigation statement.   
 
REASON:  In the interests of securing ecological surveys required by 
legislation and so as to secure a form of development that does not 
unnecessarily impact upon protected species and their habitat. 

Page 78



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
34. Prior to commencement of development, a Landscape, Ecology and 
Arboricultural Management and Monitoring Plan (LEAMMP) shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
LEAMMP shall include:  
 

i. details of any relevant up to date ecological surveys;  

ii. drawings clearly showing all landscaped areas and semi-natural 

habitats including mature trees to be managed under the LEAMMP;  

iii. any capital works such as habitat creation, tree / shrub planting, bat 

/ bird boxes etc including creation of 1.13ha of traditional orchard 

habitat  

iv. ongoing management prescriptions for semi-natural habitats and 

maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas clearly setting out 

timescales and responsibilities 

v. approach to management of all mature trees based on their 

ecological interest and an arboricultural protocol for carrying out 

tree works; and  

vi. a schedule of ecological monitoring work and plan review.  

vii. details of the bat mitigation roost; 

 
Upon commencement of development all capital works shall be carried 
out to the agreed timescales and all areas identified in the LEAMMP shall 
be managed in full accordance with the agreed prescriptions in perpetuity. 
All monitoring reports shall also be made available to the local planning 
authority. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of securing a form of development that does 
not unnecessarily impact upon protected species and their habitat.  In 
particular, this condition is ensure that the loss of the existing mature 
orchard on the site early in the development process is also compensated 
at an appropriate and early stage of development, so as to allow for 
maximum mitigation. 
 
 
35. The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes.  No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued 
and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved.  
 
 

Page 79



 
 
 

 
 
 

36. No more than 140 dwellings shall be occupied unless, and until the M4 
J17 improvement scheme as shown on Atkins drawing numbers 
WHCC_OS-ATK-HGN-TO7178-DR-D-0001 Revision P01.5 dated 14/01/2016 
and WGCC_OS-ATK-HGN-TO7178-DR-D-0002 Revision P01.4 dated 
14/01/2016 are completed and open to traffic. 
 
REASON: To ensure the safe and effective operation of the strategic road 
network. 
 
37. No phase of development shall commence (including demolition, 
ground works, vegetation clearance) until an Ecological Construction 
Method Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority in respect of that phase. In discharging this 
condition the local planning authority expect to see the following details: 
 
a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities; 
b) Identification of "biodiversity protection zones"; 
c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working 
practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be 
provided as a set of method statements); 
d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity 
features; 
e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be 
present on site to oversee works; 
f) Responsible persons and lines of communication; 
g) The role and responsibilities on site of an Ecological clerk of works 
(ECoW) or similarly competent person; and  
h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. 
 
The agreed Ecological Construction Method Statement shall thereafter be 
implemented in full unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. 
 
38. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the 10.No employment use buildings within Phase 1 shall 
be used solely for purposes within Class(es) B1, B2 & B8 of the Schedule 
to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as 
amended)(or in any provisions equivalent to that class in any statutory 
instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification).  
 
REASON: The proposed use is acceptable but the Local Planning 
Authority wish to consider any future proposal for a change of use, other 
than a use within the same classes having regard to the circumstances of 
the case.  
 
 

Page 80



 
 
 

 
 
 

39. No more than 450 dwellings shall be constructed on the site pursuant 
to this planning permission.  
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper 
planning  

 
 
 

 
 

     
36 Date of Next Meeting 

 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday 19 July 2017, starting at 10.30am, in the Council Chamber 
at County Hall, Trowbridge. 

37 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.00  - 2.45 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 23 MAY 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON 
PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Chris Hurst, 
Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Jacqui Lay 
(Substitute), Cllr Ben Anderson, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Ruth Hopkinson (Substitute) 
and Cllr Ashley O'Neill 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Brian Mathew and Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE 
  

 
A minute’s silence was observed to mark the loss of life caused by a terrorist 
attack in Manchester on the evening of 22 May 2017.  
 

34 Apologies 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Tony Trotman who was 
substituted by Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Peter Hutton was to act as Chairman for the 
meeting. 
 
Cllr Brian Mathew was substituted by Cllr Ruth Hopkinson. 
 

35 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes of the 
meeting held on 8 March 2017.  
 

36 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Brian Mathew later made a declaration under item 7a, as detailed below. 
Cllr Ashley O’Neill later declared an interest under item 7e, as detailed below. 
 

37 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman welcomed newly elected members to the Committee and gave 
his thanks to councillors who had previously served on the Committee.  

Page 83

Agenda Item 11



 
 
 

 
 
 

38 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

39 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the appeals update.  
 

40 Planning Applications 
41 16/069353/FUL London Road Streetworks London Road Corsham 

 
Tim Walton and Owen Hurst spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Cllr Sheila Parker, Box Parish Council, spoke in objection to the application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application which was for a 
proposed 4G equipment installation for Box Tunnel. It was recommended that 
planning permission be granted subject to the conditions outlined in the report 
an additional condition recommended in the Late Observations. It was 
explained that the application had been deferred from a previous meeting to 
allow investigation of four issues: the line of sight through Box Tunnel and the 
location of the telecommunications mast, alternative locations considered, the 
ability to use cabling to achieve the same coverage as a mast, and the need for 
enhanced emergency services coverage in the tunnel above Network Rail 
communications technology. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer explained that the applicant was satisfied the 
proposed location would allow extended coverage, and a map to illustrate this 
was shown. It was highlighted that Appendix 2 to the report demonstrated 
alternative mast locations that had been considered and it was emphasised that 
nearby land was owned by Network Rail which was not obliged to give up its 
land for the siting of a mast. Members understood that the applicant had 
advised that cabling would not be suitable in the Box Tunnel as an alternative to 
a mast; there would also be negative impacts upon the heritage asset of such 
cabling. It was also confirmed that that Network Rail’s communication 
technology was not available to the emergency services which would benefit 
from improved coverage as a result of the proposal. Officers recommended the 
application be approved due to the benefits of extended coverage in this ‘not 
spot’ outweighing the negative implications of the proposal.  
 
The Committee was invited to ask technical questions, in response to which it 
was confirmed that information about the viability of cabling had been submitted 
by the applicant in writing. It was also explained that Network Rail were not 
obligated to assist in providing alternative options for emergency service 
coverage. The officer confirmed that other locations for the mast had been 
explored, as detailed in the report, and the proposed location would allow for 
improved coverage in the tunnel. 
 

Page 84



 
 
 

 
 
 

Members of the public then spoke as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Cllr Brian Mathew, stated that following legal advice he was 
not attending this meeting as a Committee member to avoid any perception of 
bias or predetermination since he has previously campaigned against this 
application. Cllr Mathew spoke only as the local member and cited the many 
objections raised by local residents to the application. The councillor spoke in 
favour of using cabling in the tunnel or other locations for the mast to ensure 
suitable 4G coverage.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Hutton, seconded by Cllr Sturgis, moved the 
officer recommendation that planning permission be granted subject to 
conditions. Members of the Committee expressed disappointment with the 
response from the applicant that cabling was not a suitable option to negate the 
need for a mast and made reference to this technology being available to 
provide 4G in the Chanel Tunnel. Councillors were sympathetic of the views of 
local residents, however it was highlighted that civil matter raised in the public 
forum were not planning considerations. It was discussed that a benefit of the 
application would be improved network coverage for the emergency services.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT planning permission, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. Notwithstanding the details submitted, prior to the commencement 
of the development/works, details of the colour and finish of the 
mast and associated equipment shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be undertaken in accordance with the approved details and 
maintained thereafter. 
 

REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and 
the adjacent Listed Building. 
 

3. The mast and all equipment shall be removed from the site within 3 
months of it ceasing to be required for telecommunications 
purposes. 
 

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the adjacent Listed 
Building 
 

Page 85



 
 
 

 
 
 

4. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 75436/1451357-04; 
01; 02; 03;05; 06; 07; 08; 09 received 8th December 216. 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re- enacting or amending those Orders with or 
without modification), no development within Schedule 2, Part 16, 
Class A shall take place on the Telecommunications Mast and 
associated Apparatus hereby permitted. 
 
 

REASON:  In the interests of the amenity of the area, the setting of 
designated nearby heritage assets and to enable the Local Planning 
Authority to consider individually whether planning permission should be 
granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the 
requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 
 

42 17/01623/FUL Dahl Al Misfir, Park Lane, Ford 
 
Kenneth Carter and Beau Roberts spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Keren Worsnop spoke in support of the application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application which was for the 
erection of a building for equipment and tractor storage. It was recommended 

Page 86



 
 
 

 
 
 

that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the 
report. The location of the site was shown, alongside the proposed elevations of 
the storage unit. The officer considered that the proposal was not prominent in 
location, scale or in use of materials and would not have a significant negative 
impact. 
 
There were no technical questions. 
 
Members of the public then spoke as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, spoke against the 
application on the grounds that it was not in the style of a typical agricultural 
building. The councillor also considered the building to be in a sensitive location 
and questioned whether the piece of land was being used for agriculture.  
 
In response to points raised in the public forum, the Senior Planning Officer 
confirmed that a previous decision by a Planning Inspector that had been 
referred to in respect of this site, only applied to the residential curtilage and not 
the agricultural area of the site.  
 
In the debate that followed, the Committee agreed that the application was not 
suitable for the site, and it was felt that there was not evidence of agricultural 
use on the site which had been levelled, and that the style of the proposal was 
out of character for its proposed use and siting. Members agreed that the issues 
of the glazing, doors, roofing, and log stores would need to be addressed to 
make the application suitable. 
 
Cllr Sturgis, moved that authority be delegated to the Head of Development 
Management to grant planning permission subject to the receipt of a design to 
address the aforementioned issues, and conditions to restrict later amendments 
to the development, a requirement that it only be used for agricultural storage 
and that no external lighting be permitted. It was also requested that it be 
investigated as to whether the site had undergone alterations without consent. 
The motion was seconded by Cllr Greenman. In response to questions from the 
Committee, the Senior Planning Officer advised that under such a delegation 
the revised plans would be consulted on and would come back to this 
committee if they did not accord with the recommended changes. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To DELEGATE authority to the Head of Development Management 
Services to grant planning permission subject to design alterations as 
follows:- 
 

 Remove fenestration and glazing to door opening; 

 Alter door design to single panel without exposed oak frame; 

 Remove both log stores lean too structures; 

 Alter roof design to standard agricultural building roof material e.g. 
onduline  or eternit profiled sheets; 

 

Page 87



 
 
 

 
 
 

And subject to conditions to be determined by officers, including an 
amendment to condition 3 to restrict the use of the building to agricultural 
usage, and additional conditions to restrict external lighting and to 
prevent later modification to the development. The wording of these 
conditions was delegated to officers and subsequently agreed as: 
 
 
The building hereby permitted shall solely for the purposes of agricultural 
storage and in association with the land identified in this application red 
line boundary plan dated 19 April 2017 
 
REASON: The building is sited in a position where the Local Planning 
Authority, having regard to the reasonable standards of residential 
amenity, access, and planning policies pertaining to the area, would not 
permit a wholly separate dwelling. 
 
No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing the type 
of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, illumination levels and 
light spillage spillage in accordance with the appropriate Environmental 
Zone standards set out by the Institute of Lighting Engineers in their 
publication “Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light” (ILE, 
2005)”, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The approved lighting shall be installed and shall be 
maintained in accordance with the approved details and no additional 
external lighting shall be installed. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015  (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending those Orders with or without 
modification), no development within Part 6, Class B (a) shall take place 
on the building hereby permitted. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
And to require officers to undertake consultation with interested parties 
including objectors in respect of revised design plans; 
 
And to request that an enforcement investigation be undertaken in 
respect of works undertaken at the site including land levelling; 
installation of an access track and erection of a fruit growing cage. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



 
 
 

 
 
 

43 17/00446/FUL-54 Chestnut Springs, Lydiard Millicent SN5 3NB 
 
Tony Jones, Tom Pepperell and Vernon Montgomery spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
Edward Tucker spoke in favour of the application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application which was for alterations 
to a property including: raising of roof height to accommodate a new first floor, 
single storey rear extension and front roof extension and conversion of a garage 
into utility and kitchen extension. It was recommended that planning permission 
be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the report. Photos of the 
streetscene and proposed elevation of the application were shown. Members 
were advised that the area was of mixed character with both single and two 
storey properties, officers considered there would not be significant loss in 
residential amenity or to the character of the area as a result of the 
development. 
 
There were no technical question. 
 
Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above.  
 
The local member, Cllr Mollie Groom, spoke in objection to the application on 
the grounds of loss of neighbouring amenity.  
 
In response to comments from the public forum, the Senior Planning Officer 
confirmed that planning permissions did not set a precedent and there was no 
record of a similar application on this site. 
 
In the debate that followed, members discussed the merits of a site visit and it 
was commended that the bungalow in question was close to neighbouring 
properties. The Committee considered the benefits of retaining the dwelling as a 
bungalow. Cllr Sturgis, seconded by Cllr Hutton, moved the officer 
recommendation that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions 
outlined in the report. Members debated the impact of the proposal on 
neighbouring properties and the location of other two-storey dwellings nearby. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

Page 89



 
 
 

 
 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: Drawing 
No.16/CHEST.1/P-02 Rev B received 16.01.17 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 

4. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 

5. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
 

44 17/00118/FUL+ 17/00420/LBC- 8 The Forty, Cricklade SN6 6HR 
 
Andrew Pywell and Mr and Mrs Lally spoke in support of the application. 
 
Cllr John Coole, Cricklade Town Council, spoke in support of the application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application which was for the 
removal of an existing timber single storey porch to the rear of the property and 
the construction of a new single storey extension. It was recommended that 
planning permission and listed building consent be refused for the reason set 
out in the report in respect of the impact upon the listed building and its setting.  
 
In response to technical questions by the Committee, it was confirmed that a 
previous application for this property had come to Committee and that officers 
also considered the current proposal to cause significant harm to the listed 
building. It was noted that the Committee was able to explore the benefit of 
making the property suitable for modern. 

Page 90



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Members of the public then spoke as detailed above. 
 
The local member Cllr Bob Jones spoke in support of the application on the 
grounds that the benefit of the proposals would outweigh the harm, it was also 
considered that the third floor of the property was not usable space. 
 
In the debate that followed, councillors considered that the proposal would not 
negatively impact upon the streetscene, which was the reason why the property 
had originally been listed, and that the proposals would enhance the property. 
Cllr Hutton, seconded by Cllr Grant moved that authority be delegated to the 
Head of Development Management to grant planning permission and listed 
building consent, subject to standard conditions and informatives. The 
Committee felt the proposal would secure optimum viable use for the property 
and any identifiable harm would be outweighed by the use. Councillors 
expressed disappointment that the conservation officer had not undertaken a 
site visit. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To DELEGATE authority to the Head of Development Management 
Services to approve Full Planning Permission and grant Listed Building 
Consent subject to appropriate and necessary conditions; 
 
REASON: 
 
The identified harm to the heritage asset is outweighed by the benefit 
arising from securing the optimum viable use of the building as a 
residential property and family home which has been considered and 
weigh in the balance in accordance with paras 132 & 134 of the NPPF and 
found to accord with the requirements of Wiltshire Core Strategy (Jan 
2015) Core Policy 58. 
 
 

45 16/08756/FUL Springfield Farm Kington Lane Stanton St Quintin 
 
Andrew Miles spoke in support of the application.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application which was for the 
change of use of a building and land to Class B8 use, and construction of new 
vehicular access. It was recommended that planning permission be granted, 
subject to the conditions outlined in the report. The officer drew attention to the 
Late Observations and showed the location of the site, photographs of existing 
buildings, proximity to residential properties and the proposed new access. It 
was noted that the routing of vehicles accessing the site would be conditioned. 
 
In response to technical questions the data in respect of anticipated vehicular 
movements was explained. The officer advised that Highways Engineers was 
satisfied that the roads could sustain the vehicle use and photographs were 
shown. It was highlighted that a ‘Certificate of Lawfulness’ was currently in 

Page 91



 
 
 

 
 
 

place on the site which meant there was currently no limit on vehicular use. The 
officer confirmed that the Yard Management Plan and Traffic Management Plan 
would be included as part of any permission and would be enforceable.  
 
Members of the public then spoke as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Cllr Howard Greenman, spoke in objection to the application 
due to the increased vehicular use of the site in comparison to the current 
occupants, and concern over the enforceability of the conditions. 
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Peter Hutton, seconded by Cllr Sturgis, moved 
the officer recommendation that planning permission be granted, subject to the 
conditions outlined in the report. 
 
Cllr O’Neill declared an interest in the item due to a personal interest arising 
from a family member previously being employed by the applicant. The 
councillor did not participate in the debate or the vote.  
 
Members commended that the proposed traffic route would be self-enforcing as 
it was the route to the M4 motorway, and that the access to the site was in the 
corner of the village, away from school parking. Other comments expressed 
some concern as to the impact of traffic to and from the site.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

TMP/101/030/001 REV P0 Received 07 March 2017 
Traffic Management and Yard Operations Plan for Springfield Farm 
Received 07 
March 2017 
CDF/PL/006 REV P0 Received 07 March 2017 
CDF/PL/007 REV P0 Received 07 March 2017 
DOUBLE SIDED REFLECTIVE SOUND SCREEN FITTED TO TIMBER 
POSTS Reveived 27/02/2017 
ABSORBENT SOUND SCREEN FITTED INTO STEEL POSTS Reveived 
27/02/2017 
NOISE ASSESSMENT & MITIGATION DESIGN STUDY Reveived 27/02/2017 
FIG 3 Reveived 27/02/2017 
LPC 4023.16.01Received 08 September 2017 
Site Location Plan Received 08 September 2017 

Page 92



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No materials, goods, plants, machinery, equipment, finished or 
unfinished products/parts of any description, skips, crates, 
containers, waste or any other item, other than the vehicles used 
for the use on site shall be placed, stacked, deposited or stored 
above a height of 3 metres above the existing ground level outside 
any building on the site. 
 

REASON: In the interests of the appearance of the site and the amenities 
of adjoining residential properties. 
 

4. No part of the development shall be brought into use, until the 
Noise Mitigation Scheme has been carried out in accordance with 
the details specified in the submitted Noise Assessment & 
Mitigation Design Study dated 17 February 2017 and installed in the 
locations shown on plan Figure 3 submitted as part of the planning 
application. The approved attenuation works shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details at all times thereafter. 
 

REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from 
intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the 
area. 
 

5. Any gates shall be set back from the edge of the carriageway to 
allow vehicles to exit the carriageway while the gate is in operation. 
 

REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

6. No part of the development shall be occupied until the parking 
spaces together with the access thereto, have been provided in 
accordance with the approved plans. 
 

REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of future 
occupants. 
 

7. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in 
accordance with the details contained within the submitted Traffic 
Management and Yard Operations Plan dated 16/01/2017. 
 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to protect the residential 
amenities of local residents 
 

8. Traffic for all deliveries and vehicles above 3.5 tonnes shall only 
visit & leave the site by the route shown on plan number 
TMP/101/030/001 REV P0. 
 

Page 93



 
 
 

 
 
 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to protect the residential 
amenities of local residents 
 

9. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or 
without modification), there shall be no additions/extensions or 
external alterations to any building forming part of the development 
hereby permitted. 
 

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions/extensions or external 
alterations. 
 

10. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 
 

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 

11. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission. 
 

12. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

Page 94



 
 
 

 
 
 

13. No sound-amplifying equipment, loudspeaker, or public address 
system shall be installed/operated or music played within the 
premises hereby approved or its curtilage. 
 

REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from 
intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the 
area. 
 

14. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. 
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 

15. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The consent hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry 
out works on the highway. The applicant is advised that a license may be 
required from Wiltshire's Highway Authority before any works are carried 
out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming 
part of the highway. 
 

16. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
 

17. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 

46 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.00 pm) 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718214, e-mail elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 14 JUNE 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON 
PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Christine Crisp, 
Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Toby Sturgis, 
Cllr Brian Mathew and Cllr Philip Whalley (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson and Cllr Andy Phillips 
  

 
47 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Ben Anderson who was substituted by Cllr 
Phillip Whalley.  
 
Apologies were also received from Cllr Ashley O’Neil and Cllr Howard 
Greenman.  
 

48 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 
Tuesday 23 May 2017.  
 
Resolved: 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes of the 
meeting held on 23 May 2017. 
 

49 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

50 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman announced that due to unexpected large numbers of public 
attendance at the meeting, Councillors would vote to move certain agenda 
items forward. Namely Items 7b and 7c, but also 7e.  
 
 

Page 97

Agenda Item 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

51 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

52 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 
 

53 Planning Applications 
 
Attention was drawn to the late list of observations provided at the meeting and 
attached to these minutes, in respect of applications 7b- 16/03721/REM and 7c- 
16/04544/REM- Land North of Bath Road, Corsham, as listed in the agenda 
pack. 
 
53a 16/03721/REM and 16/04544/REM Land North of Bath Road, 
Corsham, Wiltshire 
 
Further to the Chairman’s announcement, Cllr Tony Trotman proposed that 
Agenda Items 7b- 16/03721/REM  and 7c- 16/04544/REM- Land North of Bath 
Road, Corsham, be brought forward in the agenda to be heard first. This motion 
was seconded by Cllr Peter Hutton and the Committee approved hearing these 
Items first.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer referred the Committee to the late observations and 
explained that the submission from objectors was received shortly prior to 
Committee. The applicant had requested an opportunity to consider and 
respond to the submission. Due to the nature of the submission made there was 
a significant amount of work required to address the points raised, the Officer’s 
recommendation was therefore to defer the items. This recommendation was 
proposed by Cllr Tony Trotman, seconded by Cllr Christine Crisp, and approved 
by the Committee. 
 
Resolved: 
Applications: 7b- 16/03721/REM  and 7c- 16/04544/REM  
DEFERRED to allow the applicant to consider and respond to matters 
raised by objectors and submitted as late representations immediately 
prior to Committee. 
 
53b 17/00606/FUL - Link Road Between A3102 and Marlborough Road, 
Royal Wootton Bassett, Wiltshire 
 
Further to the Chairman’s announcements, Cllr Tony Trotman proposed moving 
Agenda Item 7e forward in the agenda. This was seconded by Cllr Gavin Grant 
and approved by the Committee. 
 
Members of the public Alan Norman, John Parker and Karen Dykstra spoke 
against the application.  
 
The applicant’s agent Matthew Dawber spoke in favour of the application.  

Page 98



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Cllr Janet Georgiou, Royal Wootton Bassett Town Council, spoke against the 
application.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for the permanent 
retention of existing temporary road as an agricultural access. A presentation 
was shown containing photographs of existing site, both long range and short 
range, along with diagrams of proposed developments. The Officer’s 
recommendation was for approval subject to conditions outlined in the report.  
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions. In response to questions, the 
Officer confirmed that a condition was included requiring the approval of any 
proposals for the erection of lighting for the road/access and that if the 
Committee felt it necessary the wording of the condition could be amended to 
strengthen the position regarding restrictions on lighting. The Officer clarified 
that this would not and could not stop the submission of future applications for 
the erection of lighting for the road/access and that any future application would 
need to be considered on its merits and in the context of material considerations 
and circumstances relevant at that time. 
 
Members of the public were invited to speak as listed above.  
 
Local Member Cllr Chris Hurst spoke against the application. He stated that 
approving the application would cause significant harm to the local area, 
referring to public health concerns and enjoyment of the local area. He 
explained that the road had originally been built under a certificate of lawfulness 
to fulfil a specific temporary purpose, with the condition that it would be 
removed. He said that pledges had been made to residents by Wiltshire 
Council, in this respect and he urged Members to keep that promise. He also 
encouraged Members to consider deferring the item, so that alternative 
proposals, put forward by residents, could be properly investigated if an outright 
refusal was not considered appropriate. 
 
In the debate that followed Cllr Chris Hurst proposed that the application be 
refused, based on significant harm to the area. This was seconded by Cllr 
Gavin Grant. However, Cllr Toby Sturgis expressed concerns that if the 
Committee refused the application, there was a chance that it could be 
successful at appeal and for there to be less favourable conditions put in place. 
He suggested that a deferment may be more suitable, showing that the 
Committee are willing to consider options and work with the applicant. 
Consequently, Cllr Hurst withdrew his motion, as did Cllr Grant. Cllr Sturgis 
proposed a second motion, that the application be deferred to allow the 
applicant to consider the alternative proposals put forward by residents. This 
was seconded by Cllr Phillip Whalley and approved by the Committee.  
 
Resolved: 
Deferred to offer the applicant an opportunity to consider and respond to 
alternate scheme proposals tabled by Local Residents. Officers are to 
report back to Committee as soon as possible after the applicant has 
identified their intentions in this respect. 

Page 99



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
53c 17/00870/FUL 60 Redland, Chippenham, Wiltshire 
 
Members of the public Jonathan Li and Andrew Gregory spoke against the 
application. 
 
The applicant Shofi Mahmud spoke in favour of the application.  
 
Cllr Nina Phillips, Chippenham Town Council, spoke against the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application for a Change of Use for A5 Hot 
Food Catering. A presentation was given showing existing site, front and rear, 
and the relationship between the commercial unit and the residential properties 
above and in the surrounding area. The Officer explained that significant 
objections had been received and that a petition had also been raised. 
However, he clarified that the number of objections is not in itself a 
determinative factor. Officers explained the policy position and framework 
relevant to the site and the proposal. They identified the principal considerations 
that had been the matter of assessment including input from Public Protection 
and Highways officers, these being impacts to residential amenities through 
noise and odour disturbance; highways impacts and parking requirements. 
 
Members of the Committee were invited to ask technical questions. It was 
clarified that if residents had concerns as to health concerns, whether it be 
noise or smells, the Public Health Protection Team could be contacted and 
would investigate any concerns.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
The Local Member Cllr Andy Phillips spoke against the application, stating that 
not enough weight was being given to the resident’s health and happiness. He 
stated that not enough consideration had been given as to the impact on 
residents, through noise and odour issues, along with lack of parking.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Peter Hutton proposed the Officer’s 
recommendation for approval, with the additional informative or conditions that 
residents be given advance notice of any maintenance of the extractor system 
and for all goods deliveries to be made during daytime hours. This was 
seconded by Cllr Tony Trotman and approved by the Committee.  
 
Resolved: 
To GRANT Planning Permission as per officer recommendation subject to 
an additional condition and additional informative as follows: 
 
CONDITION:- 
All goods deliveries associated with the use herby permitted shall take 
place during daytime hours and not during evenings. Daytime hours 
hereby defined as between 8.30 am and 18:00 pm. 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity. 

Page 100



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
INFORMATIVE:- 
The applicant is advised to provide written notification to neighbouring 
residential properties above the application site of proposed maintenance 
works to the ventilation extraction plant hereby approved in advance of 
the works taking place. 
 
And the original conditions of the Officer’s Recommendations: 
CONDITIONS: 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
2. No development shall commence on site until details of the following 
matters (in respect of which approval is expressly reserved) have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority: 
(a) Materials and finishes to the extraction and ventilation plant 
(b) The position, layout and scale of the access stairs to the rear 
property.. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of the character and appearance of 
the area [and neighbouring amenities]. 
3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with and incorporate all proposals a requirements for the Odour control 
system (carbon filters and grease filters) identified within the 
“Specification of Extraction System” Received 03/02/2017. 
REASON: In the interests if the residential amenities of neighbouring 
residential properties. 
4. Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted a grease trap 
shall be fitted. This will collect and filter waste water prior to it entering 
the drain and collect all grease and fat. This shall be emptied and 
maintained in line with manufacturer’s recommendations. 
REASON: To ensure that fat and grease is prevented from entering into 
the public sewer. 
5. The Air extraction unit hereby permitted shall not exceed an LAeq39dB 
and an NR 35 (to ensure that the flue does not have any intrusive tonal 
component) at 1.5m from the termination point of the flue. 
REASON: In the interests if the residential amenities of neighbouring 
residential properties. 
6. The use and the related operation of the ventilation equipment hereby 
permitted shall only take place between the hours of 4.30pm in the 
evening and 10.30pm in the evening) from Mondays Sundays and Bank / 
Public Holidays. 

Page 101



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from 
intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the 
area. 
7. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Ground floor plans; rear elevation; 
side elevation received 03/02/2017. 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
INFORMATIVES: 
1. Food Business Registration: Under Article 6 of EC Regulation 852/2004 
all businesses who prepare, store, transport or sell food must register 
their food business with the local authority. Food businesses must 
register with their local authority at least 28 days before they begin to 
operate. Food business operators in Wiltshire can register their food 
businesses free of charge through the following web page: 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/publicprotection/foodsaf
ety/foodsafetyinformationforbusinesses/foodbusinessregistration.htm  
2. Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance 
with Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
3. The applicant is advised that this permission authorises a change of 
use and does not authorise any works or alterations that may require 
planning permission in respect of the shop front. 
4. This permission does not permit the display of any advertisements 
which require consent under the Town and Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) (England) Regulations, 2007 or under any Regulation 
revoking and re-enacting or amending those Regulations, including any 
such advertisements shown on the submitted plans. 
5. The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does 
not include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
6. The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect 
any private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying 
out of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it 
will be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent 
before such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the 
vicinity of the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient 
to seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall 
Act 1996. 
7. Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive 
material samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the 
Planning Officer where they are to be found. 
 

Page 102

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/publicprotection/foodsafety/foodsafetyinformationforbusinesses/foodbusinessregistration.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/publicprotection/foodsafety/foodsafetyinformationforbusinesses/foodbusinessregistration.htm


 
 
 

 
 
 

53d 17/03280/FUL Daisy Cottage, 26 A High Street, Sutton Benger, 
Wiltshire 
 
The applicant’s agent Richard Harlow spoke in favour of the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application which was for a detached single 
garage. Photos were shown of the site, which was identified as being within a 
conservation area which is a heritage asset. A location plan was shown, along 
with diagrams of proposed elevations and floor plans which were shown in 
comparison to a previously refused scheme and the site layout plans for the 
approved newly built dwellings at the site. It was highlighted that although there 
was a similar permission granted in the area previously, there were material 
considerations and site circumstances relevant to that application which did not 
apply in this instance. The Officers recommendation was for refusal.   
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions and in response Members 
were informed that permitted development rights would not apply to this part of 
the property (frontage adjacent a public highway), and would therefore not have 
enabled the applicant to build a shed at the front of the property.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
Cllr Peter Hutton spoke on behalf of the Local member, Cllr Howard Greenman. 
He questioned why the application should be refused where a larger garage of 
a similar nature was permitted in the nearby area.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Christine Crisp spoke of the importance of 
preserving the heritage asset and proposed the Officer’s recommendation for 
refusal. This was seconded by Cllr Sturgis and the Committee voted to approve 
the application.  
 
Resolved: 
To REFUSE Planning Permission for the following reasons: 
1.The proposed development, by reason of its design and location fails to 
conserve the character of the Conservation Area. This harm is not 
otherwise justified by any wider public benefit. The proposal is therefore 
contrary to Core Policy 57 (i) and 58 of the adopted Wiltshire Core 
Strategy, section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 and paragraphs 17, 58, 131, 132, 134, and 137 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

54 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 5.00 pm) 

 
 
 

Page 103



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Edmund Blick of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718059, e-mail edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 104



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 15 JUNE 2017 AT WESSEX ROOM, CORN EXCHANGE, THE MARKET 
PLACE, DEVIZES SN10 1HS. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Paul Oatway QPM (Vice Chairman), Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Peter Evans, 
Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Anna Cuthbert (Substitute) and 
Cllr Christopher Williams (Substitute) 
 
  

 
30. Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Mark Connolly who was substituted by Cllr 
Chris Williams, Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling who was substituted by Cllr Anna Cuthbert, 
and Cllr Nick Fogg. 
 
In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chair, Cllr Paul Oatway, was in the 
chair. 
 

31. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Cllr Stewart Dobson, seconded by Cllr Richard Gamble, moved that that the 
minutes of the Eastern Area Planning Committee held on 20 April 2017 be 
accepted as an accurate record. 
 
Resolved: 
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Eastern Area 
Planning Committee on 20 April 2017 as an accurate record. 
 

32. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

33. Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Vice-Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and introduced the 
officers present. 
 
 
 
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 13



 
 
 

 
 
 

34. Public Participation 
 
The Chairman explained the rules of public participation and confirmed that no 
questions had been submitted from members of the public. 
 

35. Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The written update on appeals was received for the period 07/04/2017 – 
02/06/2017 which included 3 new appeals and 7 concluded appeals. There 
were no questions. 
 
 

36. Planning Applications 
 

37. 17/2061/FUL - Hillside House, Lockeridge, Marlborough, SN8 4EL 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Mark Lawson, applicant, spoke in support of the application 
Mr Bob Edwards, heritage consultant, spoke in support of the application 
 
Isla MacNeal, senior conservation officer, introduced the two reports relating to 
the site, for planning permission and for listed building consent. There had been 
one late item from the applicant which had been circulated to members. The 
first report outlined the application for planning permission for: the erection of a 
replacement side extension; a glazed link into an associated outbuilding and a 
new attached store; and external alternations to the main house and 
outbuilding. The officer highlighted an error in the decription of development and 
clarified that the internal alternations were only for consideration under the 
application for listed building consent. Key issues included: the scale and bulk 
of the proposal; the design and use of materials; the impact on the character 
and setting of the listed building and on the conservation area; the impact on 
the neighbour amenity; and the ecological impact. The second report outlined 
the application for listed building consent for the same proposals with the 
addition of internal alterations to the main building and outbuilding. Additional 
key issues included the changes to the proportions of the rooms on the first 
floor. The officer recommended that both the planning and the listed building 
applications be refused for the reasons set out in the report.  
 
Members of the Committee were invited to ask technical questions of the 
officer. In response to questions, the senior conservation officer confirmed that 
it had not been necessary to consult Historic England due to the limited 
demolition work involved in the proposal. 
 
Members of the public were then invited to speak as detailed above.  
 
Cllr Jane Davies, as local division member, spoke in support of the application. 
 
In response to issues raised during the public participation, it was clarified that 
the planning considerations for making changes to a listed building related to 

Page 106



 
 
 

 
 
 

the impact on the significance of the listed building itself as opposed to how 
visible it would be from public vantage points. It was also reported that flat roofs 
were not a common feature in the local area. 
 
Cllr Richard Gamble, seconded by Cllr Peter Evans, moved that the application 
be approved with suitable conditions as detailed. 
 
In the debate that followed, the following points were made: that adjustments to 
listed buildings were often required in order to facilitate modern living standards; 
that no objections had been received from the parish council or local residents; 
that the building did not currently have easy access to its garden and that the 
proposed changes would enable this; that the proposal was sensitive to the 
character of the buildings; that taking down the existing 20th Century extension 
would improve the appearance of the property; that the extent of the proposed 
compromise to the existing building was acceptable; that the linearity of the 
building would be lost if the proposed changes were made but that this was not 
unusual for similar buildings in the area; that despite the size of the extension’s 
footprint its design would make it appear subservient to the main building; and 
that any improvements should be considered against the council’s obligation to 
protect listed buildings. 
 
In response to points raised during the debate, the area team leader confirmed 
that materials could be controlled through the imposition of a condition but not a 
change to the design of the extention and that members should determine the 
application based on the design submitted. It was also confirmed that the 
previous consent for a dormer window and internal works had been partially 
implemented so it could not be revoked through a section 106 legal agreement. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, it was 
 
Resolved: 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission 
 
REASON: 
To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans and documents: 
Doc Title: Bat Survey Report by Stark Ecology Ltd, Dated: February 2017. 
Doc Title: Application Form.  
Drg Title: Existing Section (House). Drg No: MFhillsideSECH. 
Drg Title: Existing First Floor Plan. Drg No: MFhillsideFF. Rev: A. 
Drg Title: Existing Detailed Elevations (House). Drg No: MFhillsideELH. 
Drg Title: Existing Section (Barn). Drg No: MFhillsideSECB. 
Drg Title: Existing Second Floor Plan. Drg No: MFhillside. Rev: A. 

Page 107



 
 
 

 
 
 

Drg Title: Existing Ground Floor Plan. Drg No: MFhillside. Rev: A. 
Drg Title: Existing Detailed Elevations (Barn). Drg No: MFhillsideELB. 
Drg Title: Topographical Survey. Drg No: MFhillsideTOPO.  
Drg Title: Location Plan. Drg No: 150819-01. 
Drg Title: Proposed Site Plan. Drg No: 150819-103. Rev: B. 
Drg Title: Proposed Ground Floor Plan. Drg No: 150819-104. Rev: C. 
Drg Title: Proposed First Floor Plan. Drg No: 150819-105. Rev: C.   
Drg Title: Proposed West and South Elevations. Drg No:150819-106.Rev:C. 
Drg Title: Proposed East and North Elevations. Drg No:150819-107. Rev:C. 
Drg Title: Section and Sectional Elevations. Drg No: 150819-108. Rev: C. 
 
REASON: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning 
 
3. The development shall be constructed in strict accordance with the 
recommendations given in the Bat Survey Report by Stark Ecology, dated 
February 2017 
 
REASON: 
To mitigate against the loss of existing biodiversity and nature habitats. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT 
 
4. The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act (1981) and the Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence 
to disturb or harm any protected species, or to damage or disturb their 
habitat or resting place.  Please note that this consent does not override 
the statutory protection afforded to any such species. In the event that 
your proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist and 
consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to commencing 
works.  Please see Natural England's website for further information on 
protected species 
 
 

38. 17/02723/LBC - Hillside House, Lockeridge, Marlborough, Wiltshire SN8 
4EL 
 
Isla MacNeal, the senior conservation officer, referred members to her earlier 
presentation which had encompassed all the points relevant to the above 
application. The officer reminded members that in determining the application, 
the proposed internal alternations should be considered and that the impact on 
residents would not be a valid consideration. 
 
Cllr Richard Gamble, seconded by Cllr Chris Williams, moved that the 
application be approved with suitable conditions as detailed. 
 
In the debate that followed, members discussed the impact on the listed 
building of the proposed internal and external works and the limited loss of 
historic fabric. 

Page 108



 
 
 

 
 
 

At the conclusion of debate, it was 
 
Resolved: 
 
To grant listed building consent, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The works for which Listed Building Consent is hereby granted shall be 
begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this consent.  
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans and documents: 
Doc Title: Bat Survey Report by Stark Ecology Ltd, Dated: February 2017. 

Doc Title: Application Form.  

Drg Title: Existing Section (House). Drg No: MFhillsideSECH. 

Drg Title: Existing First Floor Plan. Drg No: MFhillsideFF. Rev: A. 

Drg Title: Existing Detailed Elevations (House). Drg No: MFhillsideELH. 

Drg Title: Existing Section (Barn). Drg No: MFhillsideSECB. 

Drg Title: Existing Second Floor Plan. Drg No: MFhillside. Rev: A. 

Drg Title: Existing Ground Floor Plan. Drg No: MFhillside. Rev: A. 

Drg Title: Existing Detailed Elevations (Barn). Drg No: MFhillsideELB. 

Drg Title: Topographical Survey. Drg No: MFhillsideTOPO.  

Drg Title: Location Plan. Drg No: 150819-01. 

Drg Title: Proposed Site Plan. Drg No: 150819-103. Rev: B. 

Drg Title: Proposed Ground Floor Plan. Drg No: 150819-104. Rev: C. 

Drg Title: Proposed First Floor Plan. Drg No: 150819-105. Rev: C.   

Drg Title: Proposed West and South Elevations.Drg No:150819-106. Rev:C. 

Drg Title: Proposed East and North Elevations. Drg No:150819-107. Rev:C. 

Drg Title: Section and Sectional Elevations. Drg No:150819-108. Rev: C. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning. 

 

3. No walls shall be constructed on site, until a sample wall panel, not less 

than 1 metre square, has been constructed on site, inspected and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The panel shall then 

be left in position for comparison whilst the development is carried out. 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

sample. 

 

REASON: In the interests of preserving the character and appearance of 

the listed building and its setting. 

Page 109



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

4. Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no works shall commence on 

the new extension until details of the following have been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

 

(i) Large scale details of all external joinery (1:5 elevation, 1:2 section) 

including vertical and horizontal cross sections, through openings to the 

position of joinery within the openings, depth of reveal, heads, sill, lintels 

and glazing bar details; 

(ii) Full details of external flues, background and mechanical ventilation, 

rainwater goods and  soil/vent pipes and their exits to the open air; 

(iii) Large scale details of the proposed eaves and verges (1:5 section); 

(iv) Details of the proposed roof lights (including manufacturer and model 

number).  The new roof lights shall be of a design which, when installed, 

do not project forward of the general roof surface.   

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

REASON:  In the interests of preserving the character and appearance of 

the listed building and its setting. 

5. No new or replacement internal joinery shall be installed until joinery 

details, including for doors and architraves, have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall be 

carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

REASON: In the interests of preserving the character and appearance of 

the listed building and its setting. 

 
39. Urgent items 

 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.04 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718063, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 110



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 30 MAY 2017 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, 
SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Richard Britton (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Christopher Devine, Cllr Jose Green, 
Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Sven Hocking, Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Ian McLennan and 
Cllr John Smale 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Atiqul Hoque and Cllr Darren Henry 
  

 
 

170 Apologies 
 
There were none. 
 

171 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 6 April 2017, were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

172 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations from members of the Committee, however; Unitary 
Division Member, Cllr Atiqul Hoque declared a pecuniary interest in item 7a, 
that item would be addressed by Cllr Clewer in his place. 
 

173 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 

174 Public Participation 
 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Devine wished to ask a question to the Committee, the Chairman noted the 
rules on submitting questions with the deadlines for doing so as detailed on the 
agenda. Cllr Devine would submit his question to the next meeting. 
 

175 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the 
agenda for the period 24/3/17 to 19/5/17. 
 
Clarification on the split decision was sought. 
 
Answer: This was an application in Castle Street, which had different aspects to 
it, including external illuminated signs and for the painting of the exterior of the 
building. The Planning Officer had allowed some aspects but refused the 
painting of the front of the building. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

176 Planning Applications 
 

177 16/09793/FUL -  90 Fisherton Street, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP2 7QY 
(Baroushka) 
 
Public Participation 
Major Michael Hawtrey spoke in objection to the application 
Dr John Avery Jones CBE spoke in objection to the application 
Geoffrey Bennetts spoke in objection to the application 
Tony Allen (agent) spoke in support of the application. 
 
The Planning Officer, Christos Chrysanthou introduced a report which 
recommended that the retrospective application for retention of a single storey 
outbuilding, extension of an existing single storey outbuilding, and a single 
storey rear extension to create a cold store. With upgrading of extraction 
equipment to roof on first floor (rear) and erection of closed boarded fence and 
flue enclosure, be approved.  
 
Key details were stated to include the impact to the conservation area, and that 
numerous objections had been received. The previous application had been 
refused, due to the impact of the extraction equipment in terms of noise and 
odour. 
 
This application had now submitted a noise and odour level assessment. The 
proposals now complied with required levels and was not considered to be of a 
negative impact. 
 
The noise report indicated that the new system was ten decibels lower than the 
old system. The current fence was not continuous so would need to be 
replaced. The applicant had agreed to timber clad the outbuildings and stain the 
fence with a colour agreed by the Planning Authority. 

Page 112



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Following complaints regarding noise levels, noise recording equipment had 
been placed in a resident’s flat, where it did not record anything above the 
levels considered to be a nuisance. 
 
Attention was draw to the site visit which had been undertaken earlier that day. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. Details were sought whether the back yard was use by 
customers, it was clarified that it was only used by staff of the restaurant.  
 
It was noted that one of the conditions in the report stated that development 
should have begun by expiry of 3 years of this application, it was asked whether 
there was a danger that the applicant could leave the site unchanged for a 
period of 3 years before anything was changed? It was clarified that this was a 
standard condition and was followed up with other planning conditions which 
required the work to be carried out within 3 months. The Committee asked for 
this to be taken out. 
 
An Environmental Health Officer investigated the noise complaints, and 
installed recording equipment over a period of 4 days the equipment did not 
pick up any recordings of the required level to be considered a statutory 
nuisance. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member; Cllr Hoque had declared an interest. Cllr Clewer 
spoke on his behalf, as up until the last election he had represented the next 
ward to this.  
 
He noted that there had been concern about this site. Although this had been a 
restaurant for many years, there had also been residents there prior to the 
alterations which had taken place. 
 
The development concerned the entirety of the rear of this property, and was of 
a poor standard. This was a case of over development. He suggested that 
perhaps it would be favourable if the structures had been fitted together as part 
of one building at the end of the main building but not at the end of the garden. 
 
The site was in the city centre, overlooked by a lot of other properties. Even 
when a building meets the requirement, it can still be intrusive, especially where 
you have a lot of residents in flats. He urged the Committee to refuse the 
application and to ask the applicant to go away and come back with another 
development proposal which suited the city centre. 
 
Cllr Devine then moved the motion for approval, in line with the Officer’s 
recommendation this was seconded by Cllr Dean. 
 

Page 113



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Devine noted that people living near a restaurant, should expect that it will 
operate as a restaurant. The improvements to the extraction unit would be of 
benefit, and the fence would be improved with a coat of paint. Sympathy with 
residents but the applicant is working within the guidelines. 
 
A debate the ensued where key points were raised including; that the colour of 
the fence had been suggested as gun metal grey, however this could be 
changed with a condition. 
 
This was a retrospective application as the applicant had already erected the 
structures. If this was an application for proposed works, then how would the 
Committee vote. It was felt that this was a disregard of the planning process, 
which in this case had not been followed. 
 
The fencing did not comply with the requirements and should be continuous. 
 
The site was in a conservation area, we all want Salisbury to look better, and be 
improved as time goes on. It was recognised that restaurants needed to flourish 
also, however the prefab buildings would not get permission if they came as an 
application today, and the wiring had not been carried out correctly. 
 
The application would be considered on the planning merits of what was before 
us today. Previous reasons for refusal have been addressed. The out buildings 
were not attractive. It was important that if the application was supported then 
the conditioning should be carefully considered to mitigate the poor quality of 
those buildings. 
 
The business had been there for over 50 years. The buildings at the rear had 
been put up ad-hoc over the years, with no planning design, and no history of 
when they were built. Sec 7 NPPF & CP57, CP58 regards high quality design. 
This was not a properly designed feature, taking in to account its surroundings.  
 
The Committee voted on the motion of Approval subject to conditions. This 
motion was not carried. 
 
The Chairman moved the motion of refusal, this was seconded by Cllr Smale. 
 
Resolved 
That Planning Permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 
The single storey outbuilding, extension of the existing single storey 
outbuilding, single storey cold store and close boarded fence and flue 
enclosure are considered to be poorly designed by reason of their 
materials, siting and layout. Part 7 of the National Planning policy 
framework states that it is important to plan positively for the achievement 
of high quality and inclusive design for all development including 
individual buildings, public and private spaces. It is considered that these 
buildings situated as they are within the Salisbury conservation area and 
visible in public view along the river from Fisherton Street and 
neighbouring residential properties at Steynings house do not meet the 

Page 114



 
 
 

 
 
 

high quality of design required by the NPPF for such a development. The 
buildings appear as a jumble of unrelated utilitarian structures and the 
fence at first floor level a prominent and unsightly feature out of character 
with the conservation area, as such the development is considered to be 
contrary to part 7 the NPPF, as well as core policies CP57 and CP58 of the 
Wiltshire Core strategy which require developments to achieve a high 
standard of design. 
 

178 16/11817/FUL - Land at Grove House, Maddington Street, Shrewton 
 
Public Participation 
Ian Sawyer spoke in objection to the application 
Phil Sheargold spoke in objection to the application 
Martin Pennell spoke in objection to the application 
Aaron Smith (Agent) spoke in support of the application 
Cllr John Berry spoke on behalf of Shrewton Parish Council 
 
The Planning Team Leader; Adam Madge introduced a report which 
recommended that the application for the erection of 3 new dwellings with 
parking and landscaping, be approved.  
 
Key details were stated to include that most of the trees outlined would be 
retained around the site, some with TPOs. The out building on the site had 
some character and would be retained, whilst some other outbuildings would be 
demolished. 
 
The objections received from neighbours, had asked about flooding on the site, 
however following consulting the Environment Agency, they had not raised any 
objections to this application. A flooding map was included in the report and 
detailed that flooding extends to the front of the site. 
 
Attention was drawn to the site visit which had been undertaken earlier that day. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer.  
 
It was noted that the development was liable for CIL, this would be dealt with 
outside of the planning process, once works commence on site. 
 
A study carried out had identified a potential for bats in the old building, but not 
in the other buildings. There were no proposals for street lighting. 
 
A Neighbourhood Plan had not yet been adopted for Shrewton. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
Shrewton Parish Council stated their objections to the application, which had 
also been detailed within the report. 
 

Page 115



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Unitary Division Member; Cllr Darren Henry then spoke and explained that 
it was called in by his predecessor Cllr West, so he did not wish to comment. 
 
The Chairman, Cllr Westmoreland then moved the motion for approval, this was 
seconded by Cllr Hewitt. 
 
A debate the ensued where key points were raised including, that there was a 
footpath on either side of the entrance, which was better than most.  
 
There had been no objections from the consultees, and the size of the plot 
would take the development of this size well. None of the neighbouring 
properties appeared to have enormous gardens either.  
 
It would not be possible to apply the condition for a bat survey on the barn 
unless the applicant was planning to do work in it.  
 
Resolved 
That Planning Permission be granted with the following conditions:  

 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
 REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans:  
 
 Application Form & Certificate 
 Ref: 8821/100 Rev F – Site, Block, Location Plans & Street Scenes.  

Received – 14.03.2017 
 Ref: 8821/101 Rev C – Floor Plans & Elevations Unit 1.  Received – 

14.03.2017 
 Ref: 8821/102 Rev C – Floor Plans & Elevations Units 2 & 3.  Received 

– 14.03.2017 
 
 REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning. 
 
3  No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 

samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
 REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 

this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 

Page 116



 
 
 

 
 
 

before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 

 
4  No development shall commence on site until details of all eaves, 

verges, windows (including head, sill and window reveal details), 
doors, rainwater goods, chimneys, dormers and canopies have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
 REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 

this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 

 
6  No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 

soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:- 

 

 location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

 full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development; 

 a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply 
and planting sizes and planting densities; 

 finished levels and contours; 

 means of enclosure; 

 car park layouts; 

 other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

 all hard and soft surfacing materials; 

 minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 
refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 

 
 REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 

this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 

 
7  All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 

shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following 
the first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the 
development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge 
planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected 

Page 117



 
 
 

 
 
 

from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a 
period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged 
or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others 
of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of 
any part of the development or in accordance with a programme to be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 

 
8  No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 

until the access, turning area and parking spaces have been 
completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved 
plans. The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times 
thereafter. 

 
 REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
9  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending those Orders with or without 
modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A, B, C or E shall 
take place on the dwelling houses hereby permitted or within their 
curtilage without the prior grant of planning permission from the local 
planning authority.  

 
 REASON:  In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 

Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or 
enlargements. 

 
10  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no windows, doors or other form of openings other than 
those shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the northern 
or southern elevations of the new dwellings hereby permitted. 

 
 REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
11  Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied all of the 

first floor windows annotated with OG on the approved plans, shall be 
glazed with obscure glass only [to an obscurity level of no less than 
level 5] and shall be fitted to be top hung only.  The windows shall be 
maintained as such with obscure glazing in perpetuity. 

 
 REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 

Page 118



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
12 The retained outbuilding on the northern boundary of the site (labelled 

barn on the approved plans) shall not be occupied at any time other 
than for purposes incidental to the residential use of the dwelling, 
known as Plot 1 and it shall remain within the same planning unit as 
that dwelling. 

 
 REASON: The additional accommodation is sited in a position where 

the Local Planning Authority, having regard to the reasonable 
standards of residential amenity, access, and planning policies 
pertaining to the area, would not permit a wholly separate dwelling. 

 
13  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no windows, doors or other form of openings, shall be 
inserted in the northern elevation of the retained outbuilding on the 
northern boundary of the site (labelled barn on the approved plans) 

 
 REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
14 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 

demolition), until a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority.  The Construction Method Statement shall include details of 
the following: 

 
a)   the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
b)  loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
c)   storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development;  
d) the use of oils/chemicals and materials 
d)  the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where 
appropriate; 

e)   wheel washing facilities; 
f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction; 
g)   a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 

demolition and construction works;  
h)   measures for the protection of the natural environment; and  
i) hours of construction, including deliveries 

 j) the use and routing of heavy plant and vehicles 
 

The development shall be constructed in strict accordance with the 
approved statement throughout the construction period. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 

Page 119



 
 
 

 
 
 

before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects 
to the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution 
and dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 

 
15 No development shall commence on site until a Construction 

Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP shall 
provide details of the measures that will be implemented during the 
construction phase to protect the River Avon Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC) and protected/priority species and habitats.  
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection and mitigation for the River 
Avon SAC and protected and priority species and habitats, and to 
accord with wildlife legislation and policy and Policies CP50 and CP69 
of the Wiltshire Core Strategy.   
 

16 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of foul water from the site, including any offsite capacity 
works together with all third party permissions/agreements has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The development shall not be occupied until foul water drainage has 
been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme including 
any offsite improvement works 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development 
can be adequately drained without increasing flood risk to others 

 
17 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 

discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from 
the access / driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details 
(testing to BRE 365 and determination of ground water levels) together 
with all third party permissions in place, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The plan must 
demonstrate that there will be no adverse impact upon the River Avon. 
The development shall not be first occupied until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme 

 
 REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 

this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development 

Page 120



 
 
 

 
 
 

can be adequately drained without increasing flood risk to others; and 
to ensure adequate protection of the River Avon 

 
18 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for water 

efficiency has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with the agreed scheme. 

  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of sustainable 
development and climate change adaptation. 

 
19 No development shall take place on site, including site clearance, 

storage of materials or other preparatory work, until an Arboricultural 
Method Statement, has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing, Thereafter the development shall 
be undertaken only in accordance with the approved details. 

 The Arboricultural Method Statement shall show the areas which 
are designated for the protection of trees, hereafter referred to as 
the Root Protection Area (RPA). Unless otherwise agreed, the RPA 
will be fenced, in accordance with the British Standard Guide for 
Trees in Relation to Construction (BS.5837: 2012) and no access 
will be permitted for any development operation. 

 The Arboricultural Method Statement should specifically include 
details of how the driveway can be constructed within the RPA of 
the adjacent Yew tree without causing root damage. Furthermore, 
timing should be considered to ensure the roots of the Yew are not 
damaged by compaction (by vehicle movement) until the special 
surfacing is put in place. 

 The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include provision for 
the supervision and inspection of the tree protection measures. 
The fencing, or other protection which is part of the approved 
Statement shall not be moved or removed, temporarily or 
otherwise, until all works, including external works have been 
completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials 
removed from the site, unless the prior approval of the Local 
Planning Authority has been given in writing. 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, and to comply with the duties 
indicated in Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
so as to ensure that the amenity value of the most important trees, 
shrubs and hedges growing within or adjacent to the site is 
adequately protected during the period of construction. 

Page 121



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
20 The outbuilding on the northern boundary of the site (labelled as 

‘barn’ on the approved plans), which is a confirmed bat roost, shall be 
retained in accordance with the details set out within the Ecological 
Appraisal, (dated March 2017 and prepared by All Ecology Ltd)  

 
 REASON: To ensure adequate protection of the confirmed bat roost.  
 
21 No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing the 

type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, illumination 
levels and light spillage have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved lighting shall 
be installed and shall be maintained in accordance with the approved 
details and no additional external lighting shall be installed. 

 
 REASON: To ensure adequate protection of and mitigation for the 

confirmed bat roost  
INFORMATIVES 
1  The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 

represent chargeable development under the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire 
Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is determined to 
be liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued notifying you of the 
amount of CIL payment due. If an Additional Information Form has not 
already been submitted, please submit it now so that we can 
determine the CIL liability. In addition, you may be able to claim 
exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the relevant form so 
that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL Commencement Notice 
and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire Council 
prior to commencement of development.  Should development 
commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by the local 
planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and full 
payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer 
to the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/comm
unityinfrastructurelevy.  

 
2 Please note that the outbuilding that is to be retained which is situated 

on the northern boundary of the site (and labelled barn on the 
approved plans), has been found to support a bat roost.  Bats are 
protected by law and if any works are proposed to this building in the 
future, will need to be undertaken in full consultation with a qualified 
ecologist and/or Natural England. 

 
3 In accordance with condition 17, the development hereby approved 

should include water efficient systems and fittings. These should 
include dual-flush toilets, water butts, water-saving taps, showers and 
baths, and appliances with the highest water efficiency rating (as a 

Page 122

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


 
 
 

 
 
 

minimum). Greywater recycling and rainwater harvesting should be 
considered. 

 
4 In order to satisfy condition 17, details will need to be submitted which 

include a water usage calculator showing how the development will 
not exceed a total (internal and external) usage level of 110 litres per 
person per day 

 
5 Please note that a separate application will need to be made to the 

Environment Agency under the Land Drainage Act in relation to any 
works within 8m of a main river 

 
6 Please note that a separate application will need to be made to the 

Lead Local Flood Authority under the Land Drainage Act in relation to 
any works within 8m of an open or culverted ordinary water course  

 
7 Please note that a separate application will need to be made to the 

Lead Local Flood Authority under the Land Drainage Act in relation to 
discharge location and rates to any water course  

 
8 please note that in addition to any other permission(s) that you may 

have already obtained (e.g. planning permission), you may need an 
environmental permit for flood risk activities (formerly known as Flood 
Defence Consent prior to 6 April 2016) if you want to carry out work: 
 in, under, over or near a main river (including where the river is in 

a culvert) 
 on or near a flood defence on a main river 
 in the flood plain of a main river 
 on or near a sea defence 
For further information and to check whether a permit is required 
please visit: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-
environmental-permits. Or contact your local Environment Agency 
FRA Permitting Officer, daniel.griffin@environment-agency.gov.uk / 
yvonne.wiacek@environment-agency.gov.uk 
 

9 The applicant’s attention is drawn to the comments made in the letter 
dated 1st February 2017 from the Dorset & Wiltshire Fire & Rescue 
Service 

 
 
It was noted that now the meetings were to start at 3.00pm, the Committee 
requested that a Highways Officer attends future meetings to answer any 
highways related queries. 
 

179 17/00829/FUL - Old Airfield Site, Bells Lane, Stourton 
 
Public Participation 
Julia Leadbury spoke in objection to the application 
Graham Loaddell spoke in support of the application 
Tamsin Holmes spoke in support of the application 

Page 123

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits
mailto:daniel.griffin@environment-agency.gov.uk
mailto:yvonne.wiacek@environment-agency.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr David Marks spoke on behalf of Stourton with Gasper PC. 
 
The Planning Team Leader Adam Madge, introduced a report which 
recommended that the application for a Store building for wood and woodchip 
for biomass with associated landscaping works (Resubmission of 
16/12294/FUL) be approved.  
 
Key details were stated to include that this would be 4 storey store, with the top 
half, timber and bottom half concrete with a metal roof. The existing hedgerow 
would be maintained with additional landscaping planned. 
 
Currently, wood from Stourhead estate was chipped elsewhere. Under the new 
proposals, the wood would be chipped on site 4 times per year and stored on 
site. 
 
Attention was draw to the late correspondence circulated at the meeting. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer.  
 
It was noted that the National Trust had agreed to reinstate the styles at the 
footpath. The Committee asked for reasonable sized hedges and trees to be 
planted. 
 
The tree protection orders were only on the first group of trees; the Planning 
Officer would ask the TPO Officer to look at the other section of trees also. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
Stourton & Gasper Parish Council noted their objections, as detailed in the 
report. 
 
The Unitary Division Member; Cllr Jeans then spoke in objection to the 
application, noting that one of the fears of the local people was that this would, 
in time be expanded in to a visitor’s centre. Reasons for refusal, were the 
impact on the AONB. 
 
Cllr Jeans then moved the motion for refusal, this was seconded by Cllr Dalton. 
 
A debate then ensued where it was noted that the proposal would be utilising an 
old concrete base. There had been a reduction from the originally proposed 20 
days per year to 4 which was considered a a good compromise.  
 
The countryside was full of noise and agricultural buildings, the National Trust 
had appeared to have bent over backwards to make sure this would not stand 
out, along with the reinstatement of the footpath.  
 
The Committee voted on the motion of refusal, this was not carried.  
 

Page 124



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Chairman, Cllr Westmoreland moved the motion of approval, which was 
seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
Resolved 
That Planning Permission be APPROVED with the following conditions: 
 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.  

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans listed in schedule  
 
National Trust Stourhead Visitor Access Management Plan June 
2008 13579/TR01 
Impact Assessment Issue 2 by Cawse Design dated 15/12/16 ref 
1968-2016-GJC 
Justification Statement Issue 3 by Cawse Design dated Dec 2016 ref 
1969-2016-GJC 
Design and Access Statement Issue 4 by Cawse Design dated 
3/1/17 ref 1967-2016-GJC 
Letter from T. Holmes, Senior Facilities Co-Ordinator, National 
Trust, dated 22 March 2017 
Proposed Location Plan 1300120-P13E dated Dec 2016 
Proposed Block Plan and Elevations 1300120-P10C dated March 
2016 
Proposed Plan 1300120-P11E dated Dec 2016 
Landscape Plan 1300120-P9D dated Dec 2016 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No development shall commence on the biomass store building 
hereby approved above ground level until the exact details, colours 
and samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and 
roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details.  

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area and AONB. 
 

Page 125



 
 
 

 
 
 

4. Prior to the development being first brought in to use, a traffic 

management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. The plan will include details with 

regards to the number of vehicle movements, types of vehicles, 

baseline traffic data for the area and a recommended schedule of 

vehicle movements to help avoid conflict with other road users. The 

site operations will thereafter be conducted in accordance with the 

approved plan in perpetuity. 

 
  REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 

 
5. The wood chipping process hereby approved shall only take place 

between the hours of 0900hrs and 1800hrs Mondays to Fridays and 
between 0900hrs and 1300hrs on Saturdays and shall not take place 
at any time on Sundays and Bank/ Public Holidays 
 

Reason: In the interests of neighbouring amenities 
 

6. The wood chipping process hereby approved may occur on a 
maximum on a maximum of 4 days per calendar year and shall not 
generally take place on consecutive days in any calendar year. 

 
Reason: In the interests of neighbouring amenities 
 

7. No vehicular deliveries shall be made to or collections made from 
the development hereby approved except between the hours of:   
0900hrs and 1800hrs Monday to Friday and  

0900hrs and 1300hrs Saturdays 

 

There shall be no deliveries or collections made to or from the site 

on Sundays and Bank/ Public Holidays. 

 
Reason: In the interests of neighbouring amenities 

 
8. No development shall commence on the biomass store building 

hereby approved above ground level until a scheme of tree and 
hedge planting has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include :-  
 

• location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows 
on the land;  
• full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development;  
• a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities for the south boundary hedge and its 
future management;   

Page 126



 
 
 

 
 
 

• Trees of a size and species and in a location on the west boundary to be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted in 
accordance with BS3936 (Parts 1 and 4), BS4043 and BS4428  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features.  
 

9. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner. All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 
 

Informatives 
 

1. STGA 12 public footpath: please be advised that nothing in this 
permission shall authorise the diversion, obstruction, or stopping up 
of any right of way that crosses the site, during or after construction. 

2. The applicant is requested to allow the existing hedge running 
east/west between Bells Lane and the direction of the B3092 Frome 
Road, to gain height and thickness, for screening purposes. The hedge 
is interrupted by a field gate when travelling from Bells Lane to the 
B3092. The hedge needs to thicken and grow from the field gate to 
Bells Lane Stourton. (Bells Lane Stourton continues to Bells Lane 
Zeals). With reference to condition 8 above, the applicant may also 
wish to include details of this hedge in the landscape details 
submission.   

3. The local authority requests that the applicant continues to reassess 
alternative vehicle routes in future for the transportation of the wood 
chipping’s based on operational experience as per the National Trust’s 
letter to the local planning authority dated the 15th May 2017. 
 

Page 127



 
 
 

 
 
 

4. The local authority ask that the wood chipping activity does not exceed 
68 -74 DBA when measured at a distance of 50M away from the wood 
chipper as specified in the details submitted to the local planning 
authority of the wood chipping operation. 

 
Members also asked officers that rights of way are notified of the blockage to 
the right of way. 

 

 
180 17/01780/FUL - South View, Nett Road, Shrewton, SP3 4EX 

 
Public Participation 
Leanne Blake spoke in objection to the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Lucy Minting introduced a report which 
recommended that the application for the proposed detached dwelling with 
parking (Resubmission of 16/08365/FUL) be approved subject to conditions.  
 
Key details were stated to include that the application followed a previously 
withdrawn scheme. The scheme before the Committee included lower eaves 
and ridge height. 
 
Attention was draw to the site visit which had been undertaken earlier that day. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer, of which there were none. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
Shrewton Parish Council noted their objections, as detailed in the report. 
 
The Unitary Division Member; Cllr Darren Henry made no comment. 
 
Cllr Hewitt then moved the motion for approval, this was seconded by Cllr 
Smale. 
 
A debate the ensued where key points were raised including that the concerns 
relating to the run off, of water from the development would be dealt with under 
condition 6, as detailed in the report.  
 
Resolved 
That Planning Permission be Approved with the following conditions: 
 
(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission.  
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

Page 128



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans: 
Plan Reference: 1:500 Scale Site Plan, received by this office 22/02/2017 
Plan Reference: 16054/3 Elevations, Section, Roof Plan, dated 13/02/2017, 
received by this office 22/02/2017 
Plan Reference: 16054/1 G F Plan, dated 26/07/16, received by this office 
22/02/2017 
Plan Reference: 16054/2 F F Plan, dated 26/07/16, received by this office 
22/02/2017 
Plan Reference: 1:200 Scale Block Plan, received by this office 28/04/2017 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
(3) No development shall commence on site until the exact details and samples 
of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of 
the area. 
 
(4)  No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:- 
• location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows on the 
land; 
• full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in 
the course of development; 
• a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and planting 
sizes and planting densities; 
• means of enclosure; and 
• all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the 
protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
(5)  All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall 
be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first 
occupation of the dwelling or the completion of the development whichever is 
the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from 
weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 
a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development 
or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority.  

Page 129



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and 
the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

(6) No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/parking areas), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
The development shall not be first occupied until surface water drainage 
has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
(7) The gradient of the new parking spaces shall not be steeper than 1 in 
15 for the first 5.0m of their length, measured back from the carriageway 
edge. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
(8) The new dwelling hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the first 
five metres of the access/parking areas, measured from the edge of the 
carriageway (for both the proposed and existing dwelling (No 1 South View), has 
been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel) access and the 
parking spaces for both the proposed and existing dwelling (No 1 South View) 
have been consolidated, surfaced and laid out in accordance with the approved 
details (Plan Reference: 1:200 Scale Block Plan, received by this office 
28/04/2017).  These areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times 
thereafter. 
REASON:  To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within the site 
in the interests of highway safety. 
 

(9) The new dwelling hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the 
area between the nearside carriageway edge and a line drawn 2.0m 
parallel thereto over the whole site frontage (excepting the new parking 
area) has been cleared of any obstruction to visibility at or above a height 
on 1.0m above the nearside carriageway level. The area shall be 
maintained free of obstruction at all times thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
(10) The first floor bathroom window in the front elevation shall be glazed with 
obscure glass only and fitted to be top hung only or fixed with a ventilation stay 
restricting the opening of the window prior to the first occupation of the 
development hereby permitted and shall be permanently maintained as such in 
perpetuity.  
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
(11) The dwelling hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy performance at 
or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes.  The dwelling shall 
not be occupied until evidence has been issued and submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the local planning authority certifying that this level or equivalent 
has been achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal or 
equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy are 
achieved. 
 

Page 130



 
 
 

 
 
 

(12) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions to, or extensions or 
enlargements of any building forming part of the development hereby 
permitted.  
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
(13) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with 
or without modification), there shall be no windows or other forms of 
openings inserted above ground floor level in the front or side elevations 
of the development hereby permitted. 
REASON:  To secure adequate standards of privacy for the occupants of 
neighbouring premises. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Community Infrastructure Levy 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Works on the highway 
The consent hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry 
out works on the highway. The applicant is advised that a licence will be 
required from the local highway authority before any works are carried out 
on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of 
the highway. Please contact the Council’s Vehicle Crossing Team on 
vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk and/or 01225 713352. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Material Samples 

Page 131

mailto:vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 

Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 

181 17/02426/FUL & 17/03041/LBC - Poppy Cottage, Downton 
 
Public Participation 
Adam Mussell spoke in support of the application 
Jonathon Ross (architect) spoke in support of the application 
 
The Planning Team Leader, Adam Madge introduced a report which 
recommended that the application for a two storey rear extension (Resubmission of 

16/05522/FUL) be refused.  
 
Key details were stated to include that the design has changed significantly with 
a much more traditional looking first floor design, incorporating a thatched roof. 
 
A previous application had come before the committee in September 2016. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer.  
 
Details were sought on the broader issues of the application, such as how it 
would sit with the barn at the back. It was noted that the proposed development 
would leave a relatively small outdoor space at the rear with the barn already in 
place. The Conservation Officer had not been in attendance, however it was 
stated that it was the Conservation Officers concern that the scale of the 
proposed development including ground and first floor, would impact on this 
grade 2 listed building. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member; Cllr Clewer then spoke in support of the 
application. He felt that the design this time was far more in keeping with the 
property. The issue, he felt was whether there was a reason to overcome the 
substantial harm if this was to be approved. 
 
No objections had been received from the parish council, and the Downton 
Society was extremely supportive of the application.  
 
The Chairman, Cllr Westmoreland then moved the motion for approval, this was 
seconded by Cllr Smale. 
 
A debate the ensued where key points were raised including that the report 
makes clear reference that loss of the chimney and barn at the rear of property 
was not suitable. The Conservation Officer and Natural England had both raised 
concerns.  
 

Page 132



 
 
 

 
 
 

This was a family home, not a dwelling house. The development would remove 
the poor modern 2004 extension and would replace it with something sensitive 
and in keeping in its place. The current design proposal was a vast 
improvement on the previous, there were also no neighbour objections. 
 
The Chairman, Cllr Westmoreland moved for Approval, this was seconded by 
Cllr Smale.  
Resolved 
That Planning Permission be granted for application 17/02426/FUL, with 
the following conditions: 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans:  
 
DRG No. 15/1887/LOC1       10/03/2017 
DRG No. 15/1887/OS1         10/03/2017 
DRG No. 15/1887/101          10/03/2017 
DRG No. 15/1887/102          10/03/2017 
DRG No. 15/1887/103          10/03/2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no works shall commence until 
details of the following have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority: 
 
(i)          Large scale details of proposed eaves and verges (1:5 section); 
(ii)         The choice of brick for the herringbone pattern work will be 
submitted to the local planning authority for approval.  Once approved a 
sample panel of the herringbone brickwork, pointed with lime mortar shall 
be made available on site and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority prior to the commencement of the brickwork. The parapets will 
be capped in Bath stone. 
(iii)        The rainwater goods will be round or half round cast iron and 
painted. 
(iv)        The render shall be a lime render. 
(v)         A structural report identifying how the new roof will be 
constructed and what impact it will have on the existing roof at the point 
of intersection (i.e. how the rafters of the existing roof will be impacted 
upon). 
 
The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

Page 133



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of preserving the 
character and appearance of the listed building and its setting. 
 
Prior to occupation of the extension hereby approved, the new roof will be 
constructed in combed wheat reed with a flush wrap over ridge not a 
block ridge as indicated on the drawings. 
 
REASON: In the interests of preserving the character and appearance of 
the listed building and its setting. 
 
Notwithstanding the approved drawings, the new windows will be single 
glazed, flush-framed timber painted windows. Details at a scale of 1:5 
including sections (vertical and horizontal) shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval prior to any works commencing on site. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of preserving the 
character and appearance of the listed building and its setting. 
 
 
Resolved 
That Planning Permission be granted for application 17/03041/LBC, with 
the following conditions: 
 

1. The works for which Listed Building Consent is hereby granted 

shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of 

this consent. 

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans:  

 
DRG No. 15/1887/LOC1       10/03/2017 
DRG No. 15/1887/OS1         10/03/2017 
DRG No. 15/1887/101          10/03/2017 
DRG No. 15/1887/102          10/03/2017 
DRG No. 15/1887/103          10/03/2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning. 

Page 134



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Cllr McLennan noted his dissent at the decision. 
 
It was also noted that the Committee asked for the Conservation Officer to 
attend future meetings where they had registered concerns or objections. 
 
 

182 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.15 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 31 MAY 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Phil Alford, Cllr Trevor Carbin, 
Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Stewart Palmen, Cllr Deborah Halik 
(Substitute), Cllr Russell Hawker (Substitute), Cllr Gordon King (Substitute), 
Cllr Roy While (Substitute) and Cllr Jerry Wickham (Substitute) 
 
  

 
31 Apologies 

 
Members of the WAPC were introduced and the Chairman welcomed new 
members to their first planning committee. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: Cllr Jonathon Seed who was 
substituted for by Cllr Jerry Wickham; Cllr Ernie Clark who was substituted for 
by Cllr Russell Hawker; Cllr Pip Ridout who was substituted for by Cllr Roy 
While; Cllr Edward Kirk who was substituted for by Cllr Deborah Halik; and Cllr 
Sarah Gibson who was substituted for by Cllr Gordon King. 
 

32 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 April 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting of the 
Western Area Planning Committee held on 5 April 2017. 
 

33 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Sarah Gibson declared a pecuniary interest in application 17/02807/FUL 
and explained that she was in attendance as the applicant’s agent and not in 
her capacity as a councillor. 
 

34 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman had no announcements to make. 
 

Page 137

Agenda Item 15



 
 
 

 
 
 

35 Public Participation 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present and explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 

36 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for the period between 24/03/2017 and 
19/05/2017 was received. 
 
It was noted that Wiltshire Council continues to have a good track record for 
defending appeals. 
 
Members were reminded of the period in which they or interested third parties 
could submit comments to the inspectorate for upcoming appeals. 
 

37 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 
37a 16/07872/FUL - Greenacre House, Cleveland Gardens, Trowbridge 
 
Public Participation 
Mr P. Sorisi, resident, spoke in objection to the application 
Mrs G. Curtis, resident, spoke in objection to the application 
Mr A. Howard, agent, spoke in support of the application 
 
Matthew Perks, as senior planning officer, presented the report which 
comprised the extension of an existing building to provide three single bedroom 
ground-floor flats and three two bedroom flats above; and the demolition of the 
existing attached cottage. Members were reminded that this application was a 
revision of an earlier submission deferred by members at the 14 December 
2016 meeting, which confirmed the removal of the previously proposed semi-
detached dwellings to the rear of the site. It was recommended that the 
application be approved with conditions in accordance with the officer’s report 
but with the removal of condition 11. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: highway safety and parking; design issues and the effects on the 
neighbouring amenity. The officer reported the concerns of neighbours, 
including a late representation relating to bin storage but that he was satisfied 
the revised plans were now acceptable. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. In response to questions it was confirmed that: suitable bin 
storage would be included within the required landscaping plan; and that the 
provision for parking met the approved standards but an informative to the 

Page 138



 
 
 

 
 
 

applicant could be included to address the need for visitor parking, should 
members be minded to approve the application;  
 
Members of the public had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above.  
 
Cllr Deborah Halik, read a statement in support of the application, on behalf of 
Cllr Edward Kirk, the unitary division member for Trowbridge Adcroft. 
 
In response to issues raised during public participation, it was clarified: that 
building work had started on the property and that the plans included in the 
application were a true reflection of what had been built; that the distance 
between the properties met the required privacy regulations; that measures to 
reduce the disruption caused by the building work would be included within the 
construction management plan, which would be secured by a planning 
condition. 
 
Cllr Deborah Halik, seconded by Cllr Trevor Carbin, moved that the application 
be approved for the reasons presented in the officer’s report, with the removal 
of condition 11 and the addition of a requirement for the provision of visitor 
parking. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: an acknowledgement 
that the applicant(s) had made the requested amendments which justified the 
deferral and that the application had been improved by the removal of the 
detached two dwellings in the rear of the site and the provision for on-site 
parking. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, it was:  
 
Resolved 
 
To approve planning permission subject to the following conditions and 
informatives. 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
 
Location and Block Plan – Dwg No. 2326/1 Rev C received on 13 February 
2017; Existing Site Plan – Dwg No. 2326/2 received on 10 August 2016; 
Existing Ground Floor Plan – Dwg No. 2326/3 received on 10 August 2016; 
Existing Front Elevation Plan – Dwg No. 2326/4 received on 10 August 
2016; Existing Rear Elevation Plan – Dwg No. 2326/5 received on 10 
August 2016; Existing End Elevation Plan - Dwg No. 2326/6 received on 10 

Page 139



 
 
 

 
 
 

August 2016; Existing Floor Plans – Dwg No. 2326/7 received on 28 
October 2016; Proposed Ground Floor Plan - Dwg No. 2326/8 C received 
on 1 February 2017; Proposed First Floor Plan – Dwg No. 2326/9 C 
received on 12 May 2017; Proposed Second Floor Plan – Dwg No. 2326/10 
E received on 12 May 2017; Proposed Front Elevation Plan – Dwg No. 
2326/11 C received on 12 May 2017; Proposed Rear Elevation Plan – Dwg 
No. 23126/12 D received on 12 May 2017; Proposed End Elevation Plan – 
Dwg No. 23126/13 B received on 1 February 2017; Proposed Site Plan – 
Dwg No. 2326/SP Rev G received on 12 May 2017. 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. Notwithstanding the description in the application form, the materials to 
be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the extension to 
the existing building hereby permitted shall match in material, colour and 
texture those used in the existing building, including the use of matching 
stone. 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
4. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first brought into use until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of future 
occupants. 
 
5. No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Management Plan, which shall include 
the following: 
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
b) the loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
c) the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development; 
d) the measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 
construction; 
e) the hours of construction, including deliveries; 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement. 
REASON: To minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, 
the amenities of the area in general, detriment to the natural environment 
through the risks of pollution and dangers to highway safety, during the 
construction phase. 
 

Page 140



 
 
 

 
 
 

6. No development above slab level shall commence on site until a 
scheme of hard and soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall 
include :- 
- the location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 
- full details of trees be retained, together with measures for their 
protection, as well as the protection of any other tree on neighbouring 
property that may be affected, in the course of development; 
- finished levels; 
- the means of enclosure(s); 
- car park layout including allocation of spaces; and 
- all hard and soft surfacing materials. 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 
7. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; Any trees or plants which, within a period of five 
years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 
be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
8. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first brought into 
use until the access, turning area and parking spaces have been 
completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. 
The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of future 
occupants 
 
9. The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use 
until the first five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the 
carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or 
gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of future 
occupants. 
 
10. The new dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. The dwellings shall not be occupied until evidence has been 

Page 141



 
 
 

 
 
 

issued and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved. 
 
INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT: 
 
1. The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. 
 
2. The applicant is advised to contact Wessex Water with regard to new 
connections and in respect of any agreement that may be required with 
regard to the protection of existing infrastructure. 
 
3. There is a low risk that bats may occur at the development site. Many 
species of bat depend on buildings for roosting, with each having its own 
preferred type of roost. Most species roost in crevices such as under 
ridge tiles, behind roofing felt or in cavity walls and are therefore not often 
seen in the roof space. Bat roosts are protected all times by the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
even when bats are temporarily absent because, being creatures of habit, 
they usually return to the same roost site every year. Planning permission 
for development does not provide a defence against prosecution under 
this legislation or substitute for the need to obtain a bat licence if an 
offence is likely. If bats or evidence of bats is found during the works, the 
applicant is advised to stop work and follow advice from an independent 
ecologist or to contact the Bat Advice Service on 0845 1300 228, email 
enquiries@bats.org.uk or visit the Bat Conservation Trust website 
 
4. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981, as amended (Section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage and 
destroy a nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. 
Planning permission for a development does not provide a defence 
against prosecution under this Act. Trees, scrub and other vegetation, 
such as dense ivy, are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March 
and 31st August. This type of vegetation is present on the application site 
and should be assumed to contain nesting birds between the above dates, 

Page 142



 
 
 

 
 
 

unless a recent survey has been undertaken by a competent ecologist to 
assess the nesting bird activity on site during this period and has shown 
it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not present. 
 
5. The applicant is advised to contact the highway officer prior to the 
finalisation of the parking allocations with specific regard to annotation of 
visitor spaces. 
 
 
 
37b 17/02807/FUL - 172 Bradford Road, Winsley 
 
Public participation  
 
Mr Paul Hammond, resident, spoke in objection to the application 
Mr Edward Gilby, applicant, spoke in support of the application 
Ms Sarah Gibson, agent, spoke in support of the application  
 
Kate Sullivan, as planning officer, presented the report which comprised a two-
storey side extension, with two single-storey front and rear extensions as well 
as the proposed conversion of an existing garage into ancillary habitable 
accommodation with the added provision of a car port. Members were informed 
that a late representation had been received earlier in the day but that it did not 
raise additional representations to alter the report’s conclusion. Members were 
further advised that the late submission was shared with the applicant’s agent 
who was asked to comment on the accuracy of the submitted mock-up 3-d 
imagery. Members were also informed that additional detail had been shared 
with officers relative to property titles, but following a discussion held with the 
applicant’s agent earlier in the day, it was confirmed that the applicant had no 
intention to build on land beyond the submitted red lined application site 
boundary which was entirely within the applicant’s ownership and control, and 
any discrepancies identified with the blue lined property title plans were not 
material to this application proposal. It was recommended that the application 
be approved subject to conditions. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined, 
and included: the design of the existing property and the proposed extensions; 
the considered impacts on the immediate surroundings and neighbouring 
amenity; the impacts on highway safety; and provisions made for on-site 
parking.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. In response to questions it was confirmed: that under Core Policy 
57, new development proposals should fit in with the local context but that CP57 
did not prevent the principle of a front extension projecting beyond an 
established or perceived building line. 
 
Members of the public had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 

Page 143



 
 
 

 
 
 

In response to issues raised during the public participation, the legal officer 
confirmed that the question of adjoining land ownership was not of relevance to 
the application under consideration. 
 
Cllr Gordon King, seconded by Cllr Stewart Palmen, moved that the application 
be approved in line with the officer’s recommendations. 
 
In the debate that followed, key issues included: that the proposal was in 
keeping with the local area and that it made good use of the available space. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate it was:  
 
Resolved:  
 
To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions and 
informatives: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. No development above slab level shall commence on site until the exact 
colour and texture details of the Cotswold stone render have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area. 
 
3. The extensions hereby approved shall not be occupied at any time 
other than for purposes ancillary to the residential use of the main 
dwelling, known as 172 Bradford Road, and shall remain within the same 
planning unit as the main dwelling. 
REASON: The additional accommodation is sited in a position where the 
Local Planning Authority, having regard to the reasonable standards of 
residential amenity, access, and planning policies pertaining to the area, 
would not permit a wholly separate dwelling. 
 
4. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following plans: 
Location plan received 17 March 2017; Existing Site Plan received 17 
March 2017; Existing Block Plan Dwg No. E1 received 17 March 2017; 
Existing Floor Plan Dwg No. E2 received 17 March 2017; Existing Roof 
Plan Dwg No. E3 received 17 March 2017; Existing Elevation 1 Dwg No. E4 
received 17 March 2017; Existing Elevation 2 Dwg No. E5 received 17 

Page 144



 
 
 

 
 
 

March 2017; Proposed Site Analysis Plan Dwg No. P0 received 17 March 
2017; Proposed Ground Floor Plan Dwg No. P2 received 17 March 2017; 
Proposed First Floor Plan received 17 March 2017; Proposed Roof Plan 
Dwg No. P4 received 17 March 2017; Proposed Facades Dwg No. P05 
received 9 May 2017; Proposed Elevation Dwg No. P5 received 17 March 
2017; Annexe facades Dwg No. P06 received 9 May 2017;  
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT 
 
1. The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. 
 
2. The applicant is advised to contact Wessex Water with regard to any 
new connections and in respect of any agreements that may be required 
with regard to the protection of existing infrastructure. 
 

38 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00 - 4.17 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718063, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE LOCAL PENSION BOARD MEETING HELD ON 6 APRIL 2017 
AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
David Bowater, Lynda Croft, Cllr Christopher Newbury, Mike Pankiewicz, 
Howard Pearce (Chairman) and Barry Reed 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Deane 
  

 
1 Membership 

 
There were no changes to the membership of the Board.   
 

2 Attendance of non-members of the Board 
 
Cllr Tony Deane (Chairman of the Pension Fund Committee) and Ian Colvin 
(Hymans Robertson) were in attendance.  
 

3 Apologies 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Sarah Holbrook and Cllr Christopher 
Newbury who later joined the meeting on discussion of item 15.   
 

4 Minutes 
 
Members discussed the minutes of the previous meeting and attached action 
log. The Head of Pensions confirmed details of the ‘other work’ that contributed 
to the total figure for the administration cost of the LGPS in the CIPFA 
benchmarking report, namely officer time in overseeing investments and 
accounting. Following questions on the action log, it was confirmed that 
Investec had offered to run a training course for the Board, Committee 
members would also be invited. It was noted that one Board member had yet to 
complete the Pensions Regulator Toolkit.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 1 minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2017. 
 
To note the Board’s action log.  

Page 147

Agenda Item 16



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
5 Declarations of Interest 

 
Members were reminded to review their Register of Interest form to ensure it 
was up to date.  
 
An interest was later declared under item 22 below.  
 

6 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman advised the Fund’s Annual General Meeting was to be held on 
21st June, 10am in Trowbridge, and was open to employers, members of the 
Fund, and other interested stakeholders. 
 
Board members were also encouraged to attend a Pensions and Lifetime 
Savings Association course 16th-17th May, and a CIPFA Local Pension Board 
annual event on 28th June. It was understood that a three day LGPS 
Fundamentals course would be advertised soon and members were 
encouraged to look out for it.  
 

7 Public Participation and Councillors Questions 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 

8 Minutes and Key Decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and 
Investment Sub-Committee 
 
The Board considered the minutes and key decisions for recent meetings of the 
Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and Investment Sub Committee. It was 
noted that the Committee had considered a regulatory update, Treasury 
Management Plan, and approved a budget for the Fund with flexibility to allow 
variations to be approved by the Treasurer between meetings. The Committee, 
on considering the Fund’s outturn report, had requested that future reports 
distinguish between controllable and non-controllable costs in respect of 
administration and investment costs. It was noted that the Committee had 
agreed to release a bespoke funding level metric to the Scheme Advisory Board 
(SAB) and approved a change in gilt allocations to allow the Fund to take first 
steps towards Liability Driven Investing. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the minutes and key decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund 
Committee and Investment Sub Committee.  
 

9 Scheme Legal, Regulatory and Fund update 
 
The Head of Pensions advised that the scheme, legal, regulatory and fund 
update had been colour-coded to reflect the Fund’s Risk Register. The impact 
of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II (MiFid II) consultation was 
discussed since it would impact on asset pooling and the investments the Fund 

Page 148



 
 
 

 
 
 

could make due to potentially re-classifying the Fund as a ‘retail investor’. It was 
understood that the Local Government Association was taking advice on this 
impact of MiFid II and that Funds would seek status as a ‘professional investor’, 
however this could be difficult to achieve since it required appropriately qualified 
people supporting the Fund, and for the Fund to be completing a minimum 
number of trade transactions per quarter. 
 
The Board discussed the SAB Code of Transparency for investment fees, it was 
explained that there was no published timeline for this however the LGPS was 
already quite far advanced in working in this way.  
 
The Chairman noted that the SAB Chair had recently issued a statement about 
asset pooling and recommended this be circulated to Board members. It was 
also considered that statements from Government Ministers and the Pensions 
Regulator should be monitored as they may indicate a future direction of travel 
that Funds should be aware of.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the changes highlighted in the Scheme, Legal, Regulatory and 
fund update.  
 
To circulate the SAB Chairman’s recent statement about investment 
pooling. 
 
To recommend that officers monitor Ministerial national LGPS Scheme 
Advisory Board (SAB) and Pensions Regulator statements and include 
this in updates to the Board when appropriate. 
 

10 Data Protection and Quality Standards 
 
Ian Colvin, Hymans Robertson, presented a training session on the Fund’s 
requirements for data protection and quality standards in line with the Pension 
Regulator Code of Practice and latest guidance. 
 
The advisor explained the importance of clean data as an asset to the Fund and 
the importance of a policy for the retention of records, data cleansing and 
reconciliations. The definitions of common, conditional and numerical data were 
explained, and members understood a paper would be brought to a future 
meeting on data management specific to the Fund. Common issues with data 
management, and the impact of data on the valuation experience and pension 
liabilities was discussed. 
 
The Board recognised the issue of members not notifying the Fund of a 
cohabiting partner who should receive their pension benefits. Officers confirmed 
the Wiltshire Pension Fund reminded members via the Annual Benefit 
Statement to update details, and it was suggested that individual employers 
could also remind their employees to do this by way of a notice on their payslip.  
 

Page 149



 
 
 

 
 
 

The role of the Information Commissioners Office was discussed and it was 
questioned who the named Data Protection Officer was for the Fund. In 
summary, the Head of Pensions advised that a report would be brought to a 
future meeting of the Board on the Fund’s adherence to data standards, plans 
for improvement and data cleansing, the Chairman requested this report cover 
key data risks. 
 
 
Resolved: 
 
To thank Ian Colvin for the informative presentation.  
 
To note the requirements for data protection and quality standards in line 
with the Pension Regulator Code of Practice. 
 
To request that officers establish who the named Data Protection Officer 
is for the Wiltshire Pension Fund.  
 
To note that a report on data protection and quality standards would be 
presented to a future meeting and request this report include key risks for 
data management.  
 

11 Wiltshire Pension Fund Administration Key Performance Indicators 
 
A report updated the Board on the implementation of Key Performance 
Indicators for the Fund in respect of its administration service. The Head of 
Pensions explained performance was difficult to measure since it also relied on 
employer and employee members supplying information to the Fund, this often 
resulted in delays outside of the Fund’s control. It was requested that statutory 
timescales for processes be factored into the KPIs so that it would be shown if 
the Fund had not met these. 
 
The Board discussed future plans for Key Performance Indicators and it was 
highlighted that once the Fund has worked to these, similar indictors would be 
extended to employers. Members considered the merits of comparing the 
Board’s achievement of KPIs compared to other Funds and agreed it should be 
a priority for the future, it was also noted that it would be useful to see the cost 
of each process to the Fund.  Members were aware that CIPFA benchmarked 
Wiltshire against other Funds on an administrative basis, this was a useful tool 
but more of an approximation since funds measured processes and costs with 
different types of data. The Head of Pensions concluded that officers would now 
use the KPIs to start collecting data and would present quarterly reports to the 
Board.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the proposed KPIs for measuring the summary of the Fund’s 
performance against key performance indicators and to request that 
statutory timeframes for administration processes are factored into the 
KPIs. 

Page 150



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
To recommend that once the KPI process is established it is developed to 
allow comparisons to be made against other Funds and to identify the 
administration costs associated with each process.   
 

12 Risk Register update 
 
A report presented the current Risk Register for the Fund which highlighted two 
risks increasing from green to amber since the last report: PEN011: Lack of 
expertise of Pension Fund Officers and PEN012: Over-reliance on key officers. 
The Fund had been unable to recruit to the Pension Fund Accountant post to 
cover maternity leave, the Investment Officer had recently left the Fund and the 
Systems Manager and Senior Systems Officer had both resigned to take up 
other roles externally. It was also explained that the Strategic Pension Manager 
was committed to the Brunel Pension Partnership for 3 days a week. 
 
The Head of Pensions advised that the Strategic Pension Manager would be 
available to the Fund for two weeks in April for the close of the accounts and the 
Fund Development Manager was covering the Systems roles. The Fund was 
also being supported by consultants from Hymans Robertson. It was noted that 
the Committee had requested that Financial Instruments Directive II (MiFid II, 
and the impact of an increasing number of Multi Academy Trusts, be added to 
the Risk Register. On discussion of succession planning for staff, it was noted 
that the Apprenticeship Levy would be a tool for the Fund to train new staff, 
however it was suggested that the Fund may also benefit from a graduate 
recruitment scheme.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the report and measures being taken to mitigate risks. 
 
To recommend that consideration is given in the future to developing a 
graduate recruitment programme for the Fund.  
 

13 Internal Audit Key Controls report and update on actions from previous 
audits 
 
A report from both the Head of Pensions and the South West Audit Partnership 
presented the Key Controls report for the Wiltshire Pension Fund and provided 
an update of the actions from the previous reports. SWAP had given the Fund a 
‘Reasonable Assurance’ opinion, there were no significant findings in the report 
with only two medium risks identified. Of the two medium risks, the outstanding 
reconciliations between Altair and SAP were now back up to date, the 
reconciliation between Altair and Pension Payroll remained and was being 
addressed as part of the GMP reconciliation project. In respect of compliance 
with the Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice No.14 there were no significant 
findings and the Fund was found to be fully compliant in publishing information 
about the scheme and managing risk. 
 

Page 151



 
 
 

 
 
 

The impact of asset pooling on auditing arrangements was discussed and it was 
considered that the Fund’s auditors would need to collaborate with the auditors 
for Brunel Pension Partnership (BPP); officers were considering the client 
relationship between the Fund and BPP. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the attached SWAP internal audit report.  
 

14 Review of Investment Strategy Statement 
 
It was summarised that the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) had 
been approved by the Committee on 23 March 2017 following a consultation 
process opened up to the Board, Committee members, employers and also 
scheme members. A summary of the feedback was attached to the agenda and 
the Head of Pensions explained the reasons why the Fund was required to 
publish an Investment Strategy Statement.  
 
On considering the process for setting the ISS, Board members congratulated 
officers on the consultation process and in achieving the regulatory 
requirements of the document. The Board considered it sensible that the 
document be reviewed in 12-18 months in light of asset pooling. 
 
Resolved:  
 
To note the Investment Strategy Statement and associated future review 
process in 12-18 months time in light of asset pooling.  
 

15 Business Plan update 
 
A report presented an updated Business Plan with revised target dates and 
priorities, as requested by the Board. Members considered high resource risk 
items such as establishing Brunel Pension Partnership. It was noted that 
although the tender process for appointing an Actuary was a high priority it was 
not yet time critical. It was explained that the Business Plan would be reviewed 
in 2018 and would also include priorities in respect of Brunel Pension 
Partnership. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the updated Business Plan, including revised dates and priorities. 
 
 

16 Review of Fund Communication 
 
Communication Manager, Zoe Stannard, updated the Board on the Fund’s 
current communications strategy. It was explained that the strategy had been 
developed in 2015 and included various mediums of communication to all types 
of members and stakeholders of the fund including: website updates, Annual 
Benefit Statements and Newsletters. The officer highlighted that the team 

Page 152



 
 
 

 
 
 

offered Pension Clinics for members of the Fund to meet with officers, these 
meetings had proven very popular and further dates were being offered. The 
Communication Manager was also able to give presentations to groups of staff 
in their place of employment upon request. Latest developments in the Fund’s 
communications methods included the Fund’s first AGM which had been 
scheduled for 21st June 10am, Wiltshire Pension Fund also now had a Twitter 
account to communicate messages.  
 
In response to questions, it was confirmed that the number of visitors to the 
Fund’s website could be measured, however this was upon request due to 
capacity restraints within the Web team. It was suggested that a notice could be 
put on the Fund’s phone system to redirect queries to the website; it was 
explained that phone calls and queries submitted via the website were 
processed in the same way. The Board concluded it was very happy with the 
communication strategy, especially due to the pressure on resources as a result 
of Brunel Pension Partnership.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To thank Zoe Stannard for the informative presentation. 
 
 

17 How did the Board do? 
 
Members were satisfied with the progress of the Board meetings. 
 

18 Urgent items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

19 Date of next meeting and Forward Plan 
 
It was noted that the next meeting was to be held on 13th July 2017, at which 
officers would be able to feedback on the outcome of the AGM and the Board 
would also review the Governance Compliance Statement.  
 

20 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Item Numbers 21-25 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 

21 Review of Internal Dispute Procedures 
 

Page 153



 
 
 

 
 
 

A report outlined the process for Internal Dispute Resolution for the Board to 
review.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the IDRP process and the update provided on latest 
developments. 
 
To recommend the complaint form be amended to clarify applicability in 
respect of spouses and co-habiting partners. 
 

22 Brunel Pension Partnership update 
 
The Board received an update on the progression of Brunel Pension 
Partnership.  
 
Howard Pearce declared that he had applied for a position as a Non-Executive 
Director of Brunel Pension Partnership, the Board confirmed it was satisfied this 
did not warrant a conflict of interest requiring the Chairman to leave the 
meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the progress of Brunel Pension Partnership and 
request a future briefing on the fund’s revised governance structures in 
light of asset pooling.   
 

23 Local Pension Board Indemnity Insurance Update 
 
Members considered the purchase of an indemnity policy for the Board. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To defer the decision on insurance indemnity to the next meeting to allow 
for consultation with other Funds within Brunel Pension Partnership.  
 

24 Minutes and Key Decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and 
Investment  Sub Committee 
 
Members were presented with the confidential minutes of the Wiltshire Pension 
Fund Committee held on 23 March 2017 and Investment Sub Committee held 
on 1 March 2017. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the minutes and key decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund 
Committee and Investment Sub-Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 154



 
 
 

 
 
 

25 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 2 minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2017 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  11.00 am - 1.35 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718214, e-mail elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 7 JUNE 2017 
AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 

Cllr Paul Oatway QPM (Chairman), Cllr Howard Greenman (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Derek Brown OBE, Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Russell Hawker, 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Cllr Fred Westmoreland, Cllr Sue Evans (Substitute) and 
Cllr Peter Hutton (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton, Cllr Trevor Carbin and Cllr Gordon King 
  

 
26 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Allison Bucknell, Anna Cuthbert and 
Bob Jones MBE. 
 
Councillor Cuthbert was substituted by Councillor Peter Hutton. Councillor 
Bucknell was substituted by Councillor Sue Evans. 
 

27 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 April 2017 were presented, and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

28 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

29 Chairman's  Announcements 
 
Through the Chair it was announced that three Independent Persons had been 
appointed at Council on 16 May 2017 on the recommendation of the 
Committee, and that arrangements were underway for code of conduct training 
for town and parish councillors to take place in the autumn 2017. 
 
 

Page 157

Agenda Item 17



 
 

 

 
 
 

30 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

31 Status Report on Complaints 
 
The Committee received an update report on the status of Code of Conduct 
complaints, including total numbers, those referred for investigation and the 
types of complaint received. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the report. 
 

32 Appointment of Constitution Focus Group 
 
Since its creation as a unitary authority in 2009 the Council has appointed a 
Constitution Focus Group to advise and assist the Monitoring Officer and the 
Standards Committee in their respective roles of overseeing the Council’s 
Constitution. 
 
The Committee received a report recommending the Focus Group be re-
established, with minor changes to the terms of reference to specify how the 
chairman be appointed and to clarify that constitutional changes might need to 
be made in response to any legislative changes. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the establishment of a Constitution Focus Group with terms of 
reference as attached to these minutes. 
 

33 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 13 September 2017. 
 

34 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  12.00  - 12.15 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott, of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 158



CONSTITUTION FOCUS GROUP  
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 

To undertake the following: 
 

 ongoing review work on the constitution as and when required;  
 

 producing user friendly summaries of the relevant parts of the 
constitution for use by members of the public and members of the 
Council and  
 
specifically to review the constitution in light of any changes in the 
legislation  

 To consider the views of (as appropriate): 
 

 elected and co-opted members of the Council 

 officers 

 decision making bodies of the Council  

 town, parish and city councils and 

 members of the public  
 
ascertained through questionnaire responses and appropriate methods 
of communication and make appropriate recommendations 

 

 To offer a councillor perspective on and accordingly to influence key 
issues within the constitution. 

 

 To advise the Standards Committee of final recommendations on any 
changes to the constitution for consideration and onward 
recommendation to Council. 

 
Membership 
 
(i) a member from each political group on the Council nominated 

by group leaders;  
 
Conservative:  
Liberal Democrat:  
Independent:  
Labour:  

 
(ii) a member of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 

Committee; 
 

(iii) a member of the Audit Committee; 
 

(iv) two co-opted non-voting members of the Standards Committee 
(one of which to be a town/parish representative); 
 

Page 3

Minute Item 32

Page 159



 
(v) the Chairman of the Standards Committee  

 
 
and 
 

(vi) that appropriate Councillors and Officers are  invited to attend as 
and when requested by the Focus Group or its Chairman to 
assist it in its work. 

 

Chairmanship 
 
A chairman will be selected by the Focus Group from among its membership 

Page 4Page 160


	Agenda
	1 Cabinet
	Minutes

	2 Cabinet
	Minutes

	5 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Minutes

	6 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Minutes
	57 Wiltshire Council Draft Business Plan 2017-2027

	7 Children's Select Committee
	Minutes

	8 Environment Select Committee
	Minutes

	9 Strategic Planning Committee
	10 Strategic Planning Committee
	11 Northern Area Planning Committee
	12 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	13 Eastern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	14 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	15 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	16 Local Pension Board
	17 Standards Committee
	Minutes
	32 Appointment of Constitution Focus Group


